Case: 18-13902 Date Flled:1789B/2019 Page: 1 of 243

IN THE UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS
FOR THE ELEVENTH CIRCUIT

CASE NO. 18-13902-E

VIOLA BRYANT, as Personal Representative of the Estate of
GREGORY VAUGHN HILL, JR.,

Plaintiff/Appellant,
VS.

SHERIFF KEN MASCARA, in his Official Capacity as Sheriff of St. Lucie
County, Florida and Christopher Newman,

Defendants/Appellees.
ON APPEAL FROM THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
CASE NO. 2:16-cv-14072

VOLUME 1

APPELLEES SHERIFF KEN MASCARA AND NEWMAN’S
SUPPLEMENTAL APPENDIX

SUMMER M. BARRANCO

Florida Bar No. 984663

GREGORY J. JOLLY

Florida Bar No. 118287

PURDY, JOLLY, GIUFFREDA, BARRANCO & JISA,
P.A.

2455 East Sunrise Boulevard, Suite 1216

Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33304

Telephone: (954) 462-3200

Telecopier: (954) 462-3861

Attorneys for Appellees Sheriff Mascara and Newman
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U.S. District Court
Southern District of Florida (Ft Pierce)
CIVIL DOCKET FOR CASE #: 2:16-¢cv-14072-RLR

Bryant v. Mascara et al Date Filed: 03/09/2016
Assigned to: Judge Robin L. Rosenberg Date Terminated: 05/30/2018
Referred to: Magistrate Judge Bruce E. Reinhart Jury Demand: Defendant
Case in other court: USCA, 17-12547-A Nature of Suit: 440 Civil Rights: Other
USCA, 18-13902-EE Jurisdiction: Federal Question
19th Judicial Circuit Court, 562016CA000029
(0C)
Cause: 28:1441 Notice of Removal
Plaintiff
Viola Bryant represented by John Michael Phillips
as Personal Representative of the Estate of Law Office of John M. Phillips
Gregory Vaughn Hill, Jr. 4230 Ortega Boulevard
Jacksonville, FL 32210
(904) 517-8903
Fax: (904) 508-0683
Email: jphillips@knowthelawyer.com
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
Thomas Caldwell Roberts
Law Office of John M. Phillips, LLC
4230 Ortega Boulevard
Jacksonville, FL 32210
9045178903
Fax: 9045080683
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
V.
Defendant
Sheriff Ken Mascara represented by Bruce Wallace Jolly
in his official Capacity as Sheriff of St. Purdy Jolly Giuffreda & Barranco PA
Lucie County 2455 E Sunrise Boulevard
Suite 1216

Fort Lauderdale, FL 33304
954-462-3200

Fax: 462-3861

Email: bruce@purdylaw.com
LEAD ATTORNEY
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Gregory James Jolly

Purdy, Jolly, Giuffreda and Barranco, P.A.
2455 E. Sunrise Blvd. Ste. 1216

Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33304

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?120623321512596-L_1_0-1 1/29
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Fax: (954) 462-3861
Email: greg@purdylaw.com
LEAD ATTORNEY
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Matthew Joseph Wildner

Conroy Simberg

200

1801 Centrepark Drive East

West palm Beach, FL 33401

(561) 697-8088

Email: mwildner@conroysimberg.com
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Summer Marie Barranco

Purdy Jolly Giuffreda & Barranco PA
2455 E Sunrise Boulevard

Suite 1216

Fort Lauderdale, FL 33304
954-462-3200

Fax: 462-3861

Email: summer@purdylaw.com
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Christopher Newman represented by Bruce Wallace Jolly

an individual

(See above for address)
LEAD ATTORNEY
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Gregory James Jolly

(See above for address)

LEAD ATTORNEY
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Matthew Joseph Wildner
(See above for address)
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Summer Marie Barranco
(See above for address)

ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Date Filed # | Docket Text

03/09/2016 1 | NOTICE OF REMOVAL (STATE COURT COMPLAINT) Filing fees $ 400.00 receipt
number 113C-8551811, filed by Christopher Newman, Ken Mascara. (Attachments: # 1
Exhibit)(Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 03/09/2016)

03/09/2016 2 | Judge Assignment to Judge Robin L. Rosenberg and Ch. Magistrate Judge Frank J.
Lynch, Jr (jc) (Entered: 03/09/2016)

03/09/2016 3 | Clerks Notice pursuant to 28 USC 636(c). Parties are hereby notified that the U.S.

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?120623321512596-L_1_0-1
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Magsstra& 1682 Frankatel el IFHAPADIS @ haRdlgan§ of &4 roceedings in this case.
If agreed, parties should complete and file the attached form. (jc) (Entered: 03/09/2016)

03/09/2016

Clerks Notice to Filer re: Electronic Case. No Civil Cover Sheet. Filer is instructed to file
a Notice (Other) with the Civil Cover Sheet attached within 24 hours of the notice. (jc)
(Entered: 03/09/2016)

03/10/2016

I

NOTICE by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman re 1 Notice of Removal (State Court
Complaint), 4 Clerks Notice to Filer re: Electronic Case (Attachments: # 1 Civil Cover
Sheet) (Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 03/10/2016)

03/10/2016

1N

ANSWER and Affirmative Defenses to Complaint re the Notice of Removal with Jury
Demand by Christopher Newman. (Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 03/10/2016)

03/10/2016

N

ANSWER and Aftirmative Defenses to Complaint re the Notice of Removal with Jury
Demand by Ken Mascara. (Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 03/10/2016)

03/10/2016

loo

ORDER SETTING STATUS CONFERENCE, CALENDAR CALL, AND TRIAL DATE
AND ORDER OF REFERENCE TO MAGISTRATE: ( Pretrial Conference set for
3/1/2017 09:30 AM before Judge Robin L. Rosenberg., Jury Trial set for 4/10/2017 09:00
AM in Fort Pierce Division before Judge Robin L. Rosenberg., Calendar Call set for
4/5/2017 09:00 AM before Judge Robin L. Rosenberg.), ORDER REFERRING CASE to
Magistrate Judge Frank J. Lynch, Jr. for Discovery Matters Signed by Judge Robin L.
Rosenberg on 3/10/2016. (yha) (Entered: 03/11/2016)

03/11/2016

[Ne}

ORDER SETTING TELEPHONIC SCHEDULING CONFERENCE AND ORDER
REQUIRING JOINT SCHEDULING REPORT: Scheduling Conference set for
5/11/2016 02:00 PM before Ch. Magistrate Judge Frank J. Lynch Jr.. -Joint Scheduling
Report due by 5/9/2016 Signed by Ch. Magistrate Judge Frank J. Lynch, Jr on 3/11/2016.
(yha) (Entered: 03/11/2016)

03/17/2016

RESPONSE/REPLY to 7 ANSWER to Complaint (Notice of Removal) Reply to
Affirmative Defenses of Defendant Mascara by Viola Bryant. (Phillips, John) (Entered:
03/17/2016)

03/17/2016

RESPONSE/REPLY to 6 ANSWER to Complaint (Notice of Removal) Reply to
Affirmative Defenses of Defendant Newman by Viola Bryant. (Phillips, John) (Entered:
03/17/2016)

05/09/2016

SCHEDULING REPORT - Rule 26(f) by Viola Bryant (Phillips, John) (Entered:
05/09/2016)

05/11/2016

Minute Entry for proceedings held before Ch. Magistrate Judge Frank J. Lynch, Jr:
Scheduling Conference held on 5/11/2016. Scheduling Order entered (Digital 140519.)
(cga) (Entered: 05/11/2016)

05/11/2016

ORDER SETTING PRE -TRIAL SCHEDULE AND ORDER REFERRING CASE TO
MEDIATION: (Amended Pleadings due by 6/10/2016., Discovery due by 11/11/2016.,
Fact Discovery due by 9/16/2016., Joinder of Parties due by 6/10/2016., Mediation
Deadline 2/10/2017., In Limine Motions due by 12/9/2016., Pretrial Dispositive Motions
due by 12/9/2016., Joint Pretrial Stipulation due by 3/13/2017.), ORDER REFERRING
CASE to Mediation. Signed by Ch. Magistrate Judge Frank J. Lynch, Jr on 5/11/2016.
(jas) (Entered: 05/12/2016)

05/20/2016

Initial Disclosure(s) of Plaintiff's Initial Rule 26(A)(1) Disclosure by Viola Bryant
(Phillips, John) (Entered: 05/20/2016)

05/26/2016

NOTICE by Viola Bryant of Selection of Mediator (Phillips, John) (Entered: 05/26/2016)

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?120623321512596-L_1_0-1
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https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016209166
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016207129
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116209167
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116213094
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116213354
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116214867
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116218258
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116238070
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116213354
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116238085
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116213094
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116451255
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116462874
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116468202
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116500849
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116526483
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Clasks W8tic830 Filerve (o Meaiic KO0 Medidtary Not Atlddd; ERROR - The Filer
failed to add all parties to the case. Filer is instructed to file a Notice of Entry of Parties
and add the mediator. (asl) (Entered: 05/27/2016)

06/02/2016

Notice of Entry of Parties Listed NOTE: New Filer(s) will appear twice, since they are
also a new party in the case. New Filer(s)/Party(s): E. Hugh Chappell. (Phillips, John)
(Entered: 06/02/2016)

09/16/2016

Plaintiff's MOTION for Extension of Time to Complete Discovery by Viola Bryant.
(Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)(Phillips, John). Added MOTION to Continue
on 9/19/2016 (asl). (Entered: 09/16/2016)

09/19/2016

20

Clerks Notice to Filer re 19 Plaintiff's MOTION for Extension of Time to Complete
Discovery and to Continue Trial. Motion with Multiple Reliefs Filed as One Relief;
ERROR - The Filer selected only one relief event and failed to select the additional
corresponding events for each relief requested in the motion. The docket entry was
corrected by the Clerk. It is not necessary to refile this document but future filings must
comply with the instructions in the CM/ECF Attorney User's Manual. (asl) (Entered:
09/19/2016)

09/20/2016

21

PAPERLESS ORDER Setting Hearing on 19 Plaintiff's MOTION for Extension of Time
to Complete Discovery and to Continue Trial for 9/21/2016 02:00 PM in Fort Pierce
Division before Judge Robin L. Rosenberg. Counsel may appear telephonically but must
file a notice of telephonic appearance at least one (1) day prior to the hearing. Instructions
for appearing by telephone are as follows: Please call five (5) minutes prior to the
hearing. 1. Toll-Free Number: 1 (877) 873-8018; 2. Access Code: 9890482; 3. Security
Code: 4008. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 9/20/2016. (as00) (Entered:
09/20/2016)

09/20/2016

NOTICE by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman re 21 Order Setting Hearing on Motion,,
(Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 09/20/2016)

09/20/2016

NOTICE by Viola Bryant re 21 Order Setting Hearing on Motion,, (Phillips, John)
(Entered: 09/20/2016)

09/21/2016

24

Paperless Minute Entry for proceedings held before Judge Robin L. Rosenberg:
Telephonic Motion Hearing held on 9/21/2016 re 19 Plaintiff's MOTION for Extension of
Time to Complete Discovery and to Continue Trial MOTION to Continue filed by Viola
Bryant. Court Reporter: Pauline Stipes, 561-803-3434 /

Pauline Stipes@flsd.uscourts.gov (Iwl) (Entered: 09/21/2016)

09/21/2016

25

PAPERLESS ORDER directing the parties to submit a Proposed Amended Pre-Trial Plan
to the Court's e-mail address in Word format. For purposes of the Proposed Amended
Pre-Trial Plan, the deadline for dispositive motions shall be re-set to December 30, 2016.
The parties' Proposed Amended Pre-Trial Plan may adjust all deadlines preceding the
new dispositive motion deadline of December 30, 2016. All deadlines following the
dispositive motion deadline, including the date of the trial itself, shall remain as set in
[DE 14] Order Setting Pre-Trial Schedule and Order Referring Case to Mediation. The
parties are also directed to file a Discovery Plan in a separate filing. This Discovery Plan
shall contain a detailed schedule for the first phase of depositions, which, as discussed at
the Status Conference held on September 19, 2016, will include approximately 6
depositions by Plaintiff and approximately 3 depositions by Defendant. The Discovery
Plan shall reflect that these depositions are to be completed by October 7, 2016, and
include the dates and times of the depositions. Both the Proposed Amended Pre-Trial
Plan and the Discovery Plan shall be filed with the Court by September 23, 2016 at
5:00pm. A status conference is scheduled for Monday, October 24, 2016, at 8:30 a.m. in
West Palm Beach.Counsel may appear telephonically but must file a notice of telephonic

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?120623321512596-L_1_0-1 4/29
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https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116546816
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016993721
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116993722
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016993721
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016993721
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117002238
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117003517
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016993721
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dppsarab8eld3 I3t ool {ByefrlR@Bh20karind? hogtrugtadridAdr appearing by
telephone are as follows: Please call five (5) minutes prior to the hearing. 1. Toll-Free
Number: 1 (877) 873-8018; 2. Access Code: 9890482; 3. Security Code: 4008. Signed by
Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 9/21/2016. (as00) (Entered: 09/21/2016)

09/21/2016 Dispositive Motions due by 12/30/2016. (as00) (Entered: 09/21/2016)

09/22/2016 Set/Reset Hearings: Status Conference set for 10/24/2016 at 8:30 AM in West Palm
Beach Division before Judge Robin L. Rosenberg. SEE DE 25 ORDER (ail) (Entered:
09/22/2016)

09/23/2016 26 | REPORT REGARDING Proposed Amended Pretrial Plan by Viola Bryant (Phillips,
John) (Entered: 09/23/2016)

09/23/2016 27 | REPORT REGARDING Joint Discovery Plan by Viola Bryant (Phillips, John) (Entered:
09/23/2016)

09/26/2016 28 | AMENDED SCHEDULING ORDER: Discovery due by 12/16/2016. Fact Discovery due
by 10/21/2016. Mediation Deadline 2/10/2017. In Limine Motions due by 12/30/2016.
Pretrial Motions due by 12/30/2016. Joint Pretrial Stipulation due by 3/13/2017. Signed
by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 9/26/2016. (jas)

Pattern Jury Instruction Builder - To access the latest, up to date changes to the 11th
Circuit Pattern Jury Instructions go to https://pji.call.uscourts.gov or click here.
(Entered: 09/26/2016)

09/26/2016 29 | Joint Discovery Plan re 26 Report Regarding filed by Viola Bryant. Signed by Judge
Robin L. Rosenberg on 9/26/2016. (jas) (Entered: 09/26/2016)

09/26/2016 30 | MOTION for Protective Order as fo Sheriff's deposition being set for next Monday
October 3, 2016 and Memorandum of Law by Ken Mascara. (Barranco, Summer)
Modified title text on 9/27/2016 (asl). (Entered: 09/26/2016)

09/27/2016 31 | ORDER OF RECUSAL. Ch. Magistrate Judge Frank J. Lynch, Jr recused. Case
reassigned to Magistrate Judge James M. Hopkins for all further proceedings Motions
referred to Judge James M. Hopkins Signed by Ch. Magistrate Judge Frank J. Lynch, Jr
on 9/27/2016. (vjk) (Entered: 09/28/2016)

09/28/2016 32 | Clerks Notice pursuant to 28 USC 636(c). Parties are hereby notified that the U.S.
Magistrate Judge James M. Hopkins is available to handle any or all proceedings in this
case. If agreed, parties should complete and file the attached form. (vjk) (Entered:
09/28/2016)

09/30/2016 33 | PAPERLESS ORDER Setting Hearing on 30 Defendant's MOTION for Protective Order
for TODAY, 9/30/2016, at 02:00 PM in the West Palm Beach Division before Magistrate
Judge James M. Hopkins. The parties may appear telephonically using the call-in
information provided by the Court. Signed by Magistrate Judge James M. Hopkins on
9/30/2016. (ckr) (Entered: 09/30/2016)

09/30/2016 34 | PAPERLESS Minute Order for proceedings held before Magistrate Judge James M.
Hopkins: GRANTING 30 Defendant's Motion for Protective Order for the reasons stated
on the record during the 9/30/16 Hearing on the Motion. (Digital 14:09:36.) (ckr)
(Entered: 09/30/2016)

10/14/2016 35 | NOTICE by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman of Telephonic Appearance (Barranco,
Summer) (Entered: 10/14/2016)

10/17/2016 36 | NOTICE by Viola Bryant of Telephonic Appearance (Phillips, John) (Entered:
10/17/2016)
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https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117022440
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117022458
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117025050
https://pji.ca11.uscourts.gov/
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117025107
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117022440
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117029259
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117040615
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117040622
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117029259
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117029259
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117097786
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117101762
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RapeeledSM i Enthafisr (Retdd@Bheld BeforeddgagORBbIAI.. Rosenberg:
Telephonic Status Conference held on 10/24/2016. **Telephonic Appearances: Thomas
Roberts, Esq. present on behalf of the Plaintiff. Summer Barranco, Esq. present on behalf
of the Defendants. Court Reporter: Pauline Stipes, 561-803-3434 /
Pauline_Stipes@flsd.uscourts.gov (Iwl) (Entered: 10/24/2016)

10/25/2016

38

PAPERLESS ORDER directing the parties to submit a Second Proposed Amended Pre-
Trial Plan to the Court's e-mail address in Word format. For purposes of the Second
Proposed Amended Pre-Trial Plan, the deadline for dispositive motions may be re-set no
later than January 30, 2016. The parties' Second Proposed Amended Pre-Trial Plan may
adjust all deadlines preceding the new dispositive motions deadline. The trial shall
remain as set in [DE 8] Order Setting Status Conference, Calendar Call, and Trial Date.
The Proposed Amended Pre-Trial Plan shall be filed with the Court by October 28, 2016
at 12:00pm. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 10/25/2016. (as00) (Entered:
10/25/2016)

10/31/2016

SECOND AMENDED SCHEDULING ORDER: Discovery due by 1/17/2017. Fact
Discovery due by 12/6/2016. Mediation Deadline 2/10/2017. In Limine Motions due by
1/30/2017. Pretrial Motions due by 1/30/2017. Joint Pretrial Stipulation due by
3/13/2017. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 10/31/2016. (jas)

Pattern Jury Instruction Builder - To access the latest, up to date changes to the 11th
Circuit Pattern Jury Instructions go to https://pji.call.uscourts.gov or click here.
(Entered: 11/01/2016)

01/17/2017

Plaintiff's EMERGENCY MOTION with Certification of Emergency attached by Viola
Bryant. Responses due by 1/31/2017 (Attachments: # 1 Certification of Emergency, # 2
Affidavit in Support)(Phillips, John) (Entered: 01/17/2017)

01/17/2017

41

PAPERLESS ORDER decertifying 40 Plaintiff's Unopposed Emergency Motion to
Extend Discovery Deadline, Mediation, and to Continue Trial as an emergency motion
and denying the same without prejudice. Several aspects of this motion cause the Court
concern. The only ground cited for the three to four month extension of all deadlines and
continuation of trial requested therein is the fact that three lawyers, including one who
played a large role in this case, have left Plaintiff's counsel's law firm. However, these
three lawyers, according to the motion, left on January 13, 2017--only four days before
the scheduled close of discovery on January 17, 2017. The Court simply does not
understand how the work left to be done during those four days could warrant the three to
four month extension of the discovery deadline requested. And the motion itself provides
no clarification; it is silent as to what discovery remains to be conducted in this case.
Therefore, the requirement stated in Local Rule 7.1(d) that an emergency motion "shall
set forth in detail the necessity for [] expedited procedure" is unmet. The Court also notes
that it has already extended the deadlines in this case twice, having entered both an 28
Amended Scheduling Order and a 39 Second Amended Scheduling Order. Since the
Second Amended Scheduling Order was entered on October 31, 2016, the Court has
received no indication that the parties were straining to complete discovery or that
complications had arisen until the instant motion was filed on the day of the discovery
deadline. Should Plaintiff persist in this request for relief, an amended motion that
addresses the Court's concerns must be filed on or before 5:00 p.m. on January 18, 2017.
Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 1/17/2017. (as00) (Entered: 01/17/2017)

01/18/2017

Amended EMERGENCY MOTION with Certification of Emergency attached by Viola
Bryant. Responses due by 2/1/2017 (Attachments: # 1 Certification of Emergency, # 2
Affidavit in Support)(Phillips, John) (Entered: 01/18/2017)

01/18/2017

43

PAPERLESS ORDER decertifying 42 Plaintift's Amended Unopposed Emergency
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https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117171046
https://pji.ca11.uscourts.gov/
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017449970
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117449971
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117449972
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017449970
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117025050
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117171046
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https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117454782
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117454783
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017454781
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Ohstioril & E28651d Dikrateifl OafdmaIN2edistionPagbContofu24l3ial as an Emergency
Motion. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 1/18/2017. (as00) (Entered:
01/18/2017)

01/19/2017 44 | PAPERLESS ORDER denying without prejudice 42 Plaintiff's Amended Unopposed
Emergency Motion to Extend Discovery Deadline, Mediation, and Continue Trial.
Absent an account of what discovery has been conducted and what discovery is yet to be
completed in this case, the Court cannot meaningfully evaluate the Motion. The Court,
therefore, requires that counsel review the firm's records in an effort to establish what
discovery has been completed and what remains to be completed. The Court is
sympathetic to counsel's plight and understands that a forensic reconstruction of
discovery is not a simple undertaking, particularly without the aid of the attorney who
handled the bulk of discovery--but it is a necessary one. This information must be
included in the Second Amended Motion, which shall be filed on or before 5:00pm on
Friday January 20, 2017. It should not be filed as an emergency motion. Signed by Judge
Robin L. Rosenberg on 1/19/2017. (as00) (Entered: 01/19/2017)

01/20/2017 45 | Second MOTION for Extension of Time to Extend Discovery Deadline and Continue
Trial Amended re 43 Order, 42 Amended EMERGENCY MOTION with Certification of
Emergency attached , 39 Scheduling Order,, 44 Order on Emergency
Motion/Certification of Emergency,,, 40 Plaintiffs EMERGENCY MOTION with
Certification of Emergency attached , 41 Order on Emergency Motion/Certification of
Emergency,,..,,, by Viola Bryant. Responses due by 2/3/2017 (Attachments: # 1 Affidavit)
(Phillips, John) (Entered: 01/20/2017)

01/20/2017 46 | PAPERLESS ORDER setting hearing on 45 Plaintiff's Second Amended Unopposed
Motion to Extend Discovery Deadline and Continue Trial for 1/23/2017 at 3:00 PM in
West Palm Beach Division before Judge Robin L. Rosenberg. Counsel may appear at the
hearing by telephone but must file a notice of telephonic appearance by 1:00pm on
1/23/2017. Instructions for appearing by telephone are as follows: Please call five (5)
minutes prior to the hearing. The toll-free number is: 1 (877) 873-8018. The access code
is: 9890482. The security code is: 4008. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on
1/20/2017. (as00) (Entered: 01/20/2017)

01/23/2017 47 | NOTICE by Viola Bryant of Telephonic Appearance (Phillips, John) (Entered:
01/23/2017)

01/23/2017 48 | NOTICE by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman of Telephonic Hearing (Barranco,
Summer) (Entered: 01/23/2017)

01/23/2017 49 | NOTICE by Viola Bryant of Telephonic Appearance (Phillips, John) (Entered:
01/23/2017)

01/23/2017 50 | PAPERLESS Minute Entry for proceedings held before Judge Robin L. Rosenberg:
Motion Hearing held on 1/23/2017 re 45 Second MOTION for Extension of Time to
Extend Discovery Deadline and Continue Trial Amended re 43 Order, 42 Amended
EMERGENCY MOTION with Certification of Emergency attached , 39 Scheduling
Order,, 44 Order on Emergency Mot filed by Viola Bryant. **Attorney Appearance(s):
John Phillips, Esq. present (via phone) on behalf of the Plaintiff. Summer Barranco, Esq.
present (via phone) on behalf of the Defendants. Total time in court: 45 minutes. (Digital
14:59:24) (Iw1) (Entered: 01/23/2017)

01/24/2017 51 | PAPERLESS ORDER granting in part and denying in part Plaintiffs Second Amended
Unopposed Motion to Extend Discovery Deadline and Continue Trial. Plaintiff
represented that an extension of the discovery deadline was required so that Plaintiff
could: (1) propound approximately 10 to 20 additional interrogatories, (ii) propound a
supplemental request for production, (iii) take the deposition of Christopher Lawrence
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https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117468461
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017468460
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117471471
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https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017454781
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Bedard and William R. Anderson, M.D., whom have been identified as Plaintiffs experts.
Defendant, during the status conference, also expressed a desire to depose Mr. Anthony
Brown, a recently located fact witness. The Court hereby extends the discovery deadline
until February 8, 2017 in order to facilitate these requests, as follows. Plaintiff may
propound an additional 20 interrogatories and a supplemental request for production on
or before January 25, 2017. Defendants must respond thereto on or before February 7,
2017. By 5:00pm on February 24, 2017 the parties shall jointly file a notice indicating the
schedule of the three expert depositions discussed above to be taken on or before
February 7, 2017. The Court emphasizes that the parties are required to make all
reasonable efforts to schedule these depositions within that time frame. If a deposition
cannot be scheduled, the notice shall explain in detail why not. The dispositive motion
deadline of January 30, 2017 is hereby stayed. The matter of the motion deadline will be
revisited following the parties mediation on February 8, 2017, as will the scheduling of
Mr. Anthony Browns deposition. Immediately following the mediation on February 8,
2017, counsel for Plaintiff shall file a notice informing the Court of the outcome of the
mediation. Moreover, lead counsel for Defendant shall file a notice with the Court by
days end on January 25, 2017 informing the Court of the outcome of the mediation being
held in Adams v. Bradshaw, another of counsels cases. If Adams v. Bradshaw does not
settle, counsel for Defendant shall file another notice on January 26, 2017, following the
calendar call in that case, informing the court of when Adams v. Bradshaw will be tried
and how long that trial is expected to last. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on
1/24/2017. (as00) (Entered: 01/24/2017)

01/24/2017 Reset Deadlines per 51 Order. Discovery due by 2/8/2017. (asl) (Entered: 01/24/2017)

01/24/2017 52 | NOTICE of Compliance fo Court's Order dated January 24, 2017 by Viola Bryant re 51
Order on Motion for Extension of Time.,,,,,,,,, (Phillips, John) (Entered: 01/24/2017)

01/25/2017 53 | NOTICE by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman re 51 Order on Motion for Extension of
Time,,,,,,,,, (Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 01/25/2017)

01/26/2017 54 | NOTICE by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman re 51 Order on Motion for Extension of
Time,,,,,,,,, (Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 01/26/2017)

02/07/2017 55 | Unopposed MOTION for Extension of Time to File Response/Reply/Answer fo
Plaintiff's Expert Witness Discovery Dated 1/25/2017 by Ken Mascara, Christopher
Newman. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit)(Barranco, Summer) Modified title text on 2/7/2017
(asl). (Entered: 02/07/2017)

02/08/2017 56 | PAPERLESS ORDER granting 55 Defendants' Unopposed Motion for Extension of Time
to Respond to Plaintiff's Expert Discovery Dated January 25, 2017. Defendants must

respond on or before February 10, 2017. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on
2/8/2017. (as00) (Entered: 02/08/2017)

02/09/2017 57 | NOTICE by Viola Bryant re 51 Order on Motion for Extension of Time,,.,,,,,, (Phillips,
John) (Entered: 02/09/2017)

02/23/2017 58 | NOTICE by Viola Bryant of Telephonic Appearance (Phillips, John) (Entered:
02/23/2017)

02/23/2017 59 | FINAL MEDIATION REPORT by Hugh Chappell. Disposition: Case did not settle.
(Chaplin, James) (Entered: 02/23/2017)

02/23/2017 PAPERLESS ORDER re-setting pre-trial status conference for 2/24/2017 at 11:00 AM in
West Palm Beach Division before Judge Robin L. Rosenberg. Counsel may appear at the
hearing by telephone but must file a notice of telephonic appearance by 1:00pm on
1/23/2017. Instructions for appearing by telephone are as follows: Please call five (5)
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https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117493206
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017539491
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117539492
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017539491
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is: 9890482. The security code is: 4008. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on
2/23/2017. (as00) (Entered: 02/23/2017)

NOTICE by Viola Bryant Telephonic Appearance (Phillips, John) (Entered: 02/23/2017)

02/23/2017
02/24/2017

=13
— -

NOTICE by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman re Set/Reset Hearings,, (Barranco,
Summer) (Entered: 02/24/2017)

02/24/2017 62 | PAPERLESS Minute Entry for proceedings held before Judge Robin L. Rosenberg:
Status Conference held on 2/24/2017. **Telephonic Attorney Appearance(s): John
Phillips, Esq. present (via phone) on behalf of the Plaintiff. Summer Barranco, Esq.
present (via phone) on behalf of the Defendants. Total time in court: 42 minutes. Court
Reporter: Pauline Stipes, 561-803-3434 / Pauline Stipes@flsd.uscourts.gov. (Iwl)
(Entered: 02/24/2017)

02/27/2017 63 | PAPERLESS ORDER memorializing the outcome of the status conference held on
February 24, 2017. During the status conference counsel jointly requested a continuance
of trial. The Court construed this request as an ore tenus motion to continue trial and
granted the same. Jury Trial is hereby set for June 13, 2017 at 9:00 AM in the Fort Pierce
Division before Judge Robin L. Rosenberg. Calendar Call is hereby set for June 7, 2017
at 9:30 AM in Fort Pierce Division before Judge Robin L. Rosenberg. The remaining
deadlines are hereby adjusted as follows: Counsel's Jury Instructions or Proposed
Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law are due on June 6, 2017; Counsel's objections
to designations of deposition testimony are due on May 30, 2017; Counsel's Joint Pretrial
Stipulation, designations of deposition testimony, and witness and exhibit lists are due on
May 12, 2017; and Dispositive motions are due on March 31, 2017. Dispositive motions,
which are now on March 31, 2017, are hereby set on an expedited briefing schedule as
follows: Responses are due on April 7, 2017 and Replies are due on April 12, 2017.
Counsel is also hereby required to submit a discovery plan in Word format to the Courts
e-mail address. The discovery plan shall contain a detailed schedule for all discovery that
remains to be conducted in this case, including the date, time, and location of any
depositions. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 2/27/2017. (as00) (Entered:
02/27/2017)

02/27/2017 Reset Deadlines per 63 Order. Pretrial Stipulation due by 5/12/2017. (asl) (Entered:
02/28/2017)

03/01/2017 64 | PAPERLESS ORDER terminating the status conference previously set for March 1,
2017, in light of the fact that the status conference was re-set for, and held on, February
24, 2017. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 3/1/2017. (as00) (Entered:
03/01/2017)

03/06/2017 65 | ORDER MEMORIALIZING JOINT DISCOVERY PLAN. Signed by Judge Robin L.
Rosenberg on 3/6/2017. (jas) (Entered: 03/06/2017)

03/31/2017 66 | MOTION for Summary Judgment (as to Counts I, III & V) by Ken Mascara. Responses
due by 4/14/2017 (Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 03/31/2017)

03/31/2017 67 | MOTION for Summary Judgment by Christopher Newman. Responses due by 4/14/2017
(Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 03/31/2017)

03/31/2017 68 | Statement of: Material Facts in Support of Motions for Summary Judgment by Ken
Mascara, Christopher Newman re 66 MOTION for Summary Judgment (as to Counts I,
111 & V), 67 MOTION for Summary Judgment (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Exhibit A -
Deposition Transcript of Christopher Newman, # 2 Exhibit Exhibit B - Deposition
Transcript of Stefani Mill, # 3 Exhibit Exhibit C - Deposition Transcript of Edward
Lopez, # 4 Exhibit Exhibit D - SWAT memo, # 5 Exhibit Exhibit E - Photo of Hill in
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https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117604670
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117605916
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117645414
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117751627
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117751651
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017751967
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117751627
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117751651
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117751968
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117751969
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117751970
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117751971
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117751972
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Gasge 186 BRDibit Hrhili 8 @hASAB)201, 5 7 BPdgkit Exltib#A43 - Transcript of Radio
Transmissions, # 8 Exhibit Exhibit H - Deposition Transcript of Lisa McGuire, # 9
Exhibit Exhibit I - Deposition Transcript of Lizbeth Enriquez Ruiz, # 10 Affidavit Exhibit
J - Affidavit of Lt. Michael Sheelar, # 11 Exhibit Composite Exhibit 1 to Exhibit J -
SLCSO General Orders, # 12 Exhibit Composite Exhibit 2 to Exhibit J - Additional
SLCSO General Orders)(Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 03/31/2017)

04/07/2017 69 | RESPONSE in Opposition re 66 MOTION for Summary Judgment (as to Counts I, Ill &
V) filed by Viola Bryant. Replies due by 4/14/2017. (Phillips, John) (Entered:
04/07/2017)

04/07/2017 70 | RESPONSE in Opposition re 67 MOTION for Summary Judgment filed by Viola Bryant.
Replies due by 4/14/2017. (Phillips, John) (Entered: 04/07/2017)

04/07/2017 71 | Statement of: Material Facts in Opposition by Viola Bryant re 66 MOTION for Summary
Judgment (as to Counts I, III & V) 67 MOTION for Summary Judgment (Attachments: #
1 Exhibit A - Deposition of Edward Lopez, # 2 Exhibit B - CAD Report, # 3 Exhibit C -
Medical Examiner's Report, # 4 Exhibit D - Deposition of Andrew Brown, # 5 Exhibit E
- Deposition of Stephani Mills, # 6 Exhibit F - Deposition of Lizabeth Enriquez-Ruiz, # 7
Exhibit G - Deposition of Joseph Hall, # 8 Exhibit H - Deposition of Juanita Wright, # 9
Exhibit I - Deposition of Lisa McGuire, # 10 Exhibit J - Deposition of Donna Hellums, #
11 Exhibit K - Deposition of David Morales, # 12 Exhibit L - Deposition of D. Hill, # 13
Exhibit M - Indian River Crime Lab, # 14 Exhibit N - Deposition of William Anderson,
M.D., # 15 Exhibit O - Deposition of Roy Bedard, # 16 Exhibit P - Deposition of
Christopher Newman, # 17 Exhibit Q - Deposition of Brian Hester, # 18 Exhibit R -
Deposition of Christopher Cicio, # 19 Exhibit S - Deposition of Wade Courtemanche, #
20 Exhibit T - Deposition of Michael Gajewski)(Phillips, John) Modified Links on
4/10/2017 (Is). (Entered: 04/07/2017)

04/10/2017 72 | Clerks Notice to Filer re 71 Statement,,,,. Incorrect Document Link; ERROR - The filed
document was not correctly linked to the related docket entry. The correction was made

by the Clerk. It is not necessary to refile this document but future filings must comply
with the instructions in the CM/ECF Attorney User's Manual. (Is) (Entered: 04/10/2017)

04/12/2017 73 | REPLY to Response to Motion re 66 MOTION for Summary Judgment (as fo Counts I,
III & V) filed by Ken Mascara. (Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 04/12/2017)

04/12/2017 74 | REPLY to Response to Motion re 67 MOTION for Summary Judgment filed by
Christopher Newman. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit "K" - aerial photo attached to Joseph
Hall depo.)(Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 04/12/2017)

04/13/2017 75 | PAPERLESS ORDER setting hearing on 67 Defendant Christopher Newman's Motion
for Summary Judgment and on 66 Defendant Ken Mascara's Motion for Summary
Judgment for 4/27/2017 at 11:00 AM in the Fort Pierce Division before Judge Robin L.
Rosenberg. Counsel may appear by telephone but must file a notice of telephonic
appearance at least one day prior to the Status Conference. Instructions for appearing by
telephone are as follows: Please call five minutes prior to the Status Conference. Toll-
Free Number: 1 (877) 873-8018. Access Code: 9890482. Security Code: 4008. Signed by
Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 4/13/2017. (as00) (Entered: 04/13/2017)

04/26/2017 76 | NOTICE by Viola Bryant of Telephonic Appearance (Phillips, John) (Entered:
04/26/2017)

04/26/2017 77 | PAPERLESS ORDER re-setting hearing on 67 Defendant Christopher Newman's Motion
for Summary Judgment and on 66 Defendant Ken Mascara's Motion for Summary
Judgment for 5/4/2017 at 11:30 AM in the Fort Pierce Division before Judge Robin L.
Rosenberg. Counsel may appear by telephone but must file a notice of telephonic
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https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117751651
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017789187
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117751627
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117751651
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117789188
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117789189
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https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117789191
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117789192
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117789193
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117789194
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117789195
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117789196
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117789197
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117789198
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117789199
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117789200
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117789201
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117789202
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117789203
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117789204
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117789205
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117789206
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117789207
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017789187
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117805823
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3/11/2019

CM/ECEF - Live Database - flsd

Gppeardiied 302st ohmdayid df @FRaRa0S CorfermictAlndtAkSions for appearing by
telephone are as follows: Please call five minutes prior to the Status Conference. Toll-
Free Number: 1 (877) 873-8018. Access Code: 9890482. Security Code: 4008. Signed by
Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 4/26/2017. (as00) (Entered: 04/26/2017)

05/04/2017

78

PAPERLESS ORDER memorializing the outcome of the hearing held on May 4, 2017.
As stated on the record, Plaintiff's Statement of Material Facts [DE 71] is hereby stricken
for failure to comply with Local Rule 56.1(a). Plaintiff must file a reorganized Statement
of Material Facts on or before Tuesday, May 9, 2017 at 12:00pm. The Court cautions that
the changes made should be organizational only. By Thursday, May 11, 2017, Defendants
shall file a notice to the docket indicating whether or not they object to any aspect of
Plaintiff's reorganized Statement of Material Facts. If so, the notice must detail the nature
of the objection. The Court further notes that at the Calendar Call scheduled for June 7,
2017 at 9:30am, the parties must be prepared to address the following issues: (i) The
number of days trial is expected to last; (ii)) How many jurors should be called up; (iii)
How many alternate jurors should be selected; and (iv) How many peremptory strikes
each party will have. The parties must meet and confer about these matters before
calendar call in an effort to reach agreement. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on
5/4/2017. (as00) (Entered: 05/04/2017)

05/04/2017

79

PAPERLESS Minute Entry for proceedings held before Judge Robin L. Rosenberg:
Motion Hearing held on 5/4/2017 re 66 MOTION for Summary Judgment (as to Counts
L Il & V) filed by Ken Mascara, 67 MOTION for Summary Judgment filed by
Christopher Newman. Total time in court: 1 hour(s) : 15 minutes. Attorney
Appearance(s): John Michael Phillips, Thomas Caldwell Roberts, Summer Marie
Barranco, Court Reporter: Pauline Stipes, 561-803-3434 /

Pauline Stipes@flsd.uscourts.gov. (mg) (Entered: 05/08/2017)

05/08/2017

Statement of: Amended Statement of Material Facts in Opposition fo The Motions for
Summary Judgment of Defendants by Viola Bryant re 66 MOTION for Summary
Judgment (as to Counts I, IIl & V), 67 MOTION for Summary Judgment (Attachments: #
1 Exhibit A- Deposition of Edward Lopez, # 2 Exhibit B - CAD Report, # 3 Exhibit C -
Medical Examiner's Report, # 4 Exhibit D - Deposition of Andrew Brown, # 5 Exhibit E
- Deposition of Stefani Mills, # 6 Exhibit F - Deposition of Lizabeth Enriquez-Ruiz, # 7
Exhibit G - Deposition of Joseph Hall, # 8 Exhibit H - Deposition of Juanita Wright, # 9
Exhibit I - Deposition of Lisa Mcguire, # 10 Exhibit J - Deposition of Donna Hellums, #
11 Exhibit K - Deposition of David Morales, # 12 Exhibit L - Deposition of Destiny Hill,
# 13 Exhibit M - Indian River Crime Lab Reports, # 14 Exhibit N - Deposition of
William Anderson, M.D., # 15 Exhibit O - Deposition of Roy Bedard, # 16 Exhibit P -
Deposition of Christopher Newman, # 17 Exhibit Q - Deposition of Brian Hester, # 18
Exhibit R - Deposition of Christopher Cicio, # 19 Exhibit S - Deposition of Wade
Courtemanche, # 20 Exhibit T - Deposition of Michael Gajewski)(Phillips, John)
(Entered: 05/08/2017)

05/09/2017

NOTICE of Attorney Appearance by John Michael Phillips on behalf of Viola Bryant
(Phillips, John) (Entered: 05/09/2017)

05/09/2017

82

PAPERLESS ORDER requiring the parties to file notices by 4:00pm on May 10, 2017
directing the Court to any evidence already cited in support of the parties' respective
motions for summary judgment which indicates how quickly the bullets fired by Deputy
Newman were fired. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 5/9/2017. (as00) (Entered:
05/09/2017)

05/10/2017

83

RESPONSE to 82 Order, by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman. (Barranco, Summer)
(Entered: 05/10/2017)

05/10/2017

84

NOTICE by Viola Bryant re 82 Order, Directing Court to Cited Evidence In Support of
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https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117906954
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https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117906957
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117906958
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117906959
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117906960
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117906961
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117906962
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117906963
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117906964
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117906965
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117906966
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117906967
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117906968
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117906969
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117906970
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117906971
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117906972
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117906973
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117910926
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117917503
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117917589

3/11/2019 CMI/ECEF - Live Database - flsd

ThsddrBel 3RPectDe e i AT@ABY 200 Motitrad@hil ipst 2elth) (Entered:
05/10/2017)

05/11/2017 85 | NOTICE by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman re 80 Statement,,,,, of Objection
(Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 05/11/2017)

05/12/2017 86 | NOTICE by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman of Filing Defendants' Designation of
Deposition Excerpts (Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 05/12/2017)

05/12/2017 87 | NOTICE by Viola Bryant of Filing Plaintiff’s Designation of Deposition Excerpts
(Phillips, John) (Entered: 05/12/2017)

05/12/2017 88 | PAPERLESS NOTICE regarding 85 Plaintiff's Notice of Objections to Plaintiff's
Amended Statement of Material Facts. The Court instructed in its Order that the changes
in Plaintiff's Amended Statement of Material Facts were to be "organizational only."
Accordingly, the Court will not consider the statement that Plaintiff has learned of a
subsequentclaim of excessive force against Deputy Newman which was not otherwise
disclosed," which is repeated in paragraphs 39, 49, and 50. Signed by Judge Robin L.
Rosenberg on 5/12/2017. (as00) (Entered: 05/12/2017)

05/12/2017 89 | PRETRIAL STIPULATION by Viola Bryant (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit "A" Plaintiff's
Exhibit and Witness List, # 2 Exhibit "B" Defendants' Exhibit and Witness List)(Phillips,
John) (Entered: 05/12/2017)

05/13/2017 90 | PAPERLESS ORDER noting that the parties' Joint Pretrial Stipulation includes, in the
"Undisposed of Motions" section, several motions in limine designated "to be filed."
However, the motions deadline passed on March 31, 2017. While the March 31, 2017
deadline set in the 63 Paperless Order is styled a "dispositive motions deadline," all of the
scheduling orders in this case since the initial scheduling order entered by Judge Lynch
on May 11, 2016 have included only a single motions deadline applicable to all pretrial
motions including dispositive motions, motions in limine, and Daubert motions.
Moreover, trial in this case is set to begin June 12, 2017. Even if the motions in limine
were filed on Monday May 15, 2017, they would not be ripe until four business days
before the start of trial. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 5/13/2017. (as00)
(Entered: 05/13/2017)

05/16/2017 91 | ORDER granting in part and denying in part 66 Motion for Summary Judgment filed by
Defendant Mascara; denying 67 Motion for Summary Judgment filed by Defendant
Newman. The Court hereby requires that the parties jointly contact Judge Brannon's
chambers on or before Thursday May 18, 2017 at 5:00 pm to schedule a settlement
conference in this matter. The settlement conference is to be held no later than June 2,
2017. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 5/16/2017. (mc) (Entered: 05/16/2017)

05/18/2017 92 | PAPERLESS ORDER requiring that the parties confer and submit a joint notice
estimating the length of the trial to be held in this case on or before May 19, 2017 at
12:00pm. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 5/18/2017. (as00) (Entered:
05/18/2017)

05/18/2017 93 | Joint NOTICE by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman re 92 Order in Response to Court
Order (Barranco, Summer) Modified title text on 5/19/2017 (asl). (Entered: 05/18/2017)

05/18/2017 94 | ORDER SCHEDULING SETTLEMENT CONFERENCE BEFORE U.S.
MAGISTRATE JUDGE (Settlement Conference set for 6/2/2017 10:00 AM in West Palm
Beach Division before Magistrate Judge Dave Lee Brannon). Signed by Magistrate Judge
Dave Lee Brannon on 5/18/2017. (mc) (Entered: 05/19/2017)

05/25/2017 95 | MOTION to be Excused from Settlement Conference by Ken Mascara, Christopher
Newman. (Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 05/25/2017)
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https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117938610
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117751627
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117751651
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117949937
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https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117976787
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CAPERISESSA0R DER aten it IMI@E)70tbDe HRagsedlffoni 34Blement Conference.
Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 5/25/2017. (as00) (Entered: 05/25/2017)

05/30/2017

NOTICE by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman re 87 Notice (Other) of Counter
Deposition Designations and Objections to Plaintiff's Deposition Designations
(Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 05/30/2017)

06/01/2017

98

PAPERLESS ORDER requiring Plaintiff to file any objections to Defendants' 97 Counter
Deposition Designations by 5:00pm on June 2, 2017. Signed by Judge Robin L.
Rosenberg on 6/1/2017. (as00) (Entered: 06/01/2017)

06/01/2017

Plaintiff's MOTION to Bring Electronic Equipment into the courtroom by Viola Bryant.
Responses due by 6/15/2017 (Phillips, John) (Entered: 06/01/2017)

06/01/2017

100

PAPERLESS ORDER granting 99 Plaintift's Motion to Bring Electronic Equipment into
the Courtroom. Plaintiff's attorney, John M. Phillips, Esq., may use and bring his cell
phone and laptop computer to the Settlement Conference scheduled for Friday, June 2,
2017, at 10:00 A.M. Signed by U.S. Magistrate Judge Dave Lee Brannon on 6/1/2017.
(jrz) (Entered: 06/01/2017)

06/02/2017

Minute Entry for proceedings held before U.S. Magistrate Judge Dave Lee Brannon:
Settlement Conference held on 6/2/2017. John Phillips, Esq. present with Plaintiff and
decedent's fiancee. Summer Barranco, Esq. and Adam Fetterman, Esq. present with
Defendant Deputy Newman and defense representative Joe Belitzky. Negotiations held.
Case did not settle. (Digital/Time in Court: 10:07:48 / 2 hrs. 29 mins.) (jrz) (Entered:
06/02/2017)

06/02/2017

—
=
[\

NOTICE by Viola Bryant Objections to Defendants' Counter Deposition Designations
(Phillips, John) (Entered: 06/02/2017)

06/02/2017

—
]
|98

Notice of Interlocutory Appeal as to 91 Order on Motion for Summary Judgment,,, by
Christopher Newman. Filing fee $ 505.00 receipt number 113C-9785522. Within fourteen
days of the filing date of a Notice of Appeal, the appellant must complete the Eleventh
Circuit Transcript Order Form regardless of whether transcripts are being ordered
[Pursuant to FRAP 10(b)]. For information go to our FLSD website under Transcript
Information. (Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 06/02/2017)

06/04/2017

—
]
I~

MOTION to Stay Trial Pending Interlocutory Appeal by Ken Mascara, Christopher
Newman. Responses due by 6/19/2017 (Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 06/04/2017)

06/05/2017

Transmission of Notice of Appeal, Order under appeal and Docket Sheet to US Court of
Appeals re 103 Notice of Interlocutory Appeal, Notice has been electronically mailed.
(apz) (Entered: 06/05/2017)

06/05/2017

—
9]

Plaintiff's MOTION to Continue 7rial and Response in Opposition to Defendants' Motion
to Stay by Viola Bryant. Responses due by 6/19/2017 (Phillips, John) (Entered:
06/05/2017)

06/05/2017

—
=]
N

NOTICE by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman of Telephonic Appearance at Calendar
Call (Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 06/05/2017)

06/05/2017

—
S
~J

NOTICE by Viola Bryant Joint Trial Plan (Phillips, John) (Entered: 06/05/2017)

06/06/2017

—
[o2e]

NOTICE by Viola Bryant of Telephonic Appearance (Phillips, John) (Entered:
06/06/2017)

06/06/2017

109

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?120623321512596-L_1_0-1

PAPERLESS ORDER requiring that the parties be prepared to address 104 Defendants'
Motion to Stay Pending Appeal and 105 Plaintiff's Motion to Continue Trial and
Response in Opposition to Defendants' Motion to Stay Pending Appeal during the status
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https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118009954
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118013116
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118014147
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118015975
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118017416
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118011193
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118013116
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Corsterdree §30ar Jubmie FUFbDERARND &re aBadereby of@died, by 5:00pm today,
June 6, 2017, to file an expedited response to 105 Plaintiff's Motion to Continue Trial and
Response in Opposition to Defendants' Motion to Stay Pending Appeal. Signed by Judge
Robin L. Rosenberg on 6/6/2017. (as00) (Entered: 06/06/2017)

06/06/2017

—
—
(]

Proposed Jury Instructions by Viola Bryant. (Phillips, John) (Entered: 06/06/2017)

06/06/2017

—
—
—_—

RESPONSE in Opposition re 104 MOTION to Stay Trial Pending Interlocutory Appeal,
105 Plaintiff's MOTION to Continue 7rial and Response in Opposition to Defendants'
Motion to Stay filed by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman. Replies due by 6/13/2017.
(Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 06/06/2017)

06/07/2017

112

PAPERLESS Minute Entry for proceedings held before Judge Robin L. Rosenberg:
Calendar Call held on 6/7/2017. Total time in court: 15 minutes. Attorney Appearance(s):
John Michael Phillips, Summer Marie Barranco, Court Reporter: Pauline Stipes, 561-
803-3434 / Pauline_Stipes@flsd.uscourts.gov.

NOTICE OF NEW POLICY RE ELECTRONIC SUBMISSION OF EXHIBITS. Unless
otherwise ordered by the presiding Judge, Administrative Order 2016-70 directs that
within three (3) days of the conclusion of a proceeding, parties must file in the CMECF
system electronic versions of most documentary exhibits admitted into evidence
(excluding sealed exhibits in criminal cases), including photographs of non-documentary
physical exhibits. At the time of filing the electronic exhibits, the attorney for the filing
party shall complete and file a Certificate of Compliance Re Admitted Evidence.
Electronically filed exhibits are subject to CM/ECF Administrative Procedures, Section
6, Redaction of Personal Information, Privacy Policy, and Inappropriate Materials.
Failure to file the electronic exhibits and Notice of Compliance within three (3) days may
result in the imposition of sanctions. The Certificate of Compliance Re Admitted
Evidence, a Quick Reference Guide to Electronically Filing Trial Exhibits, and the full
text of Administrative Order 2016-70 can be found at the Courts website,
http://www.flsd.uscourts.gov (mg) (Entered: 06/07/2017)

06/07/2017

113

PAPERLESS ORDER memorializing the outcome of the status conference held on June
7,2017. On or before July 10, 2017, the parties shall file a joint status report addressing
the issues raised in Plaintiff's 105 Motion to Continue Trial and Response in Opposition
to Defendants' Motion to Stay Pending Appeal and in Defendants' 111 Response in
Opposition-namely, whether the proceedings should be stayed or the trial continued and
whether any additional discovery is appropriate and if so, the timeframe for conducting
such discovery. The joint status report shall clearly outline any areas of agreement.

Where there is disagreement, the parties shall clearly outline the matters which remain for
ruling and note their respective positions thereon. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg
on 6/7/2017. (as00) (Entered: 06/07/2017)

06/07/2017

—
—
I~

NOTICE by Viola Bryant of Serving Proposal for Settlement to Christopher Newman
(Phillips, John) (Entered: 06/07/2017)

06/07/2017

—
—
)]

NOTICE by Viola Bryant Of Serving Proposal for Settlement to Defendant Sheriff Ken
Mascara (Phillips, John) (Entered: 06/07/2017)

06/07/2017

—
—
N

Acknowledgment of Receipt of NOA from USCA re 103 Notice of Interlocutory Appeal,
filed by Christopher Newman. Date received by USCA: 6/5/2017. USCA Case Number:
17-12547-A. (apz) (Entered: 06/07/2017)

07/10/2017

—
—
~

NOTICE by Viola Bryant Joint Status Report (Phillips, John) (Entered: 07/10/2017)

07/10/2017

120

JOINT STATUS REPORT by Viola Bryant, Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman. (See
DE# 117 for image). (jas) (Entered: 07/11/2017)
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https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118013116
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118013116
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07/11/2017 118 | PAPERISESSI0R DER e tii@etf @0 SJSithaits' Matien 13S1hP P8nding Appeal. A stay
will be entered by separate order. This case shall be stayed pending Defendants' appeal
except that discovery will be re-opened for the sole purpose of allowing Plaintiff to
depose Earl Ritzline, a request Defendants do not oppose. Earl Ritzline's deposition shall
be conducted within 45 days of the date of this Order. Signed by Judge Robin L.
Rosenberg on 7/11/2017. (as00) (Entered: 07/11/2017)

07/11/2017 119 | PAPERLESS ORDER granting in part and denying in part 105 Plaintiff's Motion to
Continue Trial and Response in Opposition to Defendants' Motion to Stay Pending
Appeal. Discovery will be re-opened for the sole purpose of allowing Plaintiff to depose
Earl Ritzline, a request Defendants do not oppose. The parties shall complete Earl
Ritzline's deposition within the deadline set in the 118 Paperless Order. However, all
other requests for relief are denied, including Plaintiff's unopposed request to file motions
in limine following the resolution of Defendants' appeal. The Court notes that the present
appeal was taken shortly before trial and that the discovery and motions deadlines had
already passed. Once the Eleventh Circuit has completed its consideration of Defendants'
appeal, the Court will hold a status conference to set this case for a new trial docket.
Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 7/11/2017. (as00) (Entered: 07/11/2017)

07/11/2017 121 | Clerks Notice to Filer re 117 Notice (Other). Wrong Event Selected; ERROR - The Filer
selected the wrong event. The document was re-docketed by the Clerk, see DE# 120 . It
is not necessary to refile this document. (jas) (Entered: 07/11/2017)

ORDER STAYING CASE AND DIRECTING THE CLERK OF THE COURT TO
CLOSE THIS CASE FOR STATISTICAL PURPOSES. This case is STAYED pending
the outcome of Plaintiffs interlocutory appeal. Plaintiff shall immediately apprise the
Court of any change in the status of the appeal. The Clerk of the Court is directed to
CLOSE THIS CASE FOR STATISTICAL PURPOSES. This closure shall not affect the
merits of any partys claim. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 7/11/2017. (jas)

07/12/2017 1

[\

NOTICE: If there are sealed documents in this case, they may be unsealed after 1
year or as directed by Court Order, unless they have been designated to be
permanently sealed. See Local Rule 5.4 and Administrative Order 2014-69. (Entered:
07/12/2017)

07/28/2017 123 | Pursuant to F.R.A.P. 11(c), the Clerk of the District Court for the Southern District of
Florida certifies that the record is complete for purposes of this appeal re: 103 Notice of
Interlocutory Appeal, Appeal No. 17-12547-CC. The entire record on appeal is available
electronically. (apz) (Entered: 07/28/2017)

MANDATE of USCA (certified copy). AFFIRM Order of the district court with court's
opinion re 103 Notice of Interlocutory Appeal, filed by Christopher Newman; Date
Issued: 2/22/2018; USCA Case Number: 17-12547-CC. (apz) (Entered: 02/22/2018)

02/22/2018 125 | PAPERLESS ORDER Setting Status Conference for 3/2/2018 10:00 AM in West Palm
Beach Division before Judge Robin L. Rosenberg. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg
on 2/22/2018. (ege) (Entered: 02/22/2018)

02/22/2018

—
~

02/23/2018 126 | NOTICE by Viola Bryant of Telephonic Appearance (Phillips, John) (Entered:
02/23/2018)
02/23/2018 127 | NOTICE of Telephonic Appearance by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman re 125 Order

Setting Status Conference (Barranco, Summer) Modified text on 2/23/2018 (kpe).
(Entered: 02/23/2018)

03/02/2018 128 | PAPERLESS Minute Entry for proceedings held before Judge Robin L. Rosenberg:
Status Conference held on 3/2/2018. Total time in court: 30 minutes. Attorney
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AppeartdcbEBHO Pohn [Viish {dIGRbI HFQAFROhEer MazgaBdrtant@430urt Reporter: Pauline
Stipes, 561-803-3434 / Pauline_Stipes@flsd.uscourts.gov. (mg) (Entered: 03/02/2018)

03/02/2018 129 | PAPERLESS ORDER memorializing status conference held on March 2, 2018. By
March 7, 2018 at 5:00 p.m., the parties shall inform the Court of their positions regarding
having a settlement conference before a magistrate judge. This case is set for trial May,
16, 2018 in Fort Pierce and a back-up trial date of June 11, 2018 in Fort Pierce, if this
case cannot proceed on May 16. Calendar call is scheduled for May 7, 2018 at 9:30 a.m.
in West Palm Beach. Proposed jury instructions are due by May 9, 2018. By March 12,
2018 at 5:00 p.m. the parties shall file a joint amended trial plan. In this plan, the parties
shall notify the Court of any witness who is not available for either the May 16 or June 11
trial period. The parties shall indicate which trial period the witness is not available and
how the parties wish to proceed with each witness who will not be available, including
whether the party seeks to designate portions of a deposition or conduct a video
deposition. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 3/2/2018. (ege) (Entered:
03/02/2018)

NOTICE to Court Per Court's Order [DE 129] by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman re
129 Set Trial Management Order Deadlines, Set Scheduling Order Deadlines, Order
Lifting Stay,,.,yssss5595500 10 COURT PER COURTS ORDER [DE 129] (Barranco,
Summer) Modified text on 3/8/2018 (kpe). (Entered: 03/07/2018)

03/12/2018 131 | NOTICE of Joint Amended Trial Plan by Viola Bryant re 129 Set Trial Management
Order Deadlines,,,,, Set Scheduling Order Deadlines,,,,, Order Lifting Stay,...,,,,, Joint
Amended Trial Plan (Phillips, John) (Entered: 03/12/2018)

03/15/2018 132 | PAPERLESS ORDER. The Court is in receipt of 131 the parties' Joint Amended Trial
Plan, which indicates several witnesses who may be unavailable during the trial period.
Although the Court has placed the case on both the May 16 and June 11 trial periods, the
parties shall be prepared to proceed with the trial on May 16. In its March 2, 2018 Order,
the Court stated that "the parties [shall indicate how they] wish to proceed with each
witness who will not be available, including whether the party seeks to designate portions
of a deposition or conduct a video deposition." Accordingly, the parties shall file a Notice
by March 20, 2018 indicating how the parties have resolved to handle each witness who
may not be available for the trial period, as the Court wants to ensure there are no last
minute issues. Additionally, the Court was under the impression that the parties were
going to resolve the issue related to Plaintiff's witness, Stefani Mills. If the parties have
resolved the issue, they shall include the resolution in their Notice due by March 20,
2018. If the parties have not resolved the issue, Plaintiff shall file a Motion requesting
whatever relief she seeks from the Court. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on
3/15/2018. (ege) (Entered: 03/15/2018)

03/15/2018 Set/Reset Deadlines/Hearings Jury Trial set for 5/16/2018 in Fort Pierce Division before
Judge Robin L. Rosenberg. (ege) (Entered: 03/15/2018)

03/07/2018

—
)
(]

03/19/2018 133 | Case Reassignment of Paired Magistrate Judge pursuant to Administrative Order(s) 2018-
15 to Magistrate Judge Bruce E. Reinhart. Magistrate Judge James M. Hopkins no longer
assigned to case. (jmd) (Entered: 03/19/2018)

03/20/2018 134 | NOTICE of Compliance with Court's Order Dated March 15, 2018 by Viola Bryant re
132 Order,,,,,, Order Reopening Case,,,,,, Order Lifting Stay,,,,, (Phillips, John) (Entered:
03/20/2018)

03/21/2018 135 | Plaintiff's MOTION to Take Deposition from Stefani Mills by Videography by Viola

Bryant. (Phillips, John) (Entered: 03/21/2018)
03/21/2018 136 | PAPERLESS ORDER expediting briefing on 135 Plaintiff's Motion for Authorization to
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CeagretdBeTR9 Testnainy(R@ WABOMAG16f Uridsigitalil® WidSs, Stefani Mills.
Response due by 3/23/18. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 3/21/2018. (ege)
(Entered: 03/21/2018)

03/23/2018

RESPONSE in Opposition re 135 Plaintiff's MOTION to Take Deposition from Stefani
Mills by Videography filed by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman. Attorney Matthew
Joseph Wildner added to party Ken Mascara(pty:dft), Attorney Matthew Joseph Wildner
added to party Christopher Newman(pty:dft). Replies due by 3/30/2018. (Wildner,
Matthew) (Entered: 03/23/2018)

03/26/2018

138

PAPERLESS ORDER denying 135 Plaintiff's Motion for Authorization to Perpetuate
Trial Testimony by Videography of Unavailable Witness, Stefani Mills, for the reasons
set forth in 137 Defendants Sheriff and Newman's Response in Opposition to Plaintiff's
Motion for Authorization to Perpetuate Trial Testimony by Videography of Unavailable
Witness, Stefani Mills. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 3/26/2018. (ege)
(Entered: 03/26/2018)

03/26/2018

139

In the parties' Joint Trial Plan, the parties state that they "will notify the Court of any
potential witness availability issues with the above referenced witnesses upon notification
by witness and how the parties have resolved to handle each witness. If the parties can
not resolve the issue [the parties] will file the appropriate Motion with the Court seeking
the relief requested." Any motions seeking the Court's relief with respect to the
unavailability of these witnesses must be filed by 4/9/18. Designations of deposition
testimony shall be filed by 4/16/18. Counter-designations of deposition testimony and
objections to designations of deposition testimony shall be filed by 4/20/18. Objections to
counter-designations of deposition testimony and responses to objections to designations
of deposition testimony shall be filed by 4/25/18. Objections to counter-designations of
deposition testimony and responses to objections to designations of deposition testimony
shall be filed by 4/30/18.The Court's procedure regarding deposition designations is
below: First, the parties are ordered to provide the Court with a deposition designation
notebook. This notebook must be delivered to Chambers on the same day that the parties'
jury instructions or proposed findings and conclusions are due. Second, the notebook (or
notebooks) must contain the full deposition transcript for each designated witness. Third,
the designated (or counter-designated) testimony for each witness must be highlighted
and easy to locate and identify. Fourth, objections to the designated testimony must be
supplemented with an appendix that contains detailed legal argument explaining the
objections, together with a response from the opposing party. Fifth and finally, an
objection to designated testimony may only be raised after a full, reasonable conferral
between the parties on the issue in dispute as more fully set forth below. Deposition
designation objections must be accompanied by a certification, by the party objecting,
that: (i) the parties have conferred on the objection, (ii) the objection is raised in good
faith, (iii) the objection raises an issue that the parties, working together as professionals,
cannot resolve without court intervention, and (iv) the expenditure of judicial labor is the
only avenue by which the dispute may be resolved. The Court will carefully consider all
of the objections brought to its attention. In the event the Court concludes that a
designating party or counsel, or an objecting party or counsel, has failed "to secure the
just, speedy, and inexpensive determination of every action and proceeding," the Court
may consider sanctions, as appropriate. Similarly, if the Court concludes that objections
to designations must be ruled upon contemporaneously with the reading of designated
testimony at trial because of a party or counsel's failure to comply with this Order, the
Court may consider sanctions, as appropriate. The parties shall file a joint trial plan that
complies with the requirements in the Court's Order Setting Status Conference, Calendar
Call, and Trial Date by 5/3/18. DE 8 at 4-5. Jury instructions must be filed by 5/9/18.
Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 3/26/2018. (ege) (Entered: 03/26/2018)
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CAQF108 TEYEXCLUMNE BREMIFABJ2DIS TESHMONYT ATIRIAL by Ken
Mascara, Christopher Newman. (Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 04/10/2018)

04/10/2018

141

PAPERLESS ORDER expediting briefing on 140 Defendant's MOTION TO EXCLUDE
JEREMIAH HILL'S TESTIMONY AT TRIAL. Response due by 4/12/2018 at 5:00 p.m.
Reply due by 4/16/2018 at 5:00 p.m. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 4/10/2018.
(ege) (Entered: 04/10/2018)

04/12/2018

RESPONSE to Motion re 140 MOTION TO EXCLUDE JEREMIAH HILLS
TESTIMONY AT TRIAL filed by Viola Bryant. Replies due by 4/19/2018. (Phillips,
John) (Entered: 04/12/2018)

04/16/2018

NOTICE by Viola Bryant re 87 Notice (Other) of Plaintiff’s Supplemental Designation of
Deposition Excerpts (Phillips, John) (Entered: 04/16/2018)

04/16/2018

—
I~

RESPONSE in Support re 140 MOTION TO EXCLUDE JEREMIAH HILLS
TESTIMONY AT TRIAL filed by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman. (Barranco,
Summer) (Entered: 04/16/2018)

04/16/2018

—
~
]

NOTICE by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman of Filing Updated Designation of
Deposition Excerpts (Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 04/16/2018)

04/17/2018

—
I~
N

NOTICE by Viola Bryant re 143 Notice (Other) Amended Supplemental Designation of
Deposition Excerpts (Phillips, John) (Entered: 04/17/2018)

04/18/2018

—
~J

ORDER DENYING WITHOUT PREJUDICE DEFENDANTS 140 MOTION TO
EXCLUDE JEREMIAH HILLS TESTIMONY AT TRIAL. Signed by Judge Robin L.
Rosenberg on 4/18/2018. (kpe) (Entered: 04/18/2018)

04/19/2018

—
o0

Unopposed MOTION Request for Non-Party Witness to Testify at Trial by
Contemporaneous Video Conference by Viola Bryant. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit "A")
(Phillips, John) (Entered: 04/19/2018)

04/20/2018

—
~
Nel

NOTICE by Viola Bryant re 145 Notice (Other) of Counter Designations and Objections
to Defendants' Updated Designation of Deposition Excerpts (Phillips, John) (Entered:
04/20/2018)

04/20/2018

NOTICE by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman re 146 Notice (Other), 87 Notice
(Other) Counter Deposition Designations and Objections to Plaintiff's Deposition
Designations (Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 04/20/2018)

04/23/2018

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF SERVICE on Subpoena to Appear and Testify at a Hearing
or Trial as to Stefani Mills. (kpe) (Entered: 04/24/2018)

04/24/2018

152

PAPERLESS ORDER granting 148 Plaintiff's Unopposed Request for Non-Party Witness
to Testify at Trial by Contemporaneous Video Conference from Another Location.
Plaintiff shall contact the Court's IT specialist, Ricardo Gerena, at 561-803-3730 to set up
the logistics of having the witness appear by video during the trial. The Court notes that
Plaintiff shall be prepared to proceed through the use of deposition testimony if for any
reason the witness cannot appear via video during the trial. Signed by Judge Robin L.
Rosenberg on 4/24/2018. (ege) (Entered: 04/24/2018)

04/25/2018

—
|8

NOTICE by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman re 149 Notice (Other) Counter
Deposition Designations and Objections to Plaintiff's Deposition Designations and
Responses to Plaintiff's Objections (Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 04/25/2018)

05/01/2018

154

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?120623321512596-L_1_0-1

PAPERLESS ORDER. The parties' deposition designation notebook, which is due by
5/9/18, shall be delivered to Chambers in West Palm Beach. The Court also notes that the
parties may appear telephonically at the calendar call set for 5/7/18 in West Palm Beach.
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Gastenclidrnb 300 2ppedrate RAR2AEANOS) 215 folRege (PRPMéRESall five (5) minutes
prior to the Calendar Call; (2) The toll-free number is: 1 (877) 873-8018; (3) The access
code is: 9890482; (4) The security code is: 4008. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg
on 5/1/2018. (ege) (Entered: 05/01/2018)

05/02/2018

—
]

NOTICE of Attorney Appearance by Gregory James Jolly on behalf of Ken Mascara,
Christopher Newman. Attorney Gregory James Jolly added to party Ken
Mascara(pty:dft), Attorney Gregory James Jolly added to party Christopher
Newman(pty:dft). (Jolly, Gregory) (Entered: 05/02/2018)

05/03/2018

[—
N
N

NOTICE by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman of Telephonic Appearance at Calendar
Call scheduled for Monday, May 7, 2018 (Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 05/03/2018)

NOTICE by Viola Bryant re 139 Order,,,,,,,,,»,, Joint Second Amended Trial Plan
(Phillips, John) (Entered: 05/03/2018)

NOTICE by Viola Bryant of Telephonic Appearance (Phillips, John) (Entered:
05/04/2018)

NOTICE by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman Defendants' Designation of Karen
Stephens' Deposition Excerpts (Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 05/04/2018)

PRETRIAL STIPULATION Updated by Viola Bryant (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit "A"
Plaintiff's Amended Exhibit and Witness List, # 2 Exhibit Defs' Second Amended Exhibit
and Witness List)(Phillips, John) (Entered: 05/04/2018)

NOTICE of Attorney Appearance by John Michael Phillips on behalf of Viola Bryant
(Phillips, John) (Entered: 05/05/2018)

05/07/2018 162 | PAPERLESS Minute Entry for proceedings held before Judge Robin L. Rosenberg: Final
Pretrial Conference held on 5/7/2018. Total time in court: 45 minutes. Court Reporter:
Pauline Stipes, 561-803-3434 / Pauline Stipes@flsd.uscourts.gov. (mg) (Entered:
05/07/2018)

05/07/2018 163 | PAPERLESS ORDER. Trial will now begin on Thursday, May 17, 2018, not on
Wednesday May 16, 2018. The Court overlooked three sentencings on May 16, 2018 that
it is reluctant to reschedule. The following are due by 5/10/18: (1) The parties' proposed
jury instructions and verdict form. The parties shall submit one copy of the jury
instructions and they should be in the order that they will be read to the jurors. The
parties shall indicate any instructions that are disputed. (2) The parties' deposition
designation notebook and joint trial notebook are due to Chambers in West Palm Beach.
(3) Given Plaintiff' representation during the Calendar Call that Plaintiff will file a motion
to strike one of Defendants' witnesses, Defendants shall try to respond by 5/10/18. If
Defendants cannot respond fully by 5/10/18, Defendants shall respond as fully as
possible and if not all issues can be addressed in the response, Defendants shall indicate
how much time they need to respond and indicating what remaining issues they need to
address. (4) The parties shall file a list of any agreed upon questions for the venire that
they would like the Court to consider including in its juror questionnaire. (5) The parties
shall file an agreed statement of the case that the Court will read to the venire. (6) The
parties shall file an amended joint trial plan, narrowing the number of witnesses if
possible and indicating which witnesses will be called by Plaintiff, which will be called
by Defendants, and which will be called by both Plaintiff and Defendants. (7) The parties
shall file amended exhibit and witness lists that eliminate objections that the parties have
worked out and eliminate exhibits that the parties are not going to use during trial. The
Court reiterates the importance of counsel working together to resolve disputes relating to
exhibits and all other matters that may affect the conduct of the trial. Signed by Judge
Robin L. Rosenberg on 5/7/2018. (ege) (Entered: 05/07/2018)

05/03/2018

—
93]
~

05/04/2018

—
[oe]

05/04/2018

—
N

05/04/2018

—
)

05/05/2018

[a—
—_
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05/07/2018 Raset H&afiggoORer 165 r{RR YA el for SAHAGH) 13Defazd Judge Robin L.
Rosenberg. (asl) (Entered: 05/07/2018)

05/07/2018 164 | Plaintiff's MOTION to Exclude Deposition Testimony of Deputy Karen Stephens for Use
at Trial by Viola Bryant. (Phillips, John) (Entered: 05/07/2018)

05/07/2018 165 | NOTICE by Viola Bryant re 159 Notice (Other) of Objections and Counter Designation
to Defendants' Designation of Karen Stephens' Deposition Excerpts (Phillips, John)
(Entered: 05/07/2018)

05/10/2018 166 | Proposed Voir Dire Questions by Viola Bryant. (Phillips, John) (Entered: 05/10/2018)

05/10/2018 167 | Plaintiff's MOTION to Bring Electronic Equipment into the courtroom for Use at Trial
by Viola Bryant. Responses due by 5/24/2018 (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Proposed Order)
(Phillips, John) (Entered: 05/10/2018)

05/10/2018 168 | Unopposed MOTION for Extension of Time to submit the Joint Trial Notebook and
Defendants' Deposition Designation Notebook by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman.
Responses due by 5/24/2018 (Jolly, Gregory) (Entered: 05/10/2018)

05/10/2018 169 | NOTICE by Viola Bryant re 163 Order,,,,,,, Joint Third Amended Trial Plan (Phillips,

John) (Entered: 05/10/2018)

05/10/2018 170 | PAPERLESS ORDER granting 168 Defendants' Unopposed Motion for Extension of
Time to Submit the Joint Trial Notebook and Defendants' Deposition Designation
Notebook. Joint Trial Notebook and Defendants' Deposition Designation Notebook due
by 4:30 p.m. today, May 10, 2018. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 5/10/2018.
(ege) (Entered: 05/10/2018)

05/10/2018 171 | MOTION to Allow the Use of Electronic Equipment and Communication Devices
During Trial by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman. (Barranco, Summer) (Entered:
05/10/2018)

05/10/2018 172 | PAPERLESS ORDER. The Court is in receipt of Plaintiff's Proposed Voir Dire
Questions. DE 166. It appears that page 2 of the proposed questions is missing.
Accordingly, Plaintiff shall file the Amended Proposed Voir Dire Questions by 5:00 p.m.
today, May 10, 2018, if Plaintiff would like the Court to consider adding the questions to
its Juror Questionnaire. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 5/10/2018. (ege)
(Entered: 05/10/2018)

05/10/2018 173 | ORDER GRANTING PLAINTIFFS 167 MOTION TO ALLOW ELECTRONIC
EQUIPMENT IN COURTROOM FOR USE AT TRIAL Signed by Judge Robin L.
Rosenberg on 5/10/2018. (kpe) (Entered: 05/10/2018)

05/10/2018 174 | RESPONSE in Opposition re 164 Plaintiff's MOTION to Exclude Deposition Testimony
of Deputy Karen Stephens for Use at Trial filed by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman.
Replies due by 5/17/2018. (Jolly, Gregory) (Entered: 05/10/2018)

05/10/2018 175 | Proposed Voir Dire Questions by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman. (Barranco,
Summer) (Entered: 05/10/2018)

05/10/2018 176 | Proposed Jury Instructions by Viola Bryant. (Phillips, John) (Entered: 05/10/2018)

05/10/2018 177 | PRETRIAL STIPULATION (JOINT) by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit, # 2 Exhibit)(Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 05/10/2018)

05/10/2018 178 | Proposed Voir Dire Questions by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman. (Barranco,

Summer) (Entered: 05/10/2018)

05/10/2018 1

\O

Proposed Voir Dire Questions by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman. (Barranco,
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05/11/2018

—
o0
(]

PAPERLESS ORDER. The Court notes the parties' Proposed Joint Questions for the

Venire. DE 179. The final Juror Questionnaire that the Court will use is attached to this
Order. The Court notes, however, that this does not preclude Counsel from asking their
proposed questions in their respective fifteen minutes of voir dire following the Courts

voir dire, which will be based on the attached Juror Questionnaire. Signed by Judge
Robin L. Rosenberg on 5/11/2018. (ege) (Entered: 05/11/2018)

05/12/2018

[a—
—_—

NOTICE by Viola Bryant Bench Memorandum in Support of Plaintiff's Objection to
Defendants' Exhibit Numbers 168, 169 and 170 (Phillips, John) (Entered: 05/12/2018)

05/12/2018

—
[\S]

NOTICE by Viola Bryant Bench Memorandum in Support of Pl's Objection to Defs’
Exhibit Numbers 228-230 & 361-368 (Phillips, John) (Entered: 05/12/2018)

05/12/2018

—
|98)

NOTICE by Viola Bryant Bench Memorandum in Support of Pl's Objection to Defs'
Exhibit Number 27 (Phillips, John) (Entered: 05/12/2018)

05/12/2018

—
o0

NOTICE by Viola Bryant Bench Memorandum in Support of Pl's Objection to Defs'
Exhibit Numbers 24 and 25 (Phillips, John) (Entered: 05/12/2018)

05/12/2018

—_
N

NOTICE by Viola Bryant Bench Memorandun in Support of Pl's Objection to Defs'
Introduction of Evidence as to Mr.Hill's Intoxication (Phillips, John) (Entered:
05/12/2018)

05/12/2018

—
o0
N

NOTICE by Viola Bryant Bench Memorandum in Support of Pl's Objection to Defs'
Introduction of Evidence regarding Mr. Hill's Probationary Status (Phillips, John)
(Entered: 05/12/2018)

05/14/2018

187

PAPERLESS ORDER requiring responses to 181 Bench Memorandum in Support of
Plaintiff's Objection to Defendants' Exhibit Numbers 168, 169, and 170 as Listed on
Defendants' Third Amended Exhibit and Witness List; 182 Bench Memorandum in
Support of Plaintiff's Objection to Defendants' Exhibit Numbers 228-230 and 361-368 on
Defendants' Third Amended Exhibit and Witness List; 183 Bench Memorandum in
Support of Plaintiff's Objection to Defendants' Exhibit Number Twenty Seven as Listed
on Defendants' Third Amended Exhibit and Witness List; 184 Bench Memorandum in
Support of Plaintift's Objection to Defendants' Exhibit Numbers Twenty-Four and
Twenty Five as Listed on Defendants' Third Amended Exhibit and Witness List; 185
Bench Memorandum in Support of Plaintiff's Objection to Defendants' Introduction of
Evidence of Mr. Hill's Intoxication at the Time of the Subject Incident; and 186 Bench
Memorandum in Support of Plaintiff's Objection to Defendants' Introduction of Evidence
Regarding Mr. Hill's Probationary Status at the Time of Incident. Responses due by
5/15/18 at 5:00 p.m. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 5/14/2018. (ege) (Entered:
05/14/2018)

05/14/2018

—
[oe]
(0]

NOTICE by Viola Bryant Bench Memorandum in Support of Pl's Objection to Defs’
Introduction of Exhibit Number 30 (Phillips, John) (Entered: 05/14/2018)

05/14/2018

ORDER DENYING WITHOUT PREJUDICE PLAINTIFFS 164 MOTION TO
EXCLUDE DEPOSITION TESTIMONY OF KAREN STEPHENS FOR USE AT
TRIAL. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 5/14/2018. (kpe) (Entered: 05/15/2018)

05/15/2018

189

PAPERLESS ORDER requiring response to 188 Plaintiff's Bench Memorandum in
Support of Plaintiff's Objection to Defendants' Introduction of Exhibit Number 30
Pursuant to Defendant's Third Amended Exhibit and Witness List by 5:00 p.m. today,
5/15/18. Defendants shall also file the exhibits to which Plaintiff filed notices of
objections in docket entries 181, 182, 183, 184, 185, 186, and 188. Signed by Judge
Robin L. Rosenberg on 5/15/2018. (ege) (Entered: 05/15/2018)
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CAPERISESSA0R DER aten {5t (1FB)A6 1 lice Prdendamnts IS ff and Newman's
Motion to Allow the Use of Electronic Equipment and Communication Devices During
Trial. The Motion does not contain the necessary information. The parties should
reference http://www.flsd.uscourts.gov/sites/flsd/files/JudgeRosenberg-Sample-Order-
Permitting-Equipment.pdf for a sample order granting a motion to allow electronic
equipment in courtroom for use at trial. The parties may contact the Clerk's Office in Fort
Pierce at 772-467-2300 to inquire what electronic equipment is in the courtroom and,
thus, does not need to be brought by the parties. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on
5/15/2018. (ege) (Entered: 05/15/2018)

05/15/2018

—
[\

MOTION To Allow Unloaded Firearm in Courtroom as an Exhibit During Trial by Ken
Mascara, Christopher Newman. (Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 05/15/2018)

05/15/2018

193

PAPERLESS ORDER requiring a response to 192 Defendants Sheriff and Newman's
Motion to Allow Unloaded Firearm in Courtroom as an Exhibit During Trial. Response
due by 12:00 p.m. on 5/16/18. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 5/15/2018. (ege)
(Entered: 05/15/2018)

05/15/2018

—_—
N

MOTION to Bring Electronic Equipment into the courtroom for Use During Trial by Ken
Mascara, Christopher Newman. Responses due by 5/29/2018 (Attachments: # 1 Text of
Proposed Order)(Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 05/15/2018)

05/15/2018

NOTICE by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman re 188 Notice (Other), 185 Notice
(Other), 181 Notice (Other), 183 Notice (Other), 184 Notice (Other), 186 Notice (Other),
182 Notice (Other) of Omnibus Response to Plaintiff's Bench Memoranda (Attachments:
# 1 Exhibit, # 2 Exhibit) (Jolly, Gregory) (Entered: 05/15/2018)

05/15/2018

—
N

NOTICE by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman re 189 Order, of Filing Exhibits
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit, # 2 Exhibit, # 3 Exhibit, # 4 Exhibit, # 5 Exhibit, # 6 Exhibit,
# 7 Exhibit, # 8 Exhibit, # 9 Exhibit, # 10 Exhibit, # 11 Exhibit, # 12 Exhibit, # 13
Exhibit, # 14 Exhibit, # 15 Exhibit, # 16 Exhibit, # 17 Exhibit, # 18 Exhibit, # 19 Exhibit,
# 20 Exhibit, # 21 Exhibit) (Jolly, Gregory) (Entered: 05/15/2018)

05/15/2018

—
~

ORDER GRANTING DEFENDANTS SHERIFF AND NEWMANS 194 MOTION TO
ALLOW THE USE OF ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT AND COMMUNICATION
DURING TRIAL. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 5/15/2018. (kpe) (Entered:
05/16/2018)

05/16/2018

RESPONSE in Opposition re 192 MOTION To Allow Unloaded Firearm in Courtroom
as an Exhibit During Trial filed by Viola Bryant. Replies due by 5/23/2018.
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit "A")(Phillips, John) (Entered: 05/16/2018)

05/16/2018

NOTICE by Viola Bryant Bench Memorandum in Support of Pl's Objection to Defs’
Introduction of Evidence Regarding Mr. Hill Playing Poker (Phillips, John) (Entered:
05/16/2018)

05/16/2018

PAPERLESS ORDER requiring reply to 198 Plaintiff's Response in Opposition to
Defendant's Motion to Allow Unloaded Firearm as an Exhibit During Trial. Signed by
Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 5/16/2018. (ege) (Entered: 05/16/2018)

05/16/2018

201

AMENDED PAPERLESS ORDER requiring reply to 198 Plaintiff's Response in
Opposition to Defendant's Motion to Allow Unloaded Firearm as an Exhibit During Trial
by 5/16/18 at 5:00 p.m. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 5/16/2018. (ege)
(Entered: 05/16/2018)

05/16/2018

[\
S
[\

NOTICE by Viola Bryant re 195 Notice (Other), P!'s Reply to Defs' Omnibus Response to
Pl's Bench Memoranda (Phillips, John) (Entered: 05/16/2018)

05/16/2018

203

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?120623321512596-L_1_0-1

ORDER granting in part and deferring ruling in part on 192 Defendants Sheriff and
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Cesend¥sMe6an toDdie wAGabdAEAIF)izedreh in Ragetr@énohL#iB Exhibit During Trial.
Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 5/16/2018. (ege) (Entered: 05/16/2018)

05/16/2018 204 | NOTICE of Attorney Appearance by Bruce Wallace Jolly on behalf of Ken Mascara,
Christopher Newman. Attorney Bruce Wallace Jolly added to party Ken
Mascara(pty:dft), Attorney Bruce Wallace Jolly added to party Christopher
Newman(pty:dft). (Jolly, Bruce) (Entered: 05/16/2018)

05/16/2018 205 | REPLY to Response to Motion re 192 MOTION To Allow Unloaded Firearm in

Courtroom as an Exhibit During Trial filed by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman.
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A, # 2 Exhibit B, # 3 Exhibit C, # 4 Exhibit D, # 5 Exhibit E, #
6 Exhibit F, # 7 Exhibit G, # 8 Exhibit H, # 9 Exhibit I)(Barranco, Summer) (Entered:
05/16/2018)

05/17/2018 206 | NOTICE by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman of Filing Exhibit 26 (Attachments: # 1
Exhibit) (Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 05/17/2018)

05/17/2018 207 | PAPERLESS ORDER. By 11:59 p.m. on 5/18/18, Plaintiff shall file a supplement to
docket entry 188 specifically explaining her objection to Defendants' Exhibit 30. By
11:59 p.m. on 5/18/18, Defendants shall file a response to docket entry 199 Plaintiff's
objection to Defendants' introduction of evidence that Mr. Hill was playing poker on the
date of the incident. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 5/17/2018. (ege) (Entered:
05/17/2018)

05/17/2018 209 | PAPERLESS Minute Entry for proceedings held before Judge Robin L. Rosenberg: Jury
Selection/Voir Dire held on 5/17/2018, Jury Trial begun on 5/17/2018. Total time in
court: 10 hour(s) : 30 minutes. Court Reporter: Pauline Stipes, 561-803-3434 /
Pauline_Stipes@flsd.uscourts.gov. (mg) (Entered: 05/18/2018)

05/18/2018 208 | PAPERLESS ORDER requiring Defendants to respond to Plaintiff's supplement to
docket entry 188 regarding Defendants' Exhibit 30 by 9:00 a.m. on May 21, 2018. Signed
by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 5/18/2018. (ege) (Entered: 05/18/2018)

05/18/2018 210 | NOTICE by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman re 207 Order, 199 Notice (Other)
Defendants' Response to Plaintiff’'s Bench Memoranda in Support of Plaintiff's
Objections to Defendants' Introduction of Evidence regarding Mr. Hill Playing Poker on
the date of the Subject Incident [DE199] (Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 05/18/2018)

05/18/2018 211 | NOTICE by Viola Bryant re 188 Notice (Other) Supplemental Memorandum in Support

of Pl's Objection to Defs' Introduction of Exhibit Number 30 (Phillips, John) (Entered:
05/18/2018)

05/18/2018 214 | RESPONSE to 199 Notice (Other)/Bench Memoranda In Support Plaintiff's Objection to
Defendant's Introduction of Evidence by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman. (kpe) See
DE [ 210] for image. (Entered: 05/21/2018)

05/18/2018 217 | PAPERLESS Minute Entry for proceedings held before Judge Robin L. Rosenberg: Jury
Trial held on 5/18/2018. Day 2. Total time in court: 8 hour(s) : 30 minutes. Court
Reporter: Pauline Stipes, 561-803-3434 / Pauline_Stipes@flsd.uscourts.gov. (mg)
(Entered: 05/21/2018)

05/20/2018 212 | NOTICE by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman re 208 Order, 211 Notice (Other)
Response to Plaintiff's Supplemental Memorandum regarding Defendants' Exhibit 30
(Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 05/20/2018)

05/20/2018 213 | Proposed Jury Instructions by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman. (Barranco, Summer)

(Entered: 05/20/2018)
05/20/2018 215 | RESPONSE to 211 Notice (Other)/ Plaintiff's Supplemental Memorandum regarding
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Cefendanitd IAHibit Ty KRAadATAR) ACHirgstopReigNe®han 268 DE 212 for image.
(kpe) (Entered: 05/21/2018)

05/21/2018 216 | Clerks Notice to Filer re 210 Notice (Other), 211 Notice (Other). Wrong Event Selected;
ERROR - The Filer selected the wrong event. The document was re-docketed by the
Clerk, see DE 215 Response/Reply (Other), 214 Response/Reply (Other). It is not
necessary to refile this document. (kpe) (Entered: 05/21/2018)

05/21/2018 218 | PAPERLESS Minute Entry for proceedings held before Judge Robin L. Rosenberg: Jury
Trial held on 5/21/2018. Day 3. Total time in court: 10 hour(s) : 30 minutes. Court
Reporter: Pauline Stipes, 561-803-3434 / Pauline_Stipes@flsd.uscourts.gov. (mg)
(Entered: 05/22/2018)

05/22/2018 219 | Court's First Draft Jury Instructions. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 5/22/2018.
(ege) (Entered: 05/22/2018)

05/22/2018 220 | NOTICE by Viola Bryant re 213 Proposed Jury Instructions Pl's Objection to Defs'
Special Jury Instruction [DE213] (Phillips, John) (Entered: 05/22/2018)

05/23/2018 221 | Court's Second Draft Jury Instructions. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on
5/23/2018. (ege) (Entered: 05/23/2018)

05/23/2018 222 | Court's Third Draft Jury Instructions. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 5/23/2018.
(ege) (Entered: 05/23/2018)

05/25/2018 223 | JURY VERDICT. (mg) (Additional attachment(s) added on 5/25/2018: # 1 Restricted
Unredacted Jury Note/Verdict) (mg). (Entered: 05/25/2018)

05/25/2018 224 | Court's Final Jury Instructions. (kpe) (Entered: 05/25/2018)

05/25/2018 225 | Jury Notes. (mg) (Additional attachment(s) added on 5/25/2018: # 1 Restricted
Unredacted Jury Note/Verdict) (mg). (Entered: 05/25/2018)

05/25/2018 226 | Plaintiff's Second Amended Exhibit and Witness List by Viola Bryant.(kpe) (Entered:
05/25/2018)

05/25/2018 227 | Defendants' Third Amended Exhibit and Witness List by Ken Mascara, Christopher
Newman.. (kpe) (Entered: 05/25/2018)

05/30/2018 228 | TRIAL EXHIBITS Plaintiff's 7, 17, 18, 22, 27, 28, 33, 38, 45, 50, 55, 75, 76, 81, 92, 94,

98, 101, 104, 106, 107, 112, 115, 117, 123, 124, 141, 143, 148, 151, 152, 163, 165, 168,
169, 171, 172, 173, 174, 175, 179, 186, 188, 189, 196 by Viola Bryant. (Attachments: # 1
Certification of Compliance Re Admitted Evidence, # 2 Exhibit 7, # 3 Exhibit 17, # 4
Exhibit 18, # 5 Exhibit 22, # 6 Exhibit 27, # 7 Exhibit 28, # 8 Exhibit 33, # 9 Exhibit 38,
# 10 Exhibit 45, # 11 Exhibit 50, # 12 Exhibit 55, # 13 Exhibit 75, # 14 Exhibit 76, # 15
Exhibit 81, # 16 Exhibit 92, # 17 Exhibit 94, # 18 Exhibit 98, # 19 Exhibit 101, # 20
Exhibit 104, # 21 Exhibit 106, # 22 Exhibit 107, # 23 Exhibit 112, # 24 Exhibit 115,
Exhibit 117, # 26 Exhibit 123, # 27 Exhibit 124, # 28 Exhibit 141, # 29 Exhibit 143,

#25
#
Exhibit 148, # 31 Exhibit 151, # 32 Exhibit 152, # 33 Exhibit 163, # 34 Exhibit 165, #
#
#

3

)]

4
5

Exhibit 168, # 36 Exhibit 169, # 37 Exhibit 171, # 38 Exhibit 172, # 39 Exhibit 173,
Exhibit 174, # 41 Exhibit 175, # 42 Exhibit 179, # 43 Exhibit 186, # 44 Exhibit 188,
Exhibit 189, # 46 Exhibit 196)(Phillips, John) (Entered: 05/30/2018)

FINAL JUDGMENT. The Clerk of Court shall CLOSE this case. Signed by Judge Robin
L. Rosenberg on 5/30/2018. (kpe)

05/30/2018 22

\O

NOTICE: If there are sealed documents in this case, they may be unsealed after 1
year or as directed by Court Order, unless they have been designated to be
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Pesman@ntBoskaled Cide Ka8abRIFOF)2 @hd AdnsindstPativeAdBder 2014-69. (Entered:
05/31/2018)

06/04/2018

NOTICE by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman Notice of Filing Exhibits Admitted into
Evidence (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Exhibit 7 CAD, # 2 Exhibit Exhibit 26 Medical
Examiners Report, # 3 Exhibit Exhibit 34 Toxicology Report, # 4 Exhibit Exhibit 89
SLCSO Photos 01150002, # 5 Exhibit Exhibit 102 SLCSO Photos 01150040, # 6 Exhibit
Exhibit 121 SLCSO Photos 01150064, # 7 Exhibit Exhibit 122 SLCSO Photos 01150065,
# 8 Exhibit Exhibit 150 SLCSO Photos 01150095, # 9 Exhibit Exhibit 157 SLCSO
Photos 01150102, # 10 Exhibit Exhibit 158 SLCSO Photos 01150103, # 11 Exhibit
Exhibit 183 SLCSO Photos 01150128, # 12 Exhibit Exhibit 189 SLCSO Photos
01150134, # 13 Exhibit Exhibit 204 SLCSO Photos 01150150, # 14 Exhibit Exhibit 205
SLCSO Photos 01150151, # 15 Exhibit Exhibit 352 SLCSO Photos DSCN0040, # 16
Exhibit Exhibit 358 SLCSO Photos set0019 new image, # 17 Exhibit Exhibit 369 Gun,
magazine, and shorts) (Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 06/04/2018)

06/04/2018

Defendant's CERTIFICATE of Compliance Re Admitted Evidence for exhibit(s): 7, 9, 26,
34, 89,102, 121, 122, 150, 157, 158, 183, 189, 204, 205, 352, 358, 369 by Summer
Marie Barranco on behalf of Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman (Barranco, Summer)
(Entered: 06/04/2018)

06/07/2018

CLERK'S Notice Directing Counsel to Retrieve Original Exhibits within 5 days as to
Viola Bryant, Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman. Original exhibits to be retrieved:
Plaintiff's and Defendant"s Original Trial Exhibits. For retrieval information, please
contact the Clerks Office - Records Section of the Paul G. Rogers Federal Building and
U.S. Courthouse, 701 Clematis Street, Room 202, West Palm Beach, FL 33401, (561)
803-3400. (dj) (Entered: 06/07/2018)

06/12/2018

[\
(8]

RELEASE OF TRIAL EXHIBITS released to Law Office of John M. Phillips. (gp)
(Entered: 06/13/2018)

06/14/2018

[\
(OS]
I~

RELEASE OF DEFENDANT'S TRIAL EXHIBITS released to USA Legal Services, Inc.
(gp) (Entered: 06/15/2018)

06/27/2018

[\
98]
\9)]

Plaintiff's MOTION to Change Venue by Viola Bryant. Responses due by 7/11/2018
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit "A", # 2 Exhibit "B", # 3 Exhibit "C", # 4 Exhibit "D", # 5
Exhibit "E", # 6 Exhibit "F", # 7 Exhibit "G")(Phillips, John) (Entered: 06/27/2018)

06/27/2018

N
(O8]
[@)

Plaintiff's MOTION to Compel Release of Property by Viola Bryant. Responses due by
7/11/2018 (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit "A", # 2 Exhibit "B", # 3 Exhibit "C")(Phillips,
John) (Entered: 06/27/2018)

06/27/2018

I\
(OS]
~

Plaintiff's MOTION for New Trial by Viola Bryant. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit "A", # 2
Exhibit "B", # 3 Exhibit "C", # 4 Exhibit "D", # 5 Exhibit "E", # 6 Exhibit "F")(Phillips,
John) (Entered: 06/27/2018)

06/28/2018

[\
8]
[o¢]

TRANSCRIPT of Jury Trial held on 5.17.18 before Judge Robin L. Rosenberg, Volume
Number 1 of 6, 1-348 pages, Court Reporter: Pauline Stipes, 561-803-3434 /
Pauline_Stipes@flsd.uscourts.gov. Transcript may be viewed at the court public terminal
or purchased by contacting the Court Reporter/Transcriber before the deadline for
Release of Transcript Restriction. After that date it may be obtained through PACER.
Redaction Request due 7/19/2018. Redacted Transcript Deadline set for 7/30/2018.
Release of Transcript Restriction set for 9/26/2018. (ps) (Additional attachment(s) added
on 6/28/2018: # 1 Transcripts) (mg). (Entered: 06/28/2018)

06/28/2018

\S]

3

TRANSCRIPT of Jury Trial held on 05.18.2018 before Judge Robin L. Rosenberg,
Volume Number 2 of 6, 1-274 pages, Court Reporter: Pauline Stipes, 561-803-3434 /
Pauline_Stipes@flsd.uscourts.gov. Transcript may be viewed at the court public terminal
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https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119370438
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119370439
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119370440
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119370441
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119370442
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119370443
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119370444
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119370512
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119408152
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119416171
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051019465511
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119465512
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119465513
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119465514
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119465515
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119465516
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119465517
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https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051019465537
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https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119465539
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119465540
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051019466196
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119466197
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119466198
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119466199
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119466200
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119466201
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119466202
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051019468527
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119469007
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119468607
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©nperchdstddYZontbetegfde @I RIS/ TritagabaSefctd $he deadline for
Release of Transcript Restriction. After that date it may be obtained through PACER.
Redaction Request due 7/19/2018. Redacted Transcript Deadline set for 7/30/2018.
Release of Transcript Restriction set for 9/26/2018. (ps) (Entered: 06/28/2018)

TRANSCRIPT of Jury Trial held on 05.21.2018 before Judge Robin L. Rosenberg,
Volume Number 3 of 6, 1-341 pages, Court Reporter: Pauline Stipes, 561-803-3434 /
Pauline Stipes@flsd.uscourts.gov. Transcript may be viewed at the court public terminal
or purchased by contacting the Court Reporter/Transcriber before the deadline for
Release of Transcript Restriction. After that date it may be obtained through PACER.
Redaction Request due 7/19/2018. Redacted Transcript Deadline set for 7/30/2018.
Release of Transcript Restriction set for 9/26/2018. (ps) (Entered: 06/28/2018)

TRANSCRIPT of Jury Trial held on 05.22.2018 before Judge Robin L. Rosenberg,
Volume Number 4 of 6, 1-308 pages, Court Reporter: Pauline Stipes, 561-803-3434 /
Pauline Stipes@flsd.uscourts.gov. Transcript may be viewed at the court public terminal
or purchased by contacting the Court Reporter/Transcriber before the deadline for
Release of Transcript Restriction. After that date it may be obtained through PACER.
Redaction Request due 7/19/2018. Redacted Transcript Deadline set for 7/30/2018.
Release of Transcript Restriction set for 9/26/2018. (ps) (Entered: 06/28/2018)

TRANSCRIPT of Jury Trial held on 05.23.2018 before Judge Robin L. Rosenberg,
Volume Number 5 of 6, 1-220 pages, Court Reporter: Pauline Stipes, 561-803-3434 /
Pauline_Stipes@flsd.uscourts.gov. Transcript may be viewed at the court public terminal
or purchased by contacting the Court Reporter/Transcriber before the deadline for
Release of Transcript Restriction. After that date it may be obtained through PACER.
Redaction Request due 7/19/2018. Redacted Transcript Deadline set for 7/30/2018.
Release of Transcript Restriction set for 9/26/2018. (ps) (Additional attachment(s) added
on 6/28/2018: # 1 unredacted transcript) (mg). (Entered: 06/28/2018)

06/28/2018 243 | TRANSCRIPT of Jury Trial held on 05.24.2018 before Judge Robin L. Rosenberg,
Volume Number 6 of 6, 1-38 pages, Court Reporter: Pauline Stipes, 561-803-3434 /
Pauline_Stipes@flsd.uscourts.gov. Transcript may be viewed at the court public terminal
or purchased by contacting the Court Reporter/Transcriber before the deadline for
Release of Transcript Restriction. After that date it may be obtained through PACER.
Redaction Request due 7/19/2018. Redacted Transcript Deadline set for 7/30/2018.
Release of Transcript Restriction set for 9/26/2018. (ps) (Additional attachment(s) added
on 6/28/2018: # 1 unredacted transcript) (mg). (Entered: 06/28/2018)

06/28/2018

[\
~
]

06/28/2018

[\
~
—

06/28/2018

[\
~
[\

06/29/2018

[\
I~
I~

MOTION to Tax Costs by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman. Responses due by
7/13/2018 (Attachments: # 1 Affidavit, # 2 Bill of Costs, # 3 Supporting Bills)(Barranco,
Summer) (Entered: 06/29/2018)

07/11/2018

[\
I~
N

RESPONSE to Motion re 235 Plaintiff's MOTION to Change Venue filed by Ken
Mascara, Christopher Newman. Replies due by 7/18/2018. (Jolly, Gregory) (Entered:
07/11/2018)

RESPONSE in Opposition re 236 Plaintiff's MOTION to Compel Release of Property
filed by Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman. Replies due by 7/18/2018. (Jolly, Gregory)
(Entered: 07/11/2018)

RESPONSE in Opposition re 237 Plaintiff's MOTION for New Trial filed by Ken
Mascara, Christopher Newman. Replies due by 7/18/2018. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit "A"
Excerpt of Christopher Lawrence deposition)(Jolly, Gregory) (Entered: 07/11/2018)

07/11/2018

[\
~
(@)

07/11/2018

[\
~
~

07/13/2018 24

(2]

REPLY to Response to Motion re 244 MOTION to Tax Costs filed by Viola Bryant.
(Phillips, John) (Entered: 07/13/2018)
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07/18/2018 249 | RERLYL & Ra8panse RehdofBRat RFAP2HT's MOFEOBOtoiCxadpel Release of
Property filed by Viola Bryant. (Phillips, John) (Entered: 07/18/2018)

07/18/2018 250 | REPLY to Response to Motion re 235 Plaintiff's MOTION to Change Venue filed by
Viola Bryant. (Phillips, John) (Entered: 07/18/2018)

07/18/2018 251 | REPLY to Response to Motion re 237 Plaintiff's MOTION for New Trial filed by Viola
Bryant. (Phillips, John) (Entered: 07/18/2018)

07/20/2018 252 | REPLY to Response to Motion re 244 MOTION to Tax Costs filed by Ken Mascara,

Christopher Newman. (Barranco, Summer) (Entered: 07/20/2018)

08/03/2018 253 | Plaintiff's MOTION Pl's Motion for Juror Interview and Motion for Leave to File
Additional Evidence in Support of PI's Timely Filed Motion for New Trial re 237
Plaintiff's MOTION for New Trial by Viola Bryant. (Phillips, John) (Entered:
08/03/2018)

08/03/2018 254 | PAPERLESS ORDER expediting briefing on 253 Plaintiff's Motion for Juror Interview
and Motion for Leave to File Additional Evidence in Support of Plaintift's Timely Filed
Motion for New Trial. In light of the fact that 237 Plaintiff's Motion for New Trial is fully
briefed and that 253 Plaintiff's Motion for Juror Interview and Motion for Leave to File
Additional Evidence in Support of Plaintiff's Timely Filed Motion for New Trial is brief,
the Court hereby expedites briefing on 253 Plaintiff's Motion for Juror Interview and
Motion for Leave to File Additional Evidence in Support of Plaintiff's Timely Filed
Motion for New Trial. Defendants' response is due by August 7, 2018 and Plaintiff's reply
is due by August 10, 2018. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 8/3/2018. (ege)
(Entered: 08/03/2018)

ORDER DENYING WITHOUT PREJUDICE PLAINTIFFS 236 MOTION TO
COMPEL RELEASE OF PROPERTY. Signed by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on
8/7/2018. See attached document for full details. (kpe) (Entered: 08/07/2018)

08/07/2018

[\
\9)]

08/07/2018

[\
N
N

RESPONSE in Opposition re 253 Plaintiff's MOTION Pl's Motion for Juror Interview
and Motion for Leave to File Additional Evidence in Support of PI's Timely Filed Motion
for New Trial re 237 Plaintiff's MOTION for New Trial filed by Ken Mascara,
Christopher Newman. Replies due by 8/14/2018. (Barranco, Summer) (Entered:
08/07/2018)

REPLY to Response to Motion re 253 Plaintiff's MOTION PI's Motion for Juror
Interview and Motion for Leave to File Additional Evidence in Support of Pl's Timely
Filed Motion for New Trial re 237 Plaintiff's MOTION for New Trial filed by Viola
Bryant. (Phillips, John) (Entered: 08/10/2018)

ORDER DENYING PLAINTIFFS 253 MOTION FOR JUROR INTERVIEW AND
MOTION FORLEAVE TO FILE ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE IN SUPPORT OF
PLAINTIFFS TIMELY FILED MOTION FOR NEW TRIAL. Signed by Judge Robin L.
Rosenberg on 8/14/2018. See attached document for full details. (kpe) (Entered:
08/14/2018)

ORDER denying Plaintiff's 237 Motion for New Trial. Signed by Judge Robin L.
Rosenberg on 8/14/2018. See attached document for full details. (kpe) (Entered:
08/14/2018)

08/14/2018 260 | PAPERLESS ORDER denying as moot 235 Plaintiff's Motion for Change/Transfer of
Venue, in light of the Court's 259 Order Denying Plaintiff's Motion for New Trial. Signed
by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 8/14/2018. (ege) (Entered: 08/14/2018)

08/23/2018 261 | CLERK'S Notice of Maintaining Audio-Visual Defendant's Exhibit(s) #9 consisting of 1
(CD) Re D.E. 231 as to Ken Mascara, Christopher Newman. (rrs) (Entered: 08/23/2018)
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https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119645094
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119617616
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051019466196
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119656678
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119617616
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119656719
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051019466196
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051019465511
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119656719
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051119370512
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08/23/2018

CISREE RIS of DRl AH e AT R PhARE e Bii®)41.,2,190,191

consisting of 4 (CDS) Re D.E. 228 as to Viola Bryant. (rrs) (Entered: 08/23/2018)

09/11/2018

Notice of Appeal RE: DE 229 Final Judgment and DE 259 Order by Viola Bryant. Filing
fee $ 505.00 receipt number 113C-10985321. Within fourteen days of the filing date of a
Notice of Appeal, the appellant must complete the Eleventh Circuit Transcript Order
Form regardless of whether transcripts are being ordered [Pursuant to FRAP 10(b)]. For
information go to our FLSD website under Transcript Information. (Phillips, John)
(linked docket entry) Text Modified on 9/12/2018 (apz). (Entered: 09/11/2018)

09/12/2018

264

Clerks Notice to Filer re 263 Notice of Appeal. Document Not Linked; ERROR - The
filed document was not linked to the related docket entry. The correction was made by
the Clerk. It is not necessary to refile this document. (apz) (Entered: 09/12/2018)

09/12/2018

Transmission of Notice of Appeal, Judgment/Order under appeal and Docket Sheet to US
Court of Appeals re 263 Notice of Appeal, Notice has been electronically mailed. (apz)
(Entered: 09/12/2018)

09/12/2018

265

THIS CAUSE came before the Court on Defendant's Bill of Costs, filed as a Motion to
Tax Costs [DE 244], on June 29, 2018. Although costs may properly be taxed at this time,
cf. Rothenberg v. Sec. Mgmt. Co., 677 F.2d 64, 64 (11th Cir. 1982) ("[C]Josts may be
taxed after a notice of appeal has been filed."), the Court uses its discretion to stay this
matter pending the outcome of the appeal, cf. Belize Telecom, Ltd. v. Govt of Belize, 528
F.3d 1298, 1310 (11th Cir. 2008) ("[W]e leave for the district court to determine whether
a stay or a hearing on costs and fees is appropriate, given the pending appeal....").
Accordingly, it is ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that Defendant's Motion [DE 244] is
TERMINATED in light of Plaintiff's Notice of Appeal at DE 263. Either party may move
for the motion to be reinstated at such time as the pending appeal has concluded. Signed
by Judge Robin L. Rosenberg on 9/12/2018. (kbs) (Entered: 09/12/2018)

09/19/2018

[\®]
N
(@)

Acknowledgment of Receipt of NOA from USCA re 263 Notice of Appeal, filed by
Viola Bryant. Date received by USCA: 9/12/2018. USCA Case Number: 18-13902-E.
(apz) (Entered: 09/19/2018)

09/24/2018

TRANSCRIPT INFORMATION FORM by Viola Bryant re 263 Notice of Appeal,. No
Transcript Requested. (Phillips, John) (Entered: 09/24/2018)

02/05/2019

Pursuant to F.R.A.P. 11(c¢), the Clerk of the District Court for the Southern District of
Florida certifies that the record is complete for purposes of this appeal re: 263 Notice of
Appeal, Appeal No. 18-13902-EE. The record on appeal is available electronically with
the exception of: DE 228 as to Audio/Video Exhibits and DE 231 as to Audio/Video
Exhibits. (apz) (Entered: 02/05/2019)

02/08/2019

Pursuant to F.R.A.P. 11(c), the Clerk of the District Court for the Southern District of
Florida certifies that the record is complete for purposes of this appeal re: 263 Notice of
Appeal, Appeal No. 18-13902-EE. The record on appeal is available electronically with
the exception of: DE 231 as to Audio/Video Exhibit (1 CD) and DE 228 as to
Audio/Video Exhibits (4 CDs) which will be forwarded to the USCA Eleventh Circuit via
mail. (apz) (Entered: 02/08/2019)

02/11/2019

\9}
-

Certified and Transmitted Record on Appeal to US Court of Appeals (Atlanta Office )
consisting of (1) Accordion Folder containing DE 228 (4 CDs) and DE 231 (1 CD) re 263
Notice of Appeal. USCA #18-13902-EE. (apz) (Entered: 02/11/2019)

02/20/2019

\®)
—_

Acknowledgment of Receipt of ROA from USCA re 263 Notice of Appeal, filed by Viola
Bryant. Date received by USCA: 2/14/2019. USCA Case Number: 18-13902-EE. (apz)
(Entered: 02/21/2019)
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

VIOLA BRYANT, as Personal Case No. 2:16¢cv14072
Representative of the Estate of
GREGORY VAUGHN HILL, JR.,

Plaintiff,
VS.

SHERIFF KEN MASCARA in his official
Capacity as Sheriff of St. Lucie County,
and CHRISTOPHER NEWMAN,

an individual,

Defendants.
/

DEFENDANT SHERIFF MASCARA’S
MOTION FOR PROTECTIVE ORDER JAS TO HIS DEPOSITION BEING SET FOR
NEXT MONDAY, OCTOBER 3, 2016]
(AND MEMORANDUM OF LAW)

Defendant Ken Mascara, as Sheriff of St. Lucie County, Florida, in his official capacity,
through his undersigned attorneys, pursuant to Rule 26(c) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure,
files this his Motion for Protective Order (and Memorandum of Law) and in support thereof states
as follows:

1. This lawsuit arises out of an incident which occurred on January 14, 2014 between St.
Lucie County Sheriff’s deputies Christopher Newman and Edward Lopez and the Plaintiff’s
decedent Gregory Vaughn Hill, Jr. at a residence located in St. Lucie County, Florida. During the
incident, Deputy Newman shot Mr. Hill. The Plaintiff brings federal civil rights claims and state law
claims for battery resulting in wrongful death and negligence. Sheriff Mascara is a named party, in

his official capacity only.
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2. Plaintiff, through counsel, has indicated she wishes to take the deposition of Sheriff Ken
Mascara in this matter. As indicated during the recent status conference before the Court, the
Defendant Sheriff opposes the deposition as he is a high level public official who has an extremely
busy schedule and who has no first hand knowledge regarding the subject incident. Pursuant to this
Honorable Court’s Order [DE 25] the parties submitted a joint discovery plan which included Sheriff
Ken Mascara’s deposition being set for next Monday, October 3, 2016 at 3:00 p.m. with a footnote
referencing a proposed motion for protective order being filed. [DE 26]. Today, the Court issued a
Joint Discovery Plan which also included the deposition of Sheriff Ken Mascara being conducted
next Monday, October 3, 2016 at 3:00 p.m. [DE 29].

3. Compelling the deposition of Sheriff Mascara, who is a high ranking elected official,
would cause annoyance, oppression, or undue burden, and would interfere with his duties as Sheriff
of St. Lucie County. Any relevant information he may have is available with more specificity from
sources other than the Sheriff himself such that it would not cause any undue hardship on the
Plaintiff if Sheriff Mascara were not obligated to attend a deposition.

WHEREFORE, Defendant Sheriff Mascara objects to the Plaintiff being permitted to take
his deposition in this proceeding on the grounds that it would cause annoyance, oppression, or undue
burden and respectfully requests this Honorable Court to enter an Order of Protection prohibiting
Plaintiff from taking his deposition, which is currently being set for next Monday, October 3, 2016
at 3:00 p.m.

Further, and in support of the foregoing Motion for Protective Order, the Defendant Sheriff
would refer this Honorable Court to the Memorandum of Law attached hereto and incorporated

herein by reference.
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MEMORANDUM OF LAW

Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 26(c) states, in pertinent part, as follows:

A party or any person from whom discovery is sought may move for
a protective order in the court where the action is pending.... The
court, may for good cause, issue an order to protect a party or person
from annoyance, embarrassment, oppression, or undue burden or
expense, including ... forbidding the disclosure or discovery....

The Court has broad discretion to control discovery, even to the extent of barring certain discovery

altogether. See Phipps v. Blakeney, 8 F.3d 788 (11" Cir. 1993); Lee v. Etowah County Bd. Of

Education, 963 F.2d 1416 (11™ Cir. 1992); see also Crawford-El v. Britton, 523 U.S. 574, 118 S.Ct.

1584 (1998)(discusses district court’s broad discretion under Rule 26).
In regard to the depositions of high ranking public officials, courts have recognized that
absent extraordinary circumstances, they should not be called to testify or be deposed concerning

their reasons for taking official action. See City of Fort Lauderdale v. Scott, 2012 W.L. 760743, *2

(S.D. Fla. 2012) and cases cited therein including In re: United States (Kessler), 985 F.2d 510, 512

(11" Cir. 1993).

Two reasons underlie the reluctance of courts to allow discovery of high-ranking
officials. The first is to protect the officials from discovery that will burden the
performance of their duties, particularly given the frequency with which such
officials are likely to be named in lawsuits. The second is to protect the officials from
unwarranted inquiries into their decision making process.

See Scott at *2, citing Coleman v. Schwarzenegger, 2008 W.L. 4300437, *2 (E.D. Cal. 2008) and

United States v. Morgan, 313 U.S. 409, 422, 61 S.Ct. 999, 85 L.Ed. 1429 (1941). It is clear that

Sheriff Ken Mascara is a high ranking public official who merits heightened protection from

discovery. See Rocker v. City of Ocala, Florida, 355 Fed. Appx. 312 (11* Cir. 2009); Gray v. Kohl,

2008 W.L. 1803643 (S.D. Fla. 2008); Jarbo v. County of Orange, 2010 W.L. 3584440 (C.D. Cal.

-3-
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2010). As a result, Plaintiff here has the burden to show:

(1) the official’s testimony is necessary to obtain relevant information that is not
available from another source; (2) the official has first-hand information that cannot
reasonably be obtained from other sources; (3) the testimony is essential to the case
at hand; (4) the deposition would not significantly interfere with the ability of the
official to perform his government duties; and (5) the evidence sought is not
available through less burdensome means or alternative sources.

City of Fort Lauderdale v. Scott, 2012 W.L. 760743, *3 (S.D. Fla. 2012). Plaintiff here will not be

able to sufficiently show any of these factors have been met.

Furthermore, the Federal Rules have a mechanism in place to alleviate this very intrusion in
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 30(b)(6). Plaintiff has failed to utilize Rule 30(b)(6) during the
discovery stage of this proceeding to date, which would enable her to obtain the information being
sought from more knowledgeable agents. Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 30(b)(6) states in
pertinent part, as follows:

a party may name as the deponent a ... governmental agency... and
must describe with reasonable particularity the matters for
examination. The named organization must then designate one or
more officers, directors, or managing agents, or designate other
persons who consent to testify on its behalf; and it may set out the
matters on which each person designated will testify....The persons
designated must testify about information known or reasonably
available to the organization....

In discussing the instant motion, Plaintiff’s counsel has indicated to the undersigned that the
Sheriff is properly the subject of a deposition here because he has given press conferences about the
subject incident. However, although the Sheriff, as the head of the agency, often times speaks to the
media or conducts press conferences regarding critical incidents such as this officer involved

shooting, it should not be presumed that he has the most knowledge of all the specifics of the subject

incident and the investigation regarding same. He is not the one that conducts the investigations and,

-4-



Case 2:16-cv-14072-RLR Document 30 Entered on FLSD Docket 09/26/2016 Page 5 of 7
Case: 18-13902 Date @BeédfQ303)2019 Page: 37 of 243

not surprisingly, relies on others within the agency to conduct those investigative activities and report
to him via the chain of command, as to the facts of the case as learned during the investigation as it
unfolds. Thereafter, the Sheriff merely passes this hearsay information along to the media as it
becomes known. In this instance, more specific and detailed information is obtainable from a lower
ranking official who actually was involved in investigating the subject incident. Frankly, to require
the Sheriff to prepare for and give a deposition in a lawsuit such as this merely because he has
spoken with the press about the incident, would require him to give a deposition in most every
federal civil rights case in which his agency was a named defendant. The relevant law regarding this
issue clearly does not support this conclusion. See infra.

Compelling Sheriff Mascara to appear for deposition because of his public office would be
unduly burdensome and would interfere with his busy schedule as a high ranking elected official.
Such a request is properly denied because as Sheriff, Defendant Mascara is particularly susceptible
to being the target of discovery abuses such as being set for deposition for purposes of harassment.
Plaintiff here can not show that Sheriff Mascara has any relevant first hand knowledge concerning
the particular facts in this case nor why she could not obtain any such information, to the extent that
Sheriff Mascara did have such knowledge, in a less burdensome and time consuming manner, such
as through interrogatories or from other sources within the Sheriff’s office. It is clearly within this
Court’s discretion to disallow the deposition of the head of a governmental agency such as the

Sheriff. See Rocker v. City of Ocala, Florida, 355 Fed.Appx. 312 (11" Cir. 2009)(sheriff); Spadaro

v. City of Miramar, 2012 W.L. 3614202 (S.D. Fla. 2012)(police chief and assistant police chief);

City of Fort Lauderdale v. Scott, 2012 W.L. 760743 (S.D. Fla. 2012)(city manager); Jarbo v. County

of Orange, 2010 W.L. 3584440 (C.D. Cal. 2010)(former sheriff); Mulvey v. Chrysler Corp., 106

-5-
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F.R.D. 364 (D.R.I. 1985) (chairman of the board); Warzon v. Drew, 155 F.R.D. 183 (E.D.Wis.

1994)(high ranking government officials); and Baine v. General Motors Corp., 141 F.R.D. 332

(M.D.Ala. 1991)(vice president of corporation).

Sheriff Mascara is a busy public official conferred with the duty to enforce the laws of the
State of Florida in St. Lucie County. It is apparent that there are other means by which Plaintiff can
obtain discovery regarding the subject incident or the customs, policies, and practices of the Sheriff
at all times relevant to this lawsuit. It is unreasonable and unduly burdensome to command the
appearance of a public official to give testimony on issues that can readily be answered by
individuals who are not elected government officials. As an elected public official, Sheriff Mascara
should not be compelled to appear at any deposition where the Plaintiff can employ other means of
discovery that are less burdensome and intrusive into the official duties of the Sheriff. Just as the

Court has granted protective orders to the high ranking government officials in the Scott and Spadaro

cases, so too should the Court grant a protective order for the Sheriff in this case. Just as in Scott and
Spadaro, the Plaintiff here cannot carry her burden of establishing extraordinary circumstances
justifying Sheriff Mascara’s deposition in this case.

CONCLUSION

The Defendant Sheriff Mascara’s Motion for Protective Order should be granted. As a
practical matter, given the obvious time constraints as the date of the Sheriff’s deposition is only a
week away, the Defendant Sheriff would request that the Court immediately enter a temporary order
of protection as to the October 3™ deposition date and that the Court permit the parties to fully brief
this request for protective order (on an expedited briefing schedule, if need be) so that the Court can

make a more fully informed determination in this regard as to whether or not the Plaintiff should be

-6-
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permitted to take the Sheriff’s deposition at a later date.

Certification
Counsel for the Defendants has conferred with Plaintiff’s counsel regarding the instant

motion and it is opposed by the Plaintiff.

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I electronically filed the foregoing with the Clerk of the Court
using the CM/ECF and furnished via email a copy to: John M. Phillips, Esquire, T.C. Roberts,
Esquire, Brent Latour, Esquire, Law Office of John M. Phillips, LLC, 4230 Ortega Boulevard,
Jacksonville, FL 32210; jphillips@floridajustice.com, dmalone@floridajustice.com,
tc@floridajustice.com, brent@floridajustice.com this 26th day of September, 2016.

PURDY, JOLLY, GIUFFREDA & BARRANCO, P.A.

Attorneys for Defendants

2455 East Sunrise Boulevard, Suite 1216

Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33304

Telephone (954) 462-3200

Telecopier (954) 462-3861

Email: summer@purdylaw.com
melissa@purdylaw.com

BY s/ Summer M. Barranco
SUMMER M. BARRANCO
Fla. Bar No. 984663
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 2:16-cv-14072-ROSENBERG/HOPKINS

VIOLA BRYANT, as Personal Representative
of the Estate of GREGORY VAUGHN HILL, JR.,

Plaintiff,
V.
SHERIFF KEN MASCARA, in his Official
Capacity as Sheriff of St. Lucie County and
CHRISTOPHER NEWMAN,

Defendants.

BENCH MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF PLAINTIFF’S OBJECTION TO
DEFENDANTS’ INTRODUCTION OF EXHIBIT NUMBER 30 PURSUANT TO
DEFENDANT’S THIRD AMENDED EXHIBIT AND WITNESS LIST

COMES NOW, Plaintiff, VIOLA BRYANT, as Personal Representative of the Estate of
GREGORY VAUGHN HILL, JR., by and through her undersigned counsel, and hereby
respectfully submits this Bench Memorandum in Support of Plaintiff’s Objection to Defendants’
exhibit number thirty as listed to Defendant’s Third Amended Exhibit and Witness List.

Specifically, Defendants’ seek to introduce exhibit number thirty which contains a
Microsoft PowerPoint presentation prepared by Sergeant Kyle King of the Indian River County
Sheriff’s Office. This PowerPoint presentation contains a series of reconstructed animated
illustrations which depicts a contested version of the subject incident. Plaintiff objects to the
introduction of this PowerPoint presentation because it was not disclosed pursuant to Federal
Rule of Civil Procedure 26. In addition, the PowerPoint illustrations are predicated upon hearsay
statements. In addition, any probative value of this PowerPoint illustration is outweighed by the

prejudicial effect.
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DEFENDANTS’ PROPOSED OBJECTIONABLE EVIDENCE

1. Defendant’s Exhibit Number thirty pursuant to Defendants’” Third Amended
Exhibit and Witness List.

2. Testimony from any witness expected to testify in this trial, including, but not
limited to: Sgt. Kyle King, regarding this PowerPoint reconstruction.

MEMORANDUM OF LAW

Defendant Newman was responding to a noise complaint at a house across the street from
Frances K. Sweet Elementary School. Within sixty seconds of Defendant Newman’s arrival,
Gregory Vaughn Hill, Jr. was shot and killed by Defendant Newman. Defendant Newman fired
four rounds of forty caliber bullets through a closing garage door. Two bullets struck Mr. Hill in
the stomach. One bullet struck Mr. Hill in the head.

Viola Bryant, as the personal representative of the estate of Gregory Vaughn Hill, Jr.
filed this 42 U.S.C. § 1983 civil rights violation action against Defendants claiming that
Defendant Newman used excessive force and violated Mr. Hill’s constitutional fourth
amendment right to be free from unwarranted searches and seizures.

. DEFENDANTS FAILED TO DISCSLOSE THIS EXHIBIT PURSUANT TO
FED. R. CIV. PRO. 26.

On December 27, 2016, Defendants filed their expert witness disclosures pursuant to
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 26(a)(2). Defendants disclosed Sgt. Kyle King as a “non-
retained expert.” The scope of Sgt. Kyle King’s expected testimony was disclosed as follows:

“Sgt. Kyle King

c/o Indian River County Sheriff’s Office
4055 41* Avenue

Vero Beach, FL 32960

Sgt. King is expected to testify regarding his knowledge regarding reconstruction
of the subject incident.”
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Significantly, no reconstruction PowerPoint was provided in Defendants’ disclosure.
Pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 26(a)(2)(C), the disclosure must state i) the subject
matter on which the witness is expected to present evidence under Federal Rule of Evidence 702,
703, or 705; and ii) a summary of the facts and opinions to which the witness is expected to
testify. Fed. R. Civ. Pro. 26(a)(2)(C). Defendants failed to disclose any “facts and opinions” to
which Sgt. King is expected to testify. “If a party fails to provide information ... as required by
Rule 26(a) or (e), the party is not allowed to use that information ... to supply evidence ... at a
trial, unless the failure was substantially justified or is harmless.” Companhia Energetica
Potiguar v. Caterpillar, Inc., No. 14cv24277, 2016 WL 3102225, at *5 (S.D. Fla. June 2, 2016)

Defendants’ one sentence disclosure, failed to include Sgt. King’s PowerPoint
presentation contrary to the requirements of Fed. R. Civ. Pro. 26(a)(2). Defendants’ failure to
disclose this reconstruction presentation is not justified. Sgt. King initially prepared this
presentation for the purposes of presenting it to a criminal grand jury, long before the Complaint
in the present action was filed. The reconstruction presentation was completed before the expert
disclosure deadlines as set forth in this honorable court’s Second Amended Scheduling Order.
As such, Defendants’ failure to disclose this PowerPoint presentation pursuant to Fed. R. Civ.
Pro. 26(a) is not justified, and should be excluded from evidence at trial.

1. EXHIBIT THIRTY FAILSTO MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF
RULE 702 AND DAUBERT

Defendants’ disclosed Sgt. Kyle King as a ‘“non-retained expert witness.” The
PowerPoint reconstruction as listed on exhibit thirty constitutes Sgt. King’s opinion regarding

how the subject incident occurred. The admission of expert evidence and testimony is governed
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by Federal Rule of Evidence 702 and the standards set forth by Daubert v. Merrell Dow Pharm.,
Inc., 509 U.S. 579 (1993), and its progeny.

In essence, Rule 702 and the Daubert line of cases permit an expert to testify in the form
of an opinion where three criteria are met: (1) the expert is qualified to offer the opinion he
intends to offer, (2) the expert applied reliable methods and principles in forming his opinion,
and (3) the expert’s opinion will assist the jury in deciding a disputed fact or issue. Rink v.
Cheminova, Inc., 400 F.3d 1286, 1291-92 (11th Cir. 2005). Significantly, “It is ultimately the
burden of the party who offers the expert to show that the expert’s opinion is admissible, and the
party must do so by a preponderance of the evidence.” Id. at 1292.

Aside from the conclusory single sentence disclosure, Defendants’ have provided no
evidence that Sgt. King is qualified to offer the reconstruction opinions set forth in exhibit thirty.
In addition, Defendants’ disclosure did not state the methods and principles utilized by Sgt. King
when reconstructing the subject incident.

Furthermore, the PowerPoint reconstruction will not assist the jury in deciding a disputed
fact or issue. As previously stated, Sgt. King’s PowerPoint reconstruction was completed long
before this instant action was filed. As such, Sgt. King’s reconstruction did not take into
consideration the testimony of any witnesses given under oath in the present case. Rather, the
basis for Sgt. King’s PowerPoint reconstruction is hearsay statements obtained by various law
enforcement personnel through informal conversations with other law enforcement personnel.
The hearsay statements obtained by law enforcement personnel, and the PowerPoint presentation
constructed therefrom, will not assist the jury in deciding the facts and issues of this case.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests this Honorable Court sustain Plaintiff’s

objection to the introduction of Defendants’ exhibit thirty which contains a reconstruction
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PowerPoint, as this evidence was not disclosed pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. Pro. 26(a) and this
honorable court’s deadlines set forth in the Second Amended Scheduling Order. In addition,
Plaintiff respectfully request this Honorable Court sustain Plaintiff’s objection because this
evidence is fails to meet the requirements of Fed. R. Evid. 702 and the Daubert standards and is
predicated upon otherwise inadmissible hearsay statements.

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

| HEREBY CERTIFY that | electronically filed the foregoing with the Clerk of the
Court using the CM/ECF and a copy hereof has been furnished to Summer M. Barranco, Esquire,
Purdy, Jolly, Giuffreda & Barranco, P.A., 2455 East Sunrise Boulevard, Suite 1216, Fort

Lauderdale, FL 33304, by email to summer@purdylaw.com, and melissa@purdylaw.com, this

14" day of May, 2018.

Law Office of John M. Phillips, LLC

/s/ Kirby Johnson

JOHN M. PHILLIPS, ESQUIRE
Florida Bar Number: 0477575
NATASHIA D. HINES, ESQUIRE
Florida Bar Number: 89072

KIRBY W. JOHNSON, ESQUIRE
Florida Bar Number: 113323

4230 Ortega Boulevard

Jacksonville, FL 32210

(904) 444-4444

(904) 508-0683 (facsimile)
Attorneys for Plaintiff
iphillips@floridajustice.com
michele@floridajustice.com
Natashia@floridajustice.com
Kirby@floridajustice.com
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

VIOLA BRYANT, as Personal Case No. 2:16¢v14072-ROSENBERG/LYNCH
Representative of the Estate of
GREGORY VAUGHN HILL, JR.,

Plaintiff,
VS.

SHERIFF KEN MASCARA in his official
Capacity as Sheriff of St. Lucie County,
and CHRISTOPHER NEWMAN,

an individual,

Defendants.
/

DEFENDANTS’ OMNIBUS RESPONSE TO PLAINTIFF’S
BENCH MEMORANDA [DE 181, 182, 183, 184, 185, 186, and 188]

The Defendants, SHERIFF MASCARA in his official capacity as Sheriff of St. Lucie
County, and CHRISTOPHER NEWMAN, in his individual capacity, pursuant to this Court’s
paperless Orders requiring a response to Plaintiff’s Bench Memoranda [DE 187 and 189], file this
their Omnibus Response to Plaintiff’s Bench Memoranda [DE 181, 182, 183, 184, 185, 186 and
188], and would state as follows:

Plaintiff’s Bench Memoranda are directed to seven categories of evidence. The Defendants
will respond to each of the seven issues as identified and separated by the Plaintiff in her memoranda
in numerical sequence.

1. DE 181: Plaintiff’s Objection to Defendants’ Exhibits 168, 169, and 170.

In DE 181, Plaintiff objects to the introduction of any photographs depicting small plastic
bags found within Mr. Hill’s garage in the post-shooting investigation conducted by members of the

St. Lucie County Sheriff’s Office. Defendants agree to not introduce evidence of the nature identified
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in Plaintiff’s Memorandum, unless of course the Plaintiff opens the door to the admissibility of this
evidence based on the theory of Plaintiff’s case or the evidence Plaintiff elicits during the trial in her
case-in-chief.

2. DE 182: Plaintiff’s Objection to Defendants’ Exhibits 228-230 and 361-368.

In DE 182, Plaintiff objects to the introduction of photographs of Mr. Hill’s cell phone which
was discovered and photographed by Sheriff’s Office investigators after Deputy Newman’s use of
force. Mr. Hill’s cell phone, and more importantly its contents as will be demonstrated below, has
relevance regarding the Sheriff’s office’s downloading of the contents of Mr. Hill’s cell phone (as
noted below), Mr. Hill’s actions immediately prior to the shooting as well as to Plaintiff’s wrongful
death damages, specifically the loss of support claims.

3. DE 183: Plaintiff’s Objection to Defendants’ Exhibit 27.

In DE 183, Plaintiff objects to the introduction of an extraction report of Mr. Hill’s cell phone
data around the time of the subject incident. As part of the Sheriff’s Office investigation into the
subject incident, a search warrant was obtained permitting the Sheriff’s Office forensic investigators
to conduct a forensic search of Mr. Hill’s cell phone. On January 27, 2014, Detective Kevin Pfeiffer
ofthe Sheriff’s Office Computer Forensic Unit conducted the forensic examination of Mr. Hill’s cell
phone in accordance with the search warrant. Detective Pfeiffer was able to retrieve data from the
phone including the call history, text messages and phonebook information from Mr. Hill’s phone
including evidence of Mr. Hill’s communications between himself and his then fiancee immediately
prior to the subject incident. This evidence is relevant under Rule 404(b) to show Mr. Hill’s motive
for acting as he did during his encounter with the deputies (see Knight, infra), to refute testimony
that is expected from Plaintiff’s friends and family members that this was an uneventful, normal day

for Mr. Hill (prior to his contact with law enforcement) as well as to Plaintiff’s loss of parental
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support claim.

4. DE 184: Plaintiff’s Objection to Defendants’ Exhibit 24 and Exhibit 25.

In DE 184, Plaintiff objects to the introduction of two photographs depicting a letter drafted
by Mr. Hill’s then girlfriend which was discovered in the Hill residence by Sheriff’s office personnel
after the shooting. This evidence is directly relevant to the Plaintiff’s loss of parental support claim
as well as pursuant to Rule 404(b) as to motive in regard to Mr. Hill’s state of mind on the day of
the subject incident and to refute any testimony that this was otherwise an uneventful, normal day
for Mr. Hill prior to his contact with law enforcement.

5. DE 185: Plaintiff’s Objection to Defendants’ introduction of evidence of Mr. Hill’s
intoxication at the time of the subject incident.

In DE 185, Plaintiff objects to the introduction of any evidence regarding the fact that Mr.
Hill’s blood alcohol content (BAC) was at least a .328 g/dL at the time of the subject incident.
Plaintiff asserts that since this information was unknown to Deputy Newman at the time of the
incident. It is irrelevant to the issue of whether Deputy Newman’s use of force was unreasonable.
However, in evaluating the reasonableness of Deputy Newman’s actions, the jury is not limited to
information known to the defendant law enforcement officer at the time of the shooting.

“In a case...where what the officer perceived just prior to the use of force is in dispute,
evidence that may support one version of events over another is relevant and admissible.” Boyd v.

City and Cnty. Of San Francisco, 576 F.3d 938, 948-949 (9" Cir. 2009). In Boyd, the Ninth Circuit

approved a trial court’s ruling allowing evidence that the decedent had been on drugs at the time of
apolice shooting because the evidence “was highly probative of the decedent’s conduct, particularly
in light of [the decedent’s] alleged erratic behavior...” Id.at 949. This type of evidence is routinely
permitted to explain unusual behavior or to support a law enforcement officer’s version of how a

decedent acted. See Turner v. White, 980 F.2d 1180, 1182-1183 (8™ Cir. 1992) (“it was incumbent
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upon the jury to consider [the defendant officer’s] actions in relation to all the circumstances of the
situation that confronted him. We therefore believe the evidence of alcohol consumption is relevant
to the jury’s assessment of that situation...”).

In Plaintiff’s Memorandum, Plaintiff asserts that Defendants will attempt to demonstrate
through the introduction of evidence demonstrating Mr. Hill’s intoxication that Mr. Hill intended
on instigating the altercation with the deputies. Plaintiff completely misses the point regarding the
probative value of this evidence. Defendants respectfully submit that Mr. Hill’s subjective intentions
are immaterial to the ultimate question the jury will be asked to answer: whether Mr. Hill’s actions
caused Deputy Newman to reasonably fear for his life or the life of others. To answer that question,
the jury must consider all the circumstances of the situation that confronted the deputies. Further,
Mr. Hill’s level of intoxication is relevant in light of the deputies’ testimony that they shouted
commands for Mr. Hill to drop the weapon he was holding. See Turner at 1183 (explaining that
evidence of intoxication is relevant to question of subject’s ability to perceive officer’s commands).

Additionally, and as will be further addressed in the following section, Defendants believe that
the evidence will show Mr. Hill was on felony drug offender probation at the time of the subject
incident and that as a consequence of Mr. Hill’s probation status he was not permitted to drink any
alcoholic beverages or to possess a firearm. The fact that Mr. Hill was almost four times more
intoxicated than the legal limit to drive and thus in clear violation of his probation is relevant to

explain Mr. Hill’s actions prior to the subject incident. See Knight through Kerr v. Miami-Dade

County, 856 F.3d 795, 816 (11" Cir. 2017).
Finally, Plaintiff brings a claim for negligence arising out of the subject incident. Thus Mr.
Hill’s level of intoxication is also relevant to the defense of comparative negligence as well as to

Florida’s statutory “alcohol or drug defense.” See F.S. §768.36 (2014); Griffis v. Wheeler, 18 So.3d
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2, *5-6 (Fla. I** DCA 2009) (recognizing that Florida’s alcohol defense applies to wrongful death
action).

6. DE 186 Plaintiff’s objection to Defendants’ introduction of evidence regarding Mr.
Hill’s probationary status.

In DE 186, Plaintiff objects to the introduction of evidence regarding Mr. Hill’s probation
status arguing that the evidence is irrelevant, that the probative value of this evidence is substantially
outweighed by its danger of unfair prejudice and that this evidence amounts to unfair character
evidence.

Plaintiff’s arguments in support of her objection regarding this evidence are similar to her
arguments related to evidence of Mr. Hill’s intoxication. Likewise, Defendants’ arguments related
to the admissibility of Mr. Hill’s probation status are closely tied to the issue of the admissibility of
evidence regarding Mr. Hill’s intoxication since, as alluded to above, Mr. Hill was not permitted to
drink any alcohol nor was he permitted to possess a firearm as a consequence of his probation status.
The Knight case, cited above by Defendants regarding the admissibility of Mr. Hill’s intoxication,
is likewise instructive here.

In Knight, the Plaintiffs brought federal and state claims arising out of an incident which
involved a police chase that ultimately culminated in a police shooting. Two of the passengers of the
car were killed and the other was injured. Knight, 856 F.3d at 803-805. Prior to trial, the Plaintiffs
in Knight moved to exclude evidence of the driver’s previous felony convictions. The trial court
permitted the driver’s most recent conviction because the court found “it was material to the defense
theory that his earlier conviction and his probation status caused him to initiate, and refuse to cease
flight when confronted by the officers.” Id, at §15-816. In evaluating the propriety of the trial court’s

ruling, the Eleventh Circuit first noted Rule 404(b)’s exception regarding evidence of a crime, wrong
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or other act when the evidence is used to show motive, opportunity, intent, preparation, plan,
knowledge, identity, absence of mistake, or lack of accident. Id, at 816. In ratifying the trial court’s
decision to allow evidence of the driver’s probation status, the Eleventh Circuit concluded that the
evidence was plainly admissible under Rule 404(b) to establish the driver’s motive in fleeing since
if he had simply pulled over, “he would have been caught associating with other people on
probation, which might have jeopardized his probationary status.” Id. at 816-817. Like in Knight,
evidence of Mr. Hill’s probation status is probative of his motive to quickly hide his gun in his back
pocket and to forcefully slam his garage door after being confronted by two law enforcement officers
while in violation of at least two conditions of his probation. See also Boyd, 576 F.3d at 948
(permitting evidence of Plaintiff’s criminal history to explain Plaintiff’s actions where the Plaintiff
was facing consequences for his actions). Whether Mr. Hill’s actions placed Deputy Newman in
reasonable fear for his own or others’ safety will be for the jury to determine.

Additionally, Mr. Hill’s probation status is otherwise relevant to the issue of damages and
Plaintiff’s loss of support claim as to Mr. Hill’s children.

As to Plaintiff’s assertion that the evidence’s probative value is substantially outweighed by
its danger of unfair prejudice, any evidence the Defendants seek to offer will be inherently

prejudicial to the Plaintiff otherwise it would not be material. See Ballou v. Henri Studios, Inc., 656

F.2d 1147, 1155 (5™ Cir. 1981). It is only when the probative value of the evidence is substantially
outweighed by its danger of unfair prejudice that the evidence should be excluded.See Dollar v.

Long Mfg., N.C., Inc., 561 F.2d 613, 618 (5" Cir. 1977) (“‘unfair prejudice is not to be equated with

testimony simply adverse to the opposing party”). The standard for exclusion in the Eleventh Circuit

under Rule 403 is:
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Relevant evidence is inherently prejudicial; but it is only unfair
prejudice substantially outweighing probative value, which permits
exclusion of relevant matter under Rule 403. Unless trials are to be
conducted on scenarios, on unreal facts tailored and sanitized for the
occasion, the application of Rule 403 must be cautious and sparing. Its
major function is limited to excluding matter of scant or cumulative
probative force, dragged in by the heels for the sake of its probative
value.

U.S. v. Sawyer, 799 F.2d 1494, 1506 (11" Cir. 1986) (emphasis in original).

7. DE 188 Plaintiff’s objection to Defendants’ introduction of Sgt Kyle King’s
reconstruction powerpoint presentation.

Plaintiff objects to the introduction of a PowerPoint presentation prepared by Sgt. King of
the Indian River County Sheriff’s Office. It is Defendants’ understanding that Sgt. King is routinely
requested by the State Attorney’s Office, as an expert in shooting reconstructions, to conduct
incident reconstructions for presentation to the grand jury. Plaintiff asserts that PowerPoint was not
disclosed in Defendants’ initial disclosures. This is simply not true. On Page 34 of Defendants’
initial disclosures, served on the Plaintiff on May 20, 2016 Defendants identified the PowerPoint in
question as item 34. (See Exhibit A, Defendants’ Initial Rule 26 Disclosures). As to Plaintiff’s other
assertions, on December 27, 2016, Defendants served their Expert disclosures.(See Exhibit B,
Defendants’ Expert Disclosures). In that disclosure, Defendants identified Kyle King as a non-
retained expert expected to testify regarding his knowledge of the reconstruction of the subject
incident.

Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 26(A)(2) governs the expert disclosure requirements.
Pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 26(A)(2)( C), Defendants were required to disclose the
subject matter on which the witness is expected to testify and a summary of the facts and opinions

to which the witness is expected to testify. It is the Defendants’ position that Defendants’ expert
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disclosure satisfied their disclosure obligations. Defendants provided the Plaintiff with as much
information as the Defendants possessed. Plaintiff has been aware of Sgt. King’s identity as well as
the PowerPoint reconstruction he created since well before the discovery deadline which has now
passed. Plaintiff’s election to not depose him should not operate to prejudice the Defendants,
especially at this late hour. To the extent Plaintiff contends Sgt. King is unqualified to offer opinions
regarding reconstruction of the subject incident, Defendants respectfully request that Plaintiff be
permitted to conduct voir dire of the expert witness during trial, outside of the presence of the jury.

See Kellner v. NCL (Bahamas), LTD., 15-23002-CIV, 2016 WL 8679313, at *2 (S.D. Fla. Aug. 17,

2016).

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I electronically filed the foregoing with the Clerk of the Court
using the CM/ECF and furnished via email a copy to: John M. Phillips, Esquire, Law Office of
John M. Phillips, LLC, 4230 Ortega Boulevard, Jacksonville, FL 32210;
iphillips@floridajustice.com, dmalone@floridajustice.com, this 15" day of May, 2018.

PURDY, JOLLY, GIUFFREDA & BARRANCO, P.A.
Attorneys for Defendants

2455 East Sunrise Boulevard, Suite 1216

Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33304

Telephone (954) 462-3200

Telecopier (954) 462-3861

E-mail: greg@purdylaw.com

BY /s/ Gregory J. Jolly
GREGORY J.JOLLY
Fla. Bar No.: 118287
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

VIOLA BRYANT, as Personal Case No. 2:16¢v14072
Representative of the Estate of
GREGORY VAUGHN HILL, JR.,

Plantiff,
VS.

SHERIFF KEN MASCARA i his official
Capacity as Sheriff of St. Lucie County,
and CHRISTOPHER NEWMAN,

an individual,

Defendants.
/

DEFENDANTS’ INITIAL DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO FRCP 26 (a)(1)

Pursuant to Fed. R.Civ. P. 26(a)(1), Defendants, by and through their undersigned counsel
submit the following disclosures:

(A) Individuals likely to have discoverable information that the Defendants may use to
support defenses:

I. Jeffrey T. Ball
10 Kassaba Lane
Port St. Lucie, FL 34952

Mr. Ball may have knowledge regarding the handgun the decedent had on his person
at the time of the subject incident.

2. Detective Blatchford

c/o St. Lucie County Sheriff's Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.

Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Detective Blatchford has knowledge regarding his canvas of the neighborhood where
the subject incident occurred.
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3. Andrew (DJ) Brown
1908 Avenue Ave O
Fort Pierce, FL 34950

Mr. Brown is Gregory Hill’s cousin. He is expected to have knowledge regarding
Plaintiff’s alleged damages. He may have knowledge regarding Mr. Hill’s activities
prior to the shooting as well as Mr. Hill’s alcohol usage.

4. Detective Matthew Briglia #1126
c/o St. Lucie County Sheriff’s Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.

Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Detective Briglia has knowledge regarding his involvement at the scene wherein he
conducted an observation of the crime scene and interviews of Deputy Newman and
Deputy Lopez.

5. Detective Frank Burns #1076

c/o St. Lucie County Sheriff's Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.

Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Detective Burns has knowledge regarding videotaping the scene, taking photos of Deputy
Newman, and aerial photos of scene (in helicopter).

6. CSI Donna Carmichael #710

c/o St. Lucie County Sheriff’s Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.

Fort Pierce, FL 34952

CSI Carmichael has knowledge about the autopsy and the investigation of the subject
incident, specifically taking photographs and searching for shell casings.

7. Joseph Carollo
1458 Se Colchester Cir.
Port St. Lucie, FL 34952

Mr. Carollo may have knowledge regarding the handgun the decedent had on his person
at the time of the subject incident.
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8. Mark Chapman, Crimmalist
Indian River Crime Laboratory
at Indian River State College
4602 Kirby Loop Road

Ft. Pierce, FL 34981

Mr. Chapman has knowledge regarding his examination of Deputy Newman’s
firearms.

0. Sergeant Christopher M. Cicco #677
c/o St. Lucie County Sheriff’s Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.

Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Sgt. Cicco has knowledge regarding his involvement at the scene with the Remotec F-
6 robot and Sentinel Remote Surveillance Camera/Repeater System.

10. Detective Wade Courtemanche
Special Weapons and Tactics (SWAT)
c/o St. Lucie County Sheriff's Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.

Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Detective Courtemanche has knowledge regarding his nvolvement at the scene as part
of'an entry team of the subject residence.

1. Tammy Davis
1400 Avenue Q
Fort Pierce, FL 34950

Ms. Davis is a teacher at F.K. Sweet Elementary who may have knowledge about the
subject incident or Mr. Hill’s activities prior to the shooting.

12. Terrica Monique Davis
703 Made Drive
Fort Pierce, FL 34981

Ms. Davis was Gregory Hill’s fiancé. She is expected to have knowledge regarding
Plamntiff’s alleged damages. She may have knowledge regarding Mr. Hill’s activities
prior to the shooting as well as Mr. Hill’s alcohol usage.
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13. Sergeant Jim DeFonzo #728

c/o St. Lucie County Sheriff's Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.

Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Sgt. DeFonzo has knowledge regarding his mvolvement at the scene.

14. Detective Scott DeMichael

c/o St. Lucie County Sheriff's Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.

Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Detective DeMichael has knowledge regarding his canvas of the neighborhood where
the subject incident occurred.

15. Lizabeth Enriquez-Ruiz
337 North US Hwy 1
Fort Pierce, FL 34950

Ms. Enriquez-Ruiz may have knowledge about the subject incident or Gregory Hill’s
activities prior to the shooting.

16. Shirley Fowler
1400 Avenue Q
Fort Pierce, FL 34950

Ms. Fowler may have knowledge about the subject incident or Gregory Hill’s
activities prior to the shooting.

17. Kelly Fox, Esq.
Assistant State Attorney

This witness has knowledge regarding approval of a search warrant.

18. Arnold Gaines
1505 Ave Q,
Fort Pierce, FL 34950

Mr. Gaines may have knowledge about the subject incident or Gregory Hill’s
activities prior to the shooting.
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19. Theresse D. Gaines
1505 Ave Q,
Fort Pierce, FL 34950

Mrs. Gaines may have knowledge about the subject incident or Gregory Hill’s
activities prior to the shooting.

20. Doris Garret (neighbor-heard gunshots)
1804 16" Street N,
Fort Pierce, FL 34950

Mrs. Garret may have knowledge about the subject incident or Gregory Hill’s
activities prior to the shooting.

21. Detective Michael Gajewski #1539
c/o St. Lucie County Sheriff’s Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.

Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Detective Gajewski has knowledge regarding his involvement with the SWAT team at
the subject scene.

22. Lt. A. K. Goodner #312

c/o St. Lucie County Sheriff’s Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.

Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Lt. Goodner may have knowledge of the subject scene.

23. Jeff Hamrick
State Attorney Investigator

Mr. Hamrick may have knowledge regarding the autopsy.

24, Donna Hellums
1400 Avenue Q
Fort Pierce, FL 34950

Mrs. Hellums may have knowledge about the subject incident or Mr. Hill’s activities
prior to the shooting.
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25. Detective Jennifer Hendricks

c/o St. Lucie County Sheriff's Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.

Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Detective Hendricks has knowledge regarding her canvas of the neighborhood where
the subject incident occurred, specifically the witnesses from F.K.Sweet Elementary
school.

26. Jefirey Hendricks, Esq.
Assistant State Attorney

Mr. Hendricks has knowledge regarding search warrant applications to search residence.

217. Detective Michelle Hernandez #1412
c/o St. Lucie County Sheriff’s Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.
Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Detective Hernandez may have knowledge regarding her involvement in the investigation
mnto the subject incident.

28. Sergeant Hester #1042

St. Lucie County Sheriff’'s Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.

Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Sgt. Hester has knowledge regarding his involvement with the SWAT team at the
subject scene.

29. Deputy T. Johnson

St. Lucie County Sheriff’'s Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.

Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Deputy Johnson has knowledge regarding his involvement with the SWAT team at the
subject scene.
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30. Lieutenant Larry Hostetler

Members of Criminal Investigations Division (CID)
c/o St. Lucie County Sheriff’s Office

4700 W. Midway Rd.

Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Lt. Hostetler may have knowledge regarding his involvement in the investigation into
the subject incident.

31. Investigator Edgar J. Lebeau #1060
c/o St. Lucie County Sheriff's Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.
Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Investigator Lebeau has knowledge regarding his mnvolvement at the scene and
conducting interviews.

32. Detective Robert Lee #901

c/o St. Lucie County Sheriff's Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.

Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Det. Lee has knowledge regarding his canvas of the neighborhood where the subject
incident occurred.

33. Deputy Edward Lopez #217 (Defendant)
c/o Purdy, Jolly, Guuffreda & Barranco, P.A.
2455 E. Sunrise Blvd., Suite 1216

Ft. Lauderdale, FLL 33304

Deputy Lopez has knowledge regarding his activities on the subject date to include his
interaction with Gregory Hill and the subject shooting.

34. Elish Mancuso
1400 Avenue Q
Fort Pierce, FL 34950

Ms. Mancuso may have knowledge about the subject incident or Mr. Hill’s activities
prior to the shooting.
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35. Lisa McGuire
1400 Avenue Q
Fort Pierce, FL 34950

Ms. McGuire may have knowledge about the subject incident or Mr. Hill’s activities
prior to the shooting.

36. William Russell Melton
1405 Avenue Q.
Fort Pierce, FL 34950

Mr. Melton may have knowledge about the subject incident or Mr. Hill’s activities
prior to the shooting.

37. Stefanie Ann Mills
8102 Carnoustie Pl.
Port St. Lucie, FL 34986

Ms. Mills may have knowledge about the subject incident or Mr. Hill’s activities prior
to the shooting.

38. David Morales
1400 Avenue Q
Fort Pierce, FL 34950

Mr. Morales may have knowledge about the subject incident or Mr. Hill’s activities
prior to the shooting.

39. Deputy Christopher E. Newman #280 Defendant
c/o Purdy, Jolly, Guuffreda & Barranco, P.A.
2455 E. Sunrise Blvd., Suite 1216

Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33304

Deputy Newman has knowledge regarding his activities on the subject date to include
his interaction with Gregory Hill and the subject shooting.
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40. Detective Troy E. Norman #1102
c/o St. Lucie County Sheriff's Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.

Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Detective Norman has knowledge regarding his canvas of the neighborhood where the
subject incident occurred.

41. Christy Jo Nuccio
1400 Avenue Q
Fort Pierce, FL 34950

Ms. Nuccio may have knowledge about the subject incident or Gregory Hill’s
activities prior to the shooting.

42. Dr. Linda O’Neil, ME
Office of the Medical Examiner, District 19

Dr. O’Neil has knowledge regarding the autopsy she conducted on Gregory Hill. She
may have knowledge regarding Mr. Hill’s injuries and cause of death from the subject
shooting,)

43, Sandra Park-Picano
1400 Ave Q.
Fort Pierce, FL 34950

Ms. Park-Picano may have knowledge about the subject incident or Gregory Hill’s
activities prior to the shooting.

44, Supervisor Robert M. Petit #967
c/o St. Lucie County Sheriff's Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.

Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Mr. Petit may have knowledge regarding his involvement at the scene.
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45.

Detective Kevin Pfeiffer #1327
Computer Forensic Unit

c/o St. Lucie County Sheriff’s Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.

Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Det. Pfeiffer has knowledge regarding the data extraction he conducted on Gregory
Hill’s cell phone.

46.

Jorge Rosado
1705 N. 15" Street
Fort Pierce, FL 34950

Mr. Rosado may have knowledge about the subject incident or Gregory Hill’s
activities prior to the shooting.

47.

Charles Russ
1803 16" Street N.
Fort Pierce, FL 34950

Mr. Charles Russ may have knowledge about the subject incident or Gregory Hill’s
activities prior to the shooting.

48.

Ricky Andre Russ
1803 16™ Street N.
Fort Pierce, FL 34950

Mr. Ricky Russ may have knowledge about the subject incident or Gregory Hill’s
activities prior to the shooting.

49.

Sergeant Steve Sessoms

c/o St. Lucie County Sheriff's Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.

Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Sgt. Sessoms may have knowledge regarding his involvement at the subject scene.

50.

Sergeant Mike Sheelar #485

c/o St. Lucie County Sheriff's Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.

Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Sgt. Sheelar has knowledge regarding his inspection of Deputy Lopez’s gun.

10
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51. Stedman A. Smith
1706 16" Street N
Fort Pierce, FL 34950

Mr. Smith may have knowledge about the subject incident or Gregory Hill’s activities
prior to the shooting.

52. Deputy Karen Stephens #1481

c/o St. Lucie County Sheriff's Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.

Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Deputy Stephens has knowledge regarding her involvement as a member of the
negotiation team during the investigation.

53. Tony Stevens
1908 Avenue O
Fort Pierce, FL 34950

Mr. Stevens is Gregory Hill’s uncle. He is expected to have knowledge regarding
Plaintiff’s alleged damages. He may have knowledge regarding Mr. Hill’s activities
prior to the shooting.

54. Detective Paul Taylor

c/o St. Lucie County Sheriff’s Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.

Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Det. Paul Taylor has knowledge regarding his canvas of the neighborhood where the
subject incident occurred, specifically the witnesses from F.K.Sweet Elementary
school.

55. Detective Timothy Taylor #1699

c/o St. Lucie County Sheriff's Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.

Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Det. Timothy Taylor has knowledge regarding search warrant applications and his
assistance with conducting walk through videos of Deputy Newman and Deputy
Lopez.

11
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56. Sherman Lee Thomas
1706 North 15™ Street
Fort Pierce, FL 34950

Mr. Thomas may have knowledge about the subject incident or Gregory Hill’s
activities prior to the shooting.

57. Victoria Thomas
1707 North 15" Street
Fort Pierce, FL 34950

Mrs. Thomas may have knowledge about the subject incident or Gregory Hill’s
activities prior to the shooting.

58. Walter Thomas
1707 North 15" Street
Fort Pierce, FL 34950

Mr. Thomas may have knowledge about the subject incident or Gregory Hill’s activities
prior to the shooting.

59. CSI Genynne Vazquez #1739

c/o St. Lucie County Sheriff’s Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.

Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Ms. Vazquez has knowledge regarding her mvolvement at the scene wherein she took
aerial photographs and aerial video of the property.

60. Merv Waldron, Investigator
District 19 Medical Examiner’s Office

Mr. Waldron has knowledge regarding his mvolvement on the scene.

61. Detective Eric Wax #1609

c/o St. Lucie County Sheriff's Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.

Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Det. Wax has knowledge regarding his canvas of the neighborhood where the subject
incident occurred, specifically the witnesses from F.K.Sweet Elementary school.

12
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62. Detective Wentz #917
c/o St. Lucie County Sheriff's Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.
Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Det. Wentz has knowledge regarding his mvolvement at the scene and his canvas of
the neighborhood where the subject incident occurred.

63. Kanesha L. White
1804 16™ Street N.
Fort Pierce, FL 34950

Ms. White is Gregory Hill’s cousin. She is expected to have knowledge regarding
Plamtiff’s alleged damages. She may have knowledge regarding Mr. Hill’s activities
prior to the shooting as well as Mr. Hill’s alcohol usage.

64. Juanita Wright
1400 Avenue Q
Fort Pierce, FL 34950

Ms. Wright may have knowledge about the subject incident or Mr.Hill’s activities
prior to the shooting.

65. Detective Richard Young #174

c/o St. Lucie County Sheriff’s Office
4700 W. Midway Rd.

Fort Pierce, FL 34952

Detective Young has knowledge regarding the subject nvestigation, specifically
regarding Deputy Newman’s Glock, and evidence at the scene.

66. Susan Adams

Wouesthoff Reference Laboratory
6800 Spyglass Court
Melbourne, FL 32940

Ms. Adams has knowledge regarding Gregory Hill’s toxicology results.

67. All witnesses identified by the Plaintiff in her initial disclosures pursuant to Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 26(a)(1).

Defendants will supplement the initial disclosures of individuals likely to have discoverable

13
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mformation in accordance with Fed.R.Civ. P. 26(e)(1)(A).
(B) All documents, electronically stored information and tangible things in the possession,

custody or control of Defendants, and that the Defendants may use to support their claims or
defenses

Defendants reserve the right to supplement, amend and otherwise modify this list after further

discovery and investigation, and may rely upon additional materials.

DEF. DESCRIPTION OF EXHIBITS

NO.

1 Application and Affidavit for Search Warrant for property (signed 1/14/14) (3 pages)

2 Search Warrant, including Inventory and Return for Property (3 pages)

3 Application and Affidavit for Search Warrant for property (signed 1/14/14) (2 pages)

4 Search Warrant, including Inventory and Return for Property (2 pages)

5 Application and Affidavit for Search Warrant for cell phone (signed 1/24/14) (3
pages)

6 Search Warrant, including Inventory and Return for cell phone (signed 1/24/14) (3
pages)

7 CAD (2 pages)

8 CD containing songs Gregory Hill was listening to prior to subject incident

9 Communications- Event Report (Report Generated 1/15/14 13:38:11) (14 pages)

10 Communications- Event Report (Report Generated 1/15/14 13:38:33) (10 pages)

11 Communications- Event Report (Report Generated 1/15/14 13:38:41) (7 pages)

12 Communications- Event Report (Report Generated 1/15/14 13:38:49 (3 pages)

13 Communications- Event Report (Report Generated 1/15/14 13:39:04) (4 pages)

14 Computer informational screen print out (with photo of Gregory V. Hill) (1 page)

14
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15 Computer nformational screen print out (with information of Gregory V. Hill) (1
page)

16 Crime Scene Diagram (4 pages)

17 Crime Scene Logs (4 pages)

18 Evidence List (dated 2/13/14 10:15:52 am) (1 pages)

19 Evidence List (undated) (2 pages)

20 Google Images (2 mmages of 1501 Avenue 1501 Avenue Q)

21 Google Pro Images (4 images of subject property)

22 Laboratory Report (3 pages)

23 Medical Examiners Report, including Death Investigation Field Report) (10 pages)

24 Pictures of Scene (1 CD containing 306 pictures)

25 Pictures of Scene (including autopsy pictures) (1 CD containing 207 pictures)

26 St. Lucie County Sheriff's Office Digital Extraction Report (18 pages)

27 St. Lucie County Sheriff's Office Incident/Investigative Report Case No.: 14-00572
(including supplemental reports) (70 pages)

28 St. Lucie County Sheriff’'s Office Memorandum to Deputy Lopez from Major David
R. Thompson dated 1/15/14 (1 page)

29 St. Lucie County Sheriff's Office Memorandum to Deputy Newman from Major
David R. Thompson dated 1/15/14 (1 page)

30 St. Lucie County Sheriff’s Office Memorandum to Major David R. Thompson from
Lt. Larry Hostetler dated 1/21/14 (1 page)

31 St. Lucie County Sheriff's Office Memorandum to Deputy Lopez from Major David
R. Thompson dated 1/22/14 (1 page)

32 St. Lucie County Sheriff’'s Office Memorandum to Deputy Newman from Major
David R. Thompson dated 1/22/14 (1 page)

33 St. Lucie County Sheriff’'s Office Memorandum to Cpt. Jerry Rothman from Lt.
Larry Hostetler dated 2/20/14 (4 page)

34 St. Lucie County Sheriff's Office Powerpoint regarding subject incident (no title) (25
slides)

35 St. Lucie County Sheriff’'s Office’s Press Release, including two Google pictures of

the subject property (undated) (3 pages)
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36 St. Lucie County Sheriff’'s Office’s Press Release dated 1/28/14 (3 pages)
37 St. Lucie County Sheriff's Office’s Use of Force Report (4 pages)

38 Toxicology Report (2 pages)

39 Transcribed Initial Interview of Deputy Lopez (6 pages)

40 Transcribed Initial Interview of Deputy Lopez (part 2) (1 page)

41 Transcribed Initial Interview of Deputy Newman (5 pages)

42 Transcribed Walk through interview of Deputy Lopez (8 pages)

43 Transcribed Walk through interview of Deputy Newman (2 pages)

44 Witness Statement (audio file) of Shirley Fowler (1 CD)

45 Witness Statement (audio file) of Lisa McGuire

46 Witness Statement (audio file) of Christy Nuccio (1 CD)

47 Witness Statement (audio file) of Sandra Park-Picano (1 CD)

48 Witness Statement (audio interview transcribed) of Lizbeth Enriquez-Ruiz, including

Google photo of property from where she was at, at the time the subject incident
occurred (8 pages)

49 Witness Statement (audio interview transcribed) of Lisa McGuire (8 pages)

50 Witness Statement (audio interview transcribed) of Stephanie Mills (8 pages)

51 Witness Statement (written) of Shirley Ann Fowler (1 page)

52 Witness Statement (written) of Donna L. Hellums (1 page)

53 Witness Statement (written) of Lisa McGuire, including Google photo of property
from where she was at, at the time the subject incident occurred (3 pages)

54 Witness Statement (written) David M. Morales (1 page)

55 Witness Statement (written) Christy Nuccio (1 page)

56 Witness Statement (written) Sandra P. Picano (1 page)

57 Witness Statement (written) Juanita Wright (1 page)

58 Written statement of Shirley Ann Fowler (1 page)

59 All exhibits produced by the Plaintiff in her mitial disclosures pursuant to Federal

Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 26(a)(1).
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a copy of the foregoing was furnished via email to: John M.
Phillips, Esquire, T.C. Roberts, Esquire, Brent Latour, Esquire, Law Office of John M. Phillips,

LLC, 4230 Ortega Boulevard, Jacksonville, FL 32210; jphilips@floridajustice.com,

dmalone@floridajustice.com, tc@floridajustice.com, brent@floridajustice.com this _ 20"  day of

May, 2016.

PURDY, JOLLY, GIUFFREDA & BARRANCO, P.A.
Attorneys for Defendants
2455 East Sunrise Blvd., Suite 1216
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33304
Telephone (954) 462-3200
Telecopier (954) 462-3861
Email: summer@purdylaw.com
melissa@purdylaw.com

BY s/ Summer M. Barranco
SUMMER M. BARRANCO
Fla. Bar No. 984663
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

VIOLA BRYANT, as Personal Case No. 2:16¢v14072
Representative of the Estate of
GREGORY VAUGHN HILL, JR.,

Plantiff,
VS.

SHERIFF KEN MASCARA i his official
Capacity as Sheriff of St. Lucie County,
and CHRISTOPHER NEWMAN,

an individual,

Defendants.
/

DEFENDANTS’ EXPERT DISCLOSURES

The Defendants, KEN MASCARA, i his official capacity as SHERIFF OF ST. LUCIE
COUNTY, and CHRISTOPHER NEWMAN, in his individual capacity, by and through their
undersigned counsel, in accordance with Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 26(a)(2) and pursuant to
the Court’s Second Amended Scheduling Order dated October 31, 2016 [DE 39] as extended by
agreement of the parties hereby files their Expert Disclosures as follows:

RETAINED EXPERTS

1. Christopher Lawrence
Elgin Security Consultant, Inc.
22033 Elmwood Square
St. Thomas, Ontario, N5R 6A1

In compliance with Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 26 attached hereto as Exhibit A
is the expert report of Chris Lawrence, his CV, recent deposition and trial testimony
list, and fee schedule for work as an expert witness. It is expected that he will testify
i this case and give opinions consistent with his report.
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NON-RETAINED EXPERTS

1. Dr. Linda O’Neil, ME
Office of the Medical Examiner, District 19

Dr. O’Neil will provide testimony regarding the autopsy of Gregory Hill and the
autopsy findings, cause of death, and manner of death of Gregory Hill. It is expected
that she will testify in the case and give opinions consistent with her reports.

2. Susan Adams
Wouesthoff Reference Laboratory
6800 Spyglass Court
Melbourne, Florida 32940

Ms. Adams is expected to testify regarding the tests conducted on the specimens
submitted to the Wuesthoff Reference Laboratory in this case, the results of same as
well as the chain of custody of that evidence.

3. Sgt. Kyle King
c/o Indian River County Sheriff’'s Office
4055 41st Avenue
Vero Beach, FL 32960

Sgt. King is expected to testify regarding his knowledge regarding reconstruction of
the subject incident.

4. Daniel C. Nippes
Laboratory Director
Indian River Crime Laboratory at Indian River State College
4602 Kirby Loop Road
Ft. Pierce, FL 34981

Mr. Nippes is expected to testify regarding the Indian River Crime Laboratory Report
dated May 20, 2014 for the forensic biology examination of Mr. Hill's DNA and the
DNA swabs of the Kel-Tec pistol.

5. Analyst who reviewed and analyzed the evidence submitted in the Indian River
Crime Laboratory Report dated May 20, 2014 for the forensic biology examination
of Mr. Hill's DNA and the DNA swabs of the Kel-Tec pistol.

Indian River Crime Laboratory at Indian River State College
4602 Kirby Loop Road
Ft. Pierce, FL 34981
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This individual is expected to testify regarding his review of the evidence as
referenced in the Indian River Crime Laboratory Report dated May 20, 2014 for the
forensic biology examination of Mr. Hill's DNA and the DNA swabs of the Kel-Tec

pistol.

6. Robert Parsons, Jr.
Blood Alcohol Analyst
Indian River Crime Laboratory at Indian River State College
4602 Kirby Loop Road
Ft. Pierce, FL 34981

Mr. Parsons is expected to testify regarding his review of the evidence as referenced
in the Indian River Crime Laboratory Report dated May 20, 2014 for the forensic
biology examination of Mr. Hil’'s DNA and the DNA swabs of the Kel-Tec pistol
as well as chain of custody of this evidence.

RESERVATION OF RIGHTS

The Defendants reserve the right to call additional witnesses to rebut or respond to any
testimony presented by the Plaintiff’'s witnesses or experts.

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I furnished a copy via email a copy to: John M. Phillips,
Esquire, T.C. Roberts, Esquire, Brent Latour, Esquire, Law Office of John M. Phillips, LLC,
4230 Ortega Boulevard, Jacksonville, FLL 32210); jphillips@floridajustice.com,
dmalone@floridajustice.com, te@floridajustice.com, brent@floridajustice.com this 27" day of
December, 2016.

PURDY, JOLLY, GIUFFREDA & BARRANCO, P.A.
Attorneys for Defendants
2455 East Sunrise Boulevard, Suite 1216
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33304
Telephone (954) 462-3200
Telecopier (954) 462-3861
Email: summer@purdylaw.com
melissa@purdylaw.com

BY s/ Summer M. Barranco
SUMMER M. BARRANCO
Fla. Bar No. 984663
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 2:16-cv-14072-ROSENBERG/HOPKINS

VIOLA BRYANT, as Personal Representative
of the Estate of GREGORY VAUGHN HILL, JR.,

Plaintiff,
V.
SHERIFF KEN MASCARA, in his Official
Capacity as Sheriff of St. Lucie County and
CHRISTOPHER NEWMAN,

Defendants.

SUPPLEMENTAL MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF PLAINTIFFE’S OBJECTION
TO DEFENDANTS’ INTRODUCTION OF EXHIBIT NUMBER 30 [DE188]

COMES NOW, Plaintiff, VIOLA BRYANT, as Personal Representative of the Estate of
GREGORY VAUGHN HILL, JR., by and through her undersigned counsel, and hereby
respectfully submits this Supplemental Memorandum in Support of Plaintiff’s Objection to
Defendants exhibit number thirty as listed to Defendants’ Third Amended Exhibit and Witness
List [DE177].

Specifically, Defendants’ seek to introduce exhibit number thirty which contains a
Microsoft PowerPoint presentation prepared by Sergeant Kyle King of the Indian River County
Sheriff’s Office. This PowerPoint presentation contains a series of reconstructed animated
illustrations which depicts a contested version of the subject incident. Plaintiff objects to the
introduction of the text contained within the PowerPoint because it contains hearsay statements.

In addition, Plaintiff objects to the introduction of this exhibit as it is akin to an expert report.
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PLAINTIFF OBJECTS TO THE TEXT CONTAINED WITHIN THE POWERPOINT

Specifically, Plaintiff objects to the text contained within Defendant’s exhibit thirty. The
twenty-three slide PowerPoint presentation contains various hearsay statements. In addition, the
sources of the statements are omitted from the presentation. Furthermore, many of the
statements contained within the presentation are conclusory.*

In addition to the text, the PowerPoint contains a series of animated depictions of the
subject incident. The animations, predicated upon non-authenticated statements, were developed
by Sgt. King. Plaintiff is agreeable to withdraw her objection to the animations contained within
the PowerPoint. However, Plaintiff maintains her objection to the unsourced text throughout the
exhibit.

PLAINTIFF AGREES THAT SGT. KING BE PERMITTED TO USE THE
ANIMATIONS WITH EXHIBIT THIRTY AS A DEMONSTRATIVE AID

Plaintiff maintains her objections to the text contained within the PowerPoint
presentation. However, assuming Defendants lay the proper foundation, Plaintiff is agreeable

that Sgt. King be permitted to use the animated slides as a demonstrative aid. Plaintiff maintains

1 “Newman hears music becoming louder as garage door opens.”

“Hill standing on west side of open door with gun in hand looking toward Lopez.”
“Gun in Hills right hand moves upward pointing toward Lopez.”

“Hills Kel-Tec 9mm”

“Garage Door of residence closed”

“Loud vulgar music coming from garage interior”

“Deputies Newman and Lopez attempt to make contact with occupants.”

“Garage door closed”

“Deputy Newman bangs on garage door in an attempt to contact occupant.”
“Newman knocking on front door and Lopez standing at northwest corner of garage.”
“Lopez yells, “Sheriff's Office”. Lopez sees Hill with a gun and Lopez yells, “gun”.
“Newman turns towards Hill and sees Hill with gun.”

“Newman yelled for Hill to drop the gun.”

“Newman fears Lopez will be shot.”

“Newman fires four times towards Hill as garage door is closing.”

“2nd shot entering & exiting door striking Hill in the groin”

“3rd and 4t projectiles entered garage door and exited into the interior striking Hill in the abdomen and head”
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her objection to the introduction of this PowerPoint into evidence, as it is akin to an expert
report.

DEFENDANTS’ REPLY

Pursuant to this honorable courts request, Plaintiff and Defendants’ have conferred about
the objected evidence. Defendants’ informed Plaintiff that they were “close” to agreeing with
Plaintiff. However, Defendants’ were unwilling to withdraw the text at the time of conferral.

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

| HEREBY CERTIFY that | electronically filed the foregoing with the Clerk of the
Court using the CM/ECF and a copy hereof has been furnished to Summer M. Barranco, Esquire,
Purdy, Jolly, Giuffreda & Barranco, P.A., 2455 East Sunrise Boulevard, Suite 1216, Fort

Lauderdale, FL 33304, by email to summer@purdylaw.com, and melissa@purdylaw.com, this

18™ day of May, 2018.

Law Office of John M. Phillips, LLC

/s/ Kirby Johnson

JOHN M. PHILLIPS, ESQUIRE
Florida Bar Number: 0477575
NATASHIA D. HINES, ESQUIRE
Florida Bar Number: 89072

KIRBY W. JOHNSON, ESQUIRE
Florida Bar Number: 113323

4230 Ortega Boulevard

Jacksonville, FL 32210

(904) 444-4444

(904) 508-0683 (facsimile)
Attorneys for Plaintiff
iphillips@floridajustice.com
michele@floridajustice.com
Natashia@floridajustice.com
Kirby@floridajustice.com
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

VIOLA BRYANT, as Personal Case No. 2:16cv14072-ROSENBERG/LYNCH
Representative of the Estate of
GREGORY VAUGHN HILL, JR.,

Plaintiff,
VS.

SHERIFF KEN MASCARA in his official
Capacity as Sheriff of St. Lucie County,
and CHRISTOPHER NEWMAN,

an individual,

Defendants.
/

DEFENDANTS’ RESPONSE TO PLAINTIFF’S SUPPLEMENTAL MEMORANDUM
IN SUPPORT OF PLAINTIFF’S OBJECTION TO DEFENDANTS’ INTRODUCTION
OF EXHIBIT NUMBER 30 [DE 211]

The Defendants, SHERIFF MASCARA in his official capacity as Sheriff of St. Lucie
County, and CHRISTOPHER NEWMAN, in his individual capacity, pursuant to this Court’s
paperless Order requiring a response to Plaintiff’s Supplement to docket entry 188 regarding
Defendants’ Exhibit 30 [DE 208], file this their Response to Plaintiff’s Supplemental Memorandum
In Support of Plaintiff’s Objection to Defendants’ Introduction of Exhibit Number 30 [DE 211], and
would state as follows:

The Defendants agree that they will not utilize any text portion of their Exhibit 30. Moreover,
to they extent they utilize any on the animations or photographs contained therein, they will do so
for demonstrative purposes only (unless any of the photographs are otherwise already in evidence
as another exhibit). As a result, it appears that the Plaintiff’s concerns in regard to this exhibit are

now moot.
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I electronically filed the foregoing with the Clerk of the Court
using the CM/ECF and furnished via email a copy to: John M. Phillips, Esquire, Law Office of
John M. Phillips, LLC, 4230 Ortega Boulevard, Jacksonville, FL 32210;
jiphillips@floridajustice.com, dmalone@floridajustice.com, this 20" day of May, 2018.

PURDY, JOLLY, GIUFFREDA & BARRANCO, P.A.

Attorneys for Defendants

2455 East Sunrise Boulevard, Suite 1216

Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33304

Telephone (954) 462-3200

Telecopier (954) 462-3861

Email: summer@purdylaw.com
melissa@purdylaw.com

BY s/ Summer M. Barranco
SUMMER M. BARRANCO
Fla. Bar No. 984663
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO, 2:16-cv-14072-ROSENBERG/HOPKINS

VIOLA BRYANT, as Personal Representative
of the Estate of GREGORY VAUGHN HILL, JR.,

Plaintiff,
v.

SHERIFF KEN MASCARA, in his Official
Capacity as Sheriff of St. Lucie County and
CHRISTOPHER NEWMAN,

Defendants.

PLAINTIFE’S MOTION FOR NEW TRIAL,

Plaintiff, VIOLA BRYANT, as Personal Representative of the Estate of GREGORY
VAUGHN HILL, JR., by and through her undersigned counsel, moves this Honorable Court for
a new trial. In support thereof, Plaintiff states the following:

This cause came on for trial for six days commencing on May 17, 2018 and ending on
May 24, 2018. Just before 5:00pm on May 24, 2018, the jury returned a perplexing or punitive

verdict. [DE 223] The returned verdict was vastly inconsistent with the evidence presented at

trial. Moreover, the verdict was influenced by improper evidence, incomplete evidence, juror
confusion regarding essential instructions and key terms, material changes in testimony and
expert opinions, and/or improper argument by the Defense. Singularly and as a whole the
aforementioned issues were highly prejudicial to the Plaintiff and contributed to a verdict against
the manifest weight of the evidence.

Pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 59, “[t]he court may, on motion, grant a new trial on all or

some of the issues—and to any party—as follows: After a jury trial for any reason or which a
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new trial has heretofore been granted in an action at law in federal court...” Fed. R. Civ. P.
59(a). A judge should grant a new trial when, “the verdict is against the clear weight of the
evidence or will result in a miscarriage of justice, even though there may be substantial evidence
which would prevent the direction of a verdict.” Lipphardt v. Durango Steakhouse of Brandon,
267 F.3d 1183, 1186 (11% Cir. 2001).

A motion for new trial is committed to the sound discretion of the trial court, and a more
lenient standard is applied than with a motion for judgment as a matter of law. Kubiak v. S. W.
Cowboy, Inc., No. 3:12-CV-1306-J-34JRK, 2016 WL 5933388, at *2 (M.D. Fla. Oct. 12, 2016).
When considering a motion for new trial, the court is to view not only that evidence favoring the
jury verdict but evidence in favor of the moving party as well. Williams v. City of Valdosta, 689
F.2d 964, 973 (11th Cir. 1982), The court is permitted to reweigh the evidence in determining
whether to grant a new trial. Id. at 973

Though courts generally sustain jury verdicts if reasonable bases exist to uphold them,
they will not do so when the trial was unfair and substantial errors occurred in the admission or
rejection of evidence and in the giving or refusal to give jury instructions. {I]f one cannot say,
with fair assurance ...that the judgment was not substantially swayed by the error, it is
impossible to conclude that substantial rights were not affected. Among the factors to consider in
determining whether [Plaintiffs’] substantial rights were affected are the number of errors, the
closeness of the factual disputes, the prejudicial effect of the evidence, the instructions given,
and whether counsel intentionally elicited the evidence and focused on it during the trial. detna
Casualty & Surety Co. v. Gosdin, 803 F.2d 1153, 1160 (11th Cir. 1986).

In this case, the unorthodox verdict, the submission of incomplete evidence for the jury’s

consideration, juror confusion regarding jury instructions and key terms on the verdict form,
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improper Defense presentation of evidence and improper testimony from Defense witnesses
were highly prejudicial to Plaintiff, It cannot be said with fair assutﬁnce that the verdict was not
substantially swayed by the singular or cumulative effect of these errors and evidentiary issues.
Ad-Vantage Telephone Directory Consultants, Inc. v. GTE Directories Corp., 37 F.3d 1460,
1465 (11th Cir. 1994) (internal citations omitted). Further, the greater weight of the evidence did
not suggest that Gregory Vaughn Hill, Jr., was 99% negligent in the incident that resulted in his
death and -that his intoxication contributed more than 50% to his negligence, as the jury verdict
would suggest.

L IMPROPER AND INCONSISTENT TESTIMONY FROM DEFENSE EXPERT
CHRISTOPHER LAWRENCE

Fed. R. Civ. P. 59(a)}(1)(A) allows the court to grant a new trial “for any of the reasons
for which new trials have heretofore been granted.” Fed. R. Civ. P. 60 allows the court to grant a
partial new trial “upon such terms as are just,” on the grounds of “misrepi-esentation, or other
misconduet of an adverse party,” among other grounds. (Emphasis added). The standards for
granting new trials are essentially the same under both rules.

A new trial is propetly granted where a party can prove by clear and convincing evidence
that verdict was obtained through fraud, misrepresentation, or other misconduct, and that
conduct complained of prevented the losing party from fully and fairly presenting his case or
defense. Fed. R. Civ. P. 59 and 60.The rule applies to miscondu& in withholding information
called for by discovery and it does not require that the information withheld be ot such a nature
as to alter the result in the case. The rule is addressed to judgments that are unfairly obtained and
not at those which are factually incorrect. Rozier v. Ford Motor Ce., 573 F.2d 1332, 1339 ('5"’

Cir. 1978).
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Expert testimony falls squarely within the purview of Rule 59 and Rule 60; and is
particularly important in assisting the trier of fact in cases involving allegations of constitutional
violations arising under 42 U.S.C. §1983. Federal Rule of Evidence 702 states, “If scientifie,
technical, or other specialized knowledge will assist the trier of fact to understand the evidence
or to determine a fact in issue, a witness qualified as an expert by knowledge, skill, experience,
training, or education, may testity thereto in the form of an opinion or otherwise.

Of course, each party is permitted to retain an expert to offer such testimony. The party

retaining the expert may not, however, control the expert witness. Fed. R. Evid. 702. Expert

witnesses, as all other witnesses, are bound to testify truthfully. An expert witness should never
become one party's expert advocate. An expert witness should be an advocate of the truth with
testimony to help the court and the jury reach the ultimate truth in a case, which should be the
basis of any verdict, Sefvidge v. U.S,, 160 F.R.D. 153 D. Kansas January 19, 1995 (“The coutt
finds that there is no right on behalf of an expett witness to answer only those questions
propounded to him which he believes he has been retained to answer.”). Van Blargan v. Williams

Hospitality Corporation, 754 F Supp. 246, 248 (D.P.R.1991).

Defendants’ retained expert witness, Christopher Lawrence’s contumacious testimony

created severe prejudice on the proceedings. Defense counsel questioned Defendant’s expert

witness on the stand for over an hour. Defense counsel was never asked to speak up, move or
alter his voice or diction in any way. Prior to Mr. Lawrence’s testimony, Plainiiff’s counsel, a
board certified civil trial attorney, was never asked throughout trial fo “raise his voice” or
otherwise repeat any questions based on volume or diction.

From the instant Plaintiff’s counsel, John Phillips, began cross examination, Defendant’s

expert, Mr. Chris Lawrence displayed bias and attempted to advocate, or obfuscate, to the benefit
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of the Defendant. Mr. Lawrence sought sympathy for a self-proclaimed hearing impairment,

which had never before been a problem at any stage in the proceedings. (Trial Tr. Vol. 51: 4-18).

He constantly claimed he could not hear Plaintiff’s counsel, made him move all around,

raise and lower his voice and otherwise garnered sympathy from the jury while heaping
prejudice upon Plaintiff.
Mr, Lawrence’s misconduct and bias worsened. On question number five, Plaintiff’s

counsel simply asked Mr, Lawrence for an accounting of costs of his services. He refused to

answer this question as his pre-trial deposition. Mr. Lawrence bellowed out his father had
recently passed away a “couple weeks” prior and this and other questions would be difficult to
answer, Id at 15:3-18. Tt was severely unfair and improper. Making matters worse, Mr.
Lawrence testified that his “father died a couple of weeks ago and things have been kind of
upside down.” It was also a lie. Mr. Lawrence’s father died on April 10, 2018, at age 84

(Attached hereto as Exhibit “A” & “B”). While our condolences remain, this is egregious

misconduct. It was one month over a “couple weeks” and could not be impeached or
rchabilitated.

As the selective hearing and excuses mounted (his 3 AM flight, exhaustion, prior travel to

the jurisdiction to testify, but not being called), Mr. Lawrence repeatedly refused to answer
questions, /d. at 54:1-10, He then began to vomit non-responsive answers, including testifying
that a car may have struck a piece of evidence, damaging it. /d at 63:3-12. There was zero
evidence of this fact, which was repeated twice and completely non-responsive. Id. at 64-1-11.
Plaintiff sought the courts intervention at that point.

At least one member of the jury was in Mr. Lawrence’s peer group and appeared visibly

displeased with Mr. Phillips to the point he specifically said he was going to skip forward.
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Invoking “a death in the family” as a shield to further questioning is one of those matters so
inflammatory and offensive that courts need to regulate such misconduct. Furthermore, Mr.

Lawrence’s non-responsive commentary, repeated sudden and selective hearing loss, exhaustion,

and blaming of Plaintiff after a completely problem free direct examination was not only a

violation of Fed. R. Evid. 702, but created such irteversible prejudice that it warrants a new trial

and sanctions.

II. ERRONEOQUS EVIDENTIARY RULINGS

The party seeking a new trial based on an erroneous evidentiary ruling has the burden of
proving that the error prejudiced a substantial right of that party. Munn v. dlgee, 924 ¥ 2d 568,

571 (5th Cir.1991).

a. Undisclosed firearm and shorts used as demonstrative aid

One of the central issues of this trial was whether or not Mr. Hill raised a handgun in the
direction of Deputy Lopez. Less than forty-eight hours prior to trial, Defendants disclosed to

Plaintiff for the first time that they were in possession of, and intended to use as evidence, the

gun allegedly raised by Mr. Hill.

Over Plaintiff’s written and spoken objections, Defendants were granted permission to
display the Kel-Tec handgun to the jury. In addition, Defendants witness Sergeant Lebeau was
permitted to testify about the handgun and perform an impromptu demonstration of placing the
handgun into the back-right pocket of Mr. Hill’s jean shorts. Significantly, Sergeant Lebeau
was not disclosed as an expert witness and was testifying as a lay witness.

Allowing a lay witness to perform an in-court recreation of an event that they themselves
did not witness is erroneous. To do so by swrprise is worse. This lay witness’s recreation not

only constituted unfair surprise, but created a significant substantive disadvantage because
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Plaintiff's actual expert witnesses were not provided opportunity to perform similar testing or

recreations.

Defendants disclosed to Plaintiff that they possessed the subject firearm in an email
transmitted less than forty-eight houts before opening statements. Defendants are prohibited
from engaging in such deceptive practices. Putsuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 26(a)(ii),
Defendants’ initial disclosure must include “a copy—ot a description by category and location—
of all documents, electronically stored information, and tangible things that the disclosing party

has in its possession, custody, or control and may use to support its claims or defenses, unless the

use would be solely for impeachment” (emphasis added) Fed. R. Civ. Pro. 26(2)(1)(A)(ii).
Over the coutse of this litigation, Defendants filed six separate Rule 26(a) disclosures.
The Kel-Tec gun the Defendants presented to the jury was not disclosed in any of them.

Defendants were in possession, custody, or control of the Kel-Tec gun from the day Mr. Hill

died through trial even though the criminal investigation was concluded years before.

Fed. R. Civ. Pro. 37(c)(1) states the sanctions for Defendants failure to timely disclose
their possession of the Kel-Tec. Tt states in pertinent part:

If a party fails to provide information or identify a witness as required by Rule

26(a) or (e), the party is not allowed to use that information or witness to supply

evidence on a motion, at a hearing, or at a trial, unless the failure was
substantially justified or is harmless. Fed. R. Civ. Pro. 37(c)(1)

As discussed above, Defendants failed to disclose their possession of the handgun
pursuant to Rule 26(a). Therefore, pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. Pro. 37(c)(1), Defendants should
have been prohibited from introducing this evidence at trial, unless their failure to disclose was

substantially justified or harmless. As discussed below, Defendants actions were neither,

“In determining whether a failure to disclose evidence is substaniially justified or

harmless, courts are guided by the following factors: the unfair prejudice or surprise of the
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opposing party; the opposing party's ability to cure the surprise; the likelihood and extent of
disruption to the trial; the importance of the evidence; and the offering party's explanation for its
failure to timely disclose the evidence.” (emphasis added) Mobile Shelier Sys. USA, Inc. v. Grate

Pallet Sols., LLC, 845 F. Supp. 2d 1241, 1250-51 (M.D. Fla. 2012),

Plaintiffs are not required to guess or assume in federal court. “Mandatory” means
“mandatory.” Sergeant Lebeau’s in-court demonstration with the Kel-Tec came as a surprise to
Plaintiff. Plaintiff had no ability to cure this late surprise disclosure because she was never
afforded the opportunity to review the evidence nor have her expert witnesses, whom had
already formulated their opinions based upon the properly disclosed evidence, examine the gun.
Defendants’ failure to disclose their possession of the handgun is not remotely justified, let alone
substantially justified.

In addition, Defendants’ failure to disclose is far from harmless. “A harmless error is one

whete one party made an honest mistake and the other had sufficient knowledge of it.” Two Men

& a Truck Int'l, Inc. v. Residential & Commercial Transp. Co., LLC, No. 4:08-CV67-WS/WCS,
2008 WL 5235115, at *2 (N.D. Fla. Oct, 20, 2008).

As stated above, Defendants’ failed to disclose the handgun in all six of their Rule 26(a)
disclosures. It was also not disclosed on a single exhibit list despite Defendants’ sandbagging
Plaintiff with over 500 separate items on said exhibit lists. Defendants’ failure to disclose the
handgun was not the result of sevetal separate honest mistakes. In addition, as stated above,
Plaintiff had absolutely no knowledge that Defendants’ possessed or controlled said gun. Let
alone, sufficient knowledge that Defendants’ were in possession, custody, or control of the gun.

The cumulative effect of repeatedly failing to disclose the handgun in all six of their Rule

26(a) disclosures, their exhibit disclosures, and then compounding this non-disclosure by



Case 2:16-cv-14072-RLR Document 237 Entered on FLSD Docket 06/27/2018 Page 9 of 21
Case: 18-13902 Date @B8dfQ303)2019 Page: 88 of 243

surprising the Plaintiff on the eve of trial, allowing a lay-witness to perform a reconstruction
demonstration of an event the lay-witness never actually saw, and denying the Plaintiff the
opportunity to have her expert witness perform testing on the handgun, amounts to a substantial
injustice and warrants a new frial.

b. Evidence of Mr. Hill’s probationary status

The United States Supreme Court has set forth the standard by which a jury is to judge
Defendant Newman’s actions at the time he fired the fatal shot. The question the jury was asked

to answer is whether or not Defendant Newman acted objectively reasonable in light of the facts

and circumstances confronting him. Graham v. Connor, 490 U.S. 386 (1989). Defendant
Newman was responding to a noise complaint and was clearly and admittedly unaware of Mr.
Hill’s probationary status at the time he fired the fatal shot. As such, Mr. Hill’s probation status
was not a known fact or circumstance confronting Defendant Newman.

As such, Plaintiff moved to exclude evidence of Mr. Hill’s probationary status prior to
and during trial. Immediately prior to jury selection, this honorable court held a brief hearing on
the matter. Plaintiff argued that evidence of Mr. Hill’s probationary status at the time of
shooting is irrelevant, unfairly prejudicial, and constituted inadmissible character evidence. As
discussed below, Plaintiff relied upon the Seventh Circuit opinion in Sherrod v. Berry, 856 F.2d
802 (7™ Cir. 1988) in support of her motion.

Defendants argued that evidence of Mr. Hill’s probationary status was admissible
because it was relevant to Mr. Hill’s speculative motive and/or intent. In support of their
argument, Defendants relied on the Seventh Circuit’s later decision in Escobec;’o v. Martin, 7128
F.3d 388 (7" Cir. 2012). Minutes before the hearing, Defense counsel provided a copy of the

nineteen page Escobedo opinion to Plaintiff. Plaintiff was not given an opportunity to read the
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Escobedo opinion prior to oral arguments and Defendants did not bring forth the negative aspects
of Escobedo to their case.

Defendants’ grossly misstated the holding of Escobedo and argued that evidence of Mr.
Hill’s probationary status is admissible under Escobedo because it was potentially relevant to
Mr. Hill’s motive and/or intent. As discussed below, this honorable court’s reliance on
Defendants’ argument and Escobedo was misled and misplaced under the facts of this case.

As stated previously, Plaintiff relied on Sherrod in support of their motion fo exclude
evidence of Mr. Hill’s probationary status because it was admittedly unknown by Defendant
Newman ai the time of the shooting. Sherrod, a 42 U.8.C §1983 excessive force civil rights
case, states the general rule concerning the admissibility of evidence outside of the shooting
officer’s knowledge at the time he fires. Sherrod held in pertinent part:

“Knowledge of facts and circumstances gained after the fact... has no place in the

trial court’s or jury’s propet post-hoc analysis of the reasonableness of the actot’s

judgment. Were the rule otherwise... the jury would possess more information

that the officer possessed when he made the crucial decision. Thus, we are

convinced that the objective reasonableness standard...requires that Officer

Berry’s liability be determined exclusively upon an examination and

weighing of the information Officer Berry possessed immediately prior to

and at the very moment he fired the fatal shot. The reception of evidence or

any information beyond that which Officer Berry had and reasonably believed at

the time he fired his revolver is improper, irrelevant and prejudicial to the

determination of whether Officer Berry acted reasonably “under the

circumstances.” Sherrod at 804.

However, the Sherrod opinion also enumerated two exceptions to the general rule.

“Our holding today should not be interpreted as establishing a black-letter rule
precluding the admission of evidence which would establish whether the
individual alleging a § 1983 viclation was unarmed at the time of the incident.
Clearly, the credibility of the witness “can always be attacked by showing that
his capacity to observe, temember or narrate is impaired.” 3 Weinstein's Evidence
{ 607[04] p. 607-55. Further, “impeachment by contradiction is a technique
well recognized in the federal cowrts by which specific errors in the witness’s
testimony are brought to the attention of the trier of fact.” (emphasis added) /d. at
806

10
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In Escobedo, the Seventh Circuit applied the Sherrod rule and exceptions when tasked
with determining if the trial court committed reversible error in admitting evidence of the
decedent Plaintiff’s then-upcoming court date and potential five-year prison sentence for his
recent substance abuse violations. The defendant officer was admittedly unaware of the
decedents’ pending trial date at the time of the shooting. The court properly admitted the
evidence, even though it was unknown by the officer at the time of the shooting, because
Plaintiff's estate “opened the door” and the evidence was used to impeach and aftack the

credibility of a testifving witness.

On appeal, the Seventh Circuit held that because one of Plaintiff’s witnesses opened the
door “to [the decedents] demeanor and state of mind, the defense has an opportunity to now
examine it on cross to determine whether or not this witness was aware that [the decedent] had
these other events and situations in his life at the same approximate time.” Escobedo, at 400.
Significantly, it was only after the Plaintiff opened the door to Plaintiff's state of mind that the
contested evidence fell within one of the exceptions to the Sherrod rule and was admitted.

The court went on to explain,
“I'W]hen a party opens the door to evidence that would be otherwise
inadmissible, that paity cannot complain on appeal about the admission of
that evidence.”  Griffin v. Foley, 542 F.3d 209, 219 (7" Cir. 2008)
(quotations omitted). And when a party puts evidence at issue that party
must “accept the consequence[s]” of opening the door to that evidence.
S.E.C. v. Koenig, 557 F.3d 736, 740-41 (7’th Cir. 2009). The Estate
opened the door to evidence concerning Escobedo’s state of mind when it
questioned [the sister] about it.” Id

Cleatly, evidence unknown to the shooting officer was admitted in Escobedo because it

fell within one of the two enumerated exceptions to the Sherrod rule. The evidence was used to

impeach and challenge the credibility of Escobedo’s sister who testified and opened the door
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regarding “her brother’s demeanor and state of mind.” The Escobedo court did not admit
evidence of decedent Plaintiff’s then upcoming court date and potential five-year prison sentence
because it was potentially relevant to motive or intent,

Here, Defendants’ reliance on Escobedo is wholly inapplicable because Plaintiff never
opened the door to evidence of Mr. Hill’s state of mind. At the time evidence of Mr. Hill’s
probation was deemed admissible, no witness had even taken the stand. As such, neither of the
two exceptions enumerated in Sherrod and Escobedo apply.

Defendants have cited to no authority which allows Defendants to introduce evidence of
Mr. Hill’s probationary status at the time he was shot because of some possible or speculative
relevance to motive or intent. Evidence of Mr. Hill’s probationary status was clearly admitted in
error, over objection, and convicted Mr. Hill’s character.

Not every evidentiaty error, of course, requires reversal. The eleventh circuit has held
that a new trial is warranted where the error has caused substantia! prejudice fo the affected party
(or, stated somewhat differently, affected the party's “substantial rights” or resulted in
“substantial injustice”). See, e.g. Hall v. United Ins. Co. of America, 367 F.3d 1255, 125859
(11th Cir.2004) (“substantial prejudice”). Notwithstanding the difference in terminology, the
inquiry is always directed to the same central question—how much of an effect did the
improperly admitted or excluded evidence have on the verdict? Peat Inc. v. Vanguard Research,
Inc., 378 F.3d 1154-62 (11" Cir. 2004).

To answer this question, the court weighs a number of factors, including the closeness of

the factual disputes. the prejudicial effect of the evidence, whether counse! intentionally elicited

the evidence, whether counsel focused on the evidence during the trial, and whether any

cautionary or limiting instructions were given. fd
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Evidence that Mr. Hill was on probation at the time of his death is extremely prejudicial
because it informs the jury that Mr. Hill was a past criminal. Significantly, in thirty years of life,
Mr. Hill was never convicted of a felony. Mr, Hill was on probation for a ctime where he pled
no contest and adjudication of guilt was withheld. Nevertheless, by introducing evidence that
Mr. Hill was on probation, Defendants were permitied to prejudicially inform the jury that Mr.
Hill was a past criminal. Making matters worse, in their case in chief, Defendants’ could not
actually prove Mr, Hill was on probation as there was evidence of a prior automatic termination.

Tn addition to informing the jury that Mr. Hill was a past criminal, Defendants submitted
evidence that at the time of the shooting Mr. Hill was actively commifting a crime. Defense
witness Niles Graben testified thaf as a condition of Mr. Hill’s probation, he was prohibited from
consuming alcoho! and possessing a firearm. (Trial Tr. Vol. 3, 129:4-11), Over Plaintiff’s
objection, Defendants’ introduced evidence that Mr. Hill’s blood alcohol level was over three -
times the legal Limit to drive. Also, numerous defense witnesses testified that a gun was
recovered in Mr. Hill’s back pocket. By allowing evidence of Mr. Hill’s probation restrictions in
effect at the time of the incident (no alcohol and no firearm), the jury was plainly aware that,
according to law enforcement officials, Mr. Hill was actively committing the crime of violating
the terms of his probation at the time of the shooting.

Defendant Newman was investigating a loud noise complaint, not a probation violation.
Mr. Hill was shot and killed before he was arrested, charged or convicted of violating the terms
of his probation. Nevertheless, the jury was allowed to hear testimony from law enforcement
officers that Mr. Hill was actively committing the completely unrelated crime of violating his

probation at the time of the shooting. This amounts to niothing short of a substantial injustice.
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In addition, Mr. Graben’s testimony made Mr, Hill’s probationary status a central issue of
the trial. The prejudicial impact of admitting such evidence is that it confuses the jury as to the
issues of the present 42 U.S.C. § 1983 and the Negligence case. The issue of the trial is whether

or not Defendant Newman viclated Mr. Hill’s constitution rights and/or was negligent, not

whether Mr. Hill violated the terms of his probation. Courts have prohibited evidence of
probation restrictions for this very purpose. See U.S. v. Becker, 490 F. Supp.2d 1029 (N.D. lowa
2007). (“Ultimately, the court concludes that evidence of [litigants] probation status should be

excluded, because the serious potential prejudice arising from the possibility that the jurors might

convict [litigant] of the charged offenses for the unrelated reason that he violated the terms of his

probation, rather than on the basis of evidence of charged wrongdoing, exceeds the relatively

limited probative value of such evidence, if any.”)

The jury verdict itself is evidence that the precise pitfall cautioned in Becker happened
here. The jury ultimately determined that Mr. Hill’s constitutional rights were not violated and
that he himself was 99% comparatively negligent. While Mr. Hill may have been 99%
responsible for violating the terms of his probation (if he was even on probation), the clear
weight of the evidence demonstrates that he was not 99% responsible for being shot three times
through a closed garage door.

In an effort to reduce the prejudicial impact of this probation evidence, the court offered a
limiting instruction which stated: “Ladies and gentlemen, as you have heard, Mr. Hill was on
probation. This evidence is only admissible to the extent that you think it is relevant to Mr.
Hill’s actions on the date of the incident. If is not to be considered for any other purpose. What

Mr, Hill was on probation for is ittelevant and should not be considered by you.”
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The courts limiting instruction did nothing to quell the prejudicial impaét of informing

the jury that Mr. Hill was a criminal. It also did not delineate the relative inadmissibility
probation had in the federal versus state law claim. The jury was informed that Mr. Hill was a
criminal, but they were not aware as to what crime he committed. In addition, the jury was
allowed to consider Mr. Hill’s probationary status as it related to “Mr. Hill’s actions on the date
of the incident.” Based on the admissibility of the probation restrictions in effect, the jury was
allowed to consider that Mr. Hill’s actions of drinking and possessing a handgun equates to
actively committing the unrelated crime of violating the terms of his probation. The introduction
of probation evidence substantially deprived Mr. Hill of a fair trial and turned a 42 U.S.C. § 1983
and negligence trial, into a probation violation trial. It improperly devalued Mr. Hill’s life which

lead to a jury holding that Mr. Hill’s children’s pain and suffering from losing that life was

merely $1.00 per child.

I, MATERIAL CHANGES IN TESTIMONY

As previously stated, the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure pertaining to a parties’ request
for a new trial, applies to misconduct in withholding information called for by discovery and it
does not require that the information withheld be of such a nature as to alter the result in the case.
The rule is addressed to judgments that are unfairly obtained and not at those which are factually
incotrect. Rozier v. Ford Motor Co., 573 ¥.2d 1332, 1339 (5" Cir. 1978).

A new trial may be granted on grounds that a witness willfully testified falsely to material
facts, especially where perjured testimony was induced by the opposite patty or the false
testimony was that of the opposite party. Traylor v. Pickering, 324 F.2d 655 (5™ Cir, 1963).

a. Sat. Kyle King and Defendant Christopher Newman

Defendants called Sergeant Kyle King of the Indian River Sheriff’s office to testify as a

non-retained expert witness. According to Defendants expert witness disclosure, Sgt. King’s
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testimony was limited to “his knowledge regarding reconstruction of the subject incident.” (See

Defendants’ Expert Witness Disclosure attached hereto as Exhibit “C”). At trial, Sgt. King

testified that he reconstructed the incident in the form of a Powerpoint presentation.

The Powerpoint consisted of several animated images depicting the garage door open and

the gun parallel to the ground. (Attached hereto as Exhibit “D”). When asked how he
determined the gun was pointed at Deputy Lopez, Sgt. King testified that he relied on Defendant
Newman’s statements made to other SLCSO officers wherein he said, the gun was “about waist
level when 1 fired.”

At his deposition, Defendant Newman testified that Mr. Hill, “did, like, a simultaneous
bringing the gun up as he was bringing the garage door down.” (P. 46, line 22-47). Further,
Defendant Newman testified that he “lost sight of the gun as it was coming up around his hip
area, [ believe, is where I last saw it, and, yeah.” (P. 47, L. 6-20). Defendant Newman also
testified “the muzzle would have been aiming towards Deputy Lopez’ thigh area.” [DE No. 80-

17 69:19-20]1 (Also See Exhibits “E» and “F” attached hereto). At all times prior to trial, Mr.

Hil!’s gun was aimed at or in the direction of Deputy Lopez when Defendant Newman last saw
it. Just not, “center mass”, said Newman. Id.

Throughout the course of tiial, Defendant Newman was present for all witness testimony,
including that of Plaintiff expert Dr. William Anderson. Dr. Anderson testified that it is highly
mlikely that Mr. Hill raised a gun “anywhere near” Deputy Lopez based upon the positioning of
the hand relative to Mr. Hill’s abdomen wound. (Trial Tr. vol. 3, 36:19-24, May 26, 2018.} Dr.
Anderson testified that if the gun was raised in the direction of Deputy Lopez, the bullet would

have had to gone through Mr. Hill’s arm, which cleatly did not happen. Roy Bedard, Plaintiff’s
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police expert also testified about the “paradox” caused by the location Newman claimed the gun

was in, as it couldn’t get back in Hill’s pocket if it was in the location.

After hearing this testimony, Defendant Newman materially changed his testimony. In
fact, Defendant Newman was asked to perform a demonstration in the courtroom wherein he
raised his arm, ever so slightly, in an upward direction. Defendant Newman’s trial testimony,
given after all of Plaintiff’s expert witnesses had testified, in no way indicated that the Mr. Hill
ever pointed the gun up, or at Deputy Lopez’ thigh area. It was pointed at the ground to now
compensate for Mr. Bedard and Mr. Andetson’s testimony.

After trial, Defendants even admitted that Sgt. Kyle King’s powerpoint “wasn’t an
accurate depiction or what happened here.” (Trial Tr. Vol. 6, 7:7-11) Nevertheless, Defendants
still called Sgt. King to testify as an expert witness at trial even though his testimony was limited
to the admittedly inaccurate reconstruction of the subject incident and fought by pre-trial motion
to have this introduced. [DE 195] The entirety of Sgt. King’s testimony was predicated on
materially false facts. Admitting that a non-retained expert witness testified about facts that were

known to be false warrants a new frial.

V. JURORISSUES

The inconsistent and legally improper verdict indicates juror confusion over the jury
instructions and verdict form. In patticular, there appeared to be confusion over the jury
instructions’ explanation of awardable damages and how those damages are apportioned on the
verdict form, A new trial is required only if the trial judge's instructions taken as a whole give a
misleading impression or inadequate understanding of the law and the issues to be
resolved. Bass v. International Brotherhood of Boilermakers, 630 F.2d 1058, 1062 (5th

Cir.1980).
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Prior to deliberations, this honorable court read the jury instructions to the members of

the jury. Significantly, this honorable court did not read the title to each instruction (Trial Tr.
Vol. 5, 82:5). The practical impact of failing to read the title of each jury instruction clearly

confused the jury- or they otherwise sought to be punitive. In either scenario, a new trial is

warranted.

The written jury instruction at issue, titled Civil Rights — 42 U.S.C. § 1983 Claims —
Damages, states as follows, “You may award $1.00 in nominal damages...” By law, nominal
damages only apply to the 42 U.S.C. § 1983 claim. Significantly, the only part of the jury
instruction that limits nominal damages to the 42 U.S.C. § 1983 claim, is the title. By failing to
read the complete instruction to the jury (including the title), combined with an omission of
instructions in the verdict form, the Plaintiff was prejudiced and the jury was confused. This
confusion is confirmed by the erroneous jury verdict.

On the negligence claim, the jury awarded $1.00 in damages to the Estate of Gregory

Vaughn Hill, Jr. and each of his surviving minor children (for a total of $4.00). Thus, the jury

purported to make a finding that only nominal damages were appropriate or sought to punish the
Plaintiff and awarded an amount unsupported by evidence. The issue here is that nominal
damages only pertained to the federal civil rights claim, nof the negligence claim.

During deliberations the jury asked for help by submitting the following question: “If we
find minimal negligence, can the courts over rule monetary amounts presented by the jury.” [DE
225] The Court and the parties struggled to fully understand the jury’s question. The Coutt sent
back a request for clarification, and instead of explaining their question, the jury rendered its
verdict. The verdict rendered was improper due to the jury’s confusion over the instructions and

verdict form.
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The other logical explanation for the jury’s inconsistent verdict was that it was intended

to be punitive. The jury assessed a sliver of fault on the Defendant, but wanted to ensute the

Court would not alter their numbers. A punitive verdict in this context ignores unrebutted

evidence presented throughout trial, particularly related to objective, unrebutted funeral

expenses. In sum, the jury’s rendered verdict either signals a punitive measure or an improper
attempt to award nominal damages. Either way, the verdict is legally improper. This confusion or
misunderstanding clearly prejudiced the Plaintiff.

V. VERDICT AGAINST CLEAR WEIGHT OF THE EVIDENCE

A jury's verdict is not contrary to the great weight of the evidence simply because the
party moving for a new trial believes that his evidence is more persuasive than his opponent's;
rather, a new trial should only be granted on evidentiary grounds where the moving patty points
to an error in admitting or excluding evidence that was so harmful as to sway the jury in its
consideration of the matter. Noel v. Terrace of St. Cloud, LLC., 212 F.Supp.3d 1193 (M.D. Fla.
April 3, 2016).

The jury disregarded the expert testimony of Roy Bedard, Dr. William Anderson, the

DNA lab test results and testimony of Earl Ritzline, and the multitude of eye and ear witness

testimony from independent witnesses in finding completely for the Defendant, Christopher
Newman on the federal civil rights violation claim (42 U.S.C. §1983), and apportioning fault at
1% for the SLCSO and 99% for the decedent, Gregory Vaughn Hill, Jr., on the state law
negligence claim. The jury’s distegard of the testimony and evidence presentied resulted in a
miscarriage of justice.

Roy Bedard, an expert on police practices, testified extensively on proper police protocol

when a subject is behind an opague surface. He also testified specifically about the troubling
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paradox created by discrepancies between Defendant Christopher Newman’s testimony and the
physical evidence presented. (Trial Tr. Vol. 2, 181-182, 16). Dr. William Anderson, a trained
Medical Examiner, gave testimony regatding Mr. Hill’s gunshot wounds and the order in which
they were likely sustained. Dr. Anderson’s testimony supported that of Earl Ritzline of the
Indian River Crime Lab who testified about the DNA results which revealed that none of Mr.
Hill’'s DNA was conclusively found on the KelTec firearm recovered from his back pocket.
Furthermore, several independent eye witnesses located directly across the street from where the
shooting occurred testified that they never saw Mr. Hill holding a gun in his hand.

No rational jury could have found that Defendant Christopher Newman'’s use of deadly
force against Mr. Hill was not excessive as set forth in 42 U.S.C. §1983. Likewise, no rational
jury could have found Mr, Hill 99% at fault for his own death after being shot by Defendant
Deputy Newman through a closed garage door.

V. THE CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF THE ERRORS AND EVIDENTIARY
RULINGS WARRANTS A NEW TRIAL

Erroneous evidentiary rulings by a trial court can be treated as harmless only if the error does
not affect the substantial rights of a party. Dartez v. Fibreboard Corp., 765 F.2d 456, 569 (5th
Cir. 1985). The errors identified throughout this motion undeniably affected the substantial rights
of the Plaintiff (cumulative effect of the errors in evidentiary rulings rendered the verdict.
unreliable) Frymire-Brianti v. Marwick, 2 F.3d 183 (7th Cir. 1993). A new trial should be
granted.

WHEREFORE, for the reasons set forth hereinabove, Plaintiff VIOLA BRYANT, as
Personal Representative of the Estate of Gregory Vaughn Hill, Ir., respectfully requests this
Court grant the instant Motion for New Trial. Plaintiff also moves for such other relief as the

Court deems appropriate.
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7.1 (2)(3) STATEMENT

Counsel for Plaintiff has conferred with all parties who may be affected by the relief
sought in the motion in a good faith effort to resolve the issues raised in the motion and has been

unable to do so.

PLAINTIFF REQUESTS A HEARING ON THIS MATTER

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I electronically filed the foregoing with the Clerk of the
Court using the CM/ECF and a copy hereof has been furnished to Summer M. Barranco, Esquire,
Purdy, Jolly, Giuffreda & Barranco, P.A., 2455 East Sunrise Boulevard, Suite 1216, Fort

Lauderdale, FL 33304, by email to summer@purdylaw.com, and melissa@purdylaw.com, this
27" of June, 2018.

Law Office of John M. Phillips, LLC

fs/ John M. Phillips

JOHN M. PHILLIPS, ESQUIRE
Florida Bar Number: 0477575
KIRBY W. JOHNSON, ESQUIRE
Florida Bar Number: 113323

4230 Ortega Boulevard
Jacksonville, FL, 32210

(904) 444-4444

(904) 508-0683 (facsimile})
Attorneys for Plaintiff
iphillips(@fioridajustice.com
michele@iloridajustice.com
Kirby(atloridajustice.com
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LAWRENCE, William C. “Bill”, of St. Thomas, passed
away at the St. Thomas Elgin General Hospital on Tuesday,
April 10, 2018, in his 84th year. Beloved husband for over
60 years to Lorraine (née Lacroix) Lawrence. Dearly loved
father of Chris Lawrence (Sharon), and John Lawrence, and
cherished grandfather of Will Lawrence (Tami Ansems), and
Catherine Lawrence (Jeff Laidlaw), all of St. Thomas. He
was the proud great grandfather of Cora and Alexis
Lawrence. Dear brother of Claribel “Sue” Rowe of St.
Thomas, Myrtle Zylstra of Delta, BC, Gus C. Lawrence of Cambridge, late Jean
Parkins, late Shirley Bradley, and the late Helen Mathewson. Also fondly
remembered by many in-laws, nieces and nephews. Born in St. Thomas,
January 20, 1935, he was the son of the late William H. and Pearl (née Dennis)
Lawrence. Bill was a retired CNR trainman. He was the last surviving founding
member (1966), a Past President, and a life member of the Centennial Sports
Club, St. Thomas. Bill was a charter member of the Elgin County Railway
Museum. In his younger years, he was active in baseball and fastball. In
keeping with his wishes, cremation has taken place, and there will be no public
visitation or funeral service. Private interment of Bill's cremated remains will be
made in Union Cemetery. Memorial donations to the Centennial Sports Club (to
be used to support local sports), the Elgin County Railway Museum, or the charity
of one's choice will be gratefully acknowledged. Arrangements entrusted to the
SIFTON FUNERAL HOME, 118 Wellington St., St. Thomas, ON (519-631-
1160).

Online condolences graciously accepted at www.siftonfuneralhome.com
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Obituary Obituary of William Lawrence

LAWRENCE, William C. “Bill", of St. Thomas, passed away at the St. Thomas Elgin
General Hospital on Tuesday, April 10, 2018, in his 84th year. Beloved husband for
Condolences over 60 years to Lorraine (née Lacroix) Lawrence. Dearly loved father of Chris
Lawrence (Sharon), and John Lawrence, and cherished grandfather of Will
Lawrence (Tami Ansems), and Catherine Lawrence (Jeff Laidlaw), all of St. Thomas.
Service Information He was the proud great grandfather of Cora and Alexis Lawrence. Dear brother of
Claribel “Sue” Rowe of St. Thomas, Myrtle Zylstra of Delta, BC, Gus C. Lawrence of
Cambridge, late Jean Parkins, late Shirley Bradley, and the late Helen Mathewson.
Also fondly remembered by many in-laws, nieces and nephews. Born in St.
Thomas, January 20, 1935, he was the son of the late William H. and Pearl (née
Dennis) Lawrence. Bill was a retired CNR trainman. He was the last surviving
founding member (1966), a Past President, and a life member of the Centennial
. Sports Club, St. Thomas. Bill was a charter member of the Elgin County Railway
PLAINTIFF’S Museum. In his younger years, he was active in baseball and fastball. In keeping
% EXHEIT with his wishes, cremation has taken place, and there will be no public visitation or
8 i A funeral service. Private interment of Bill's cremated remains will be made in Union
s P i L Cemetery. Memorial donations to the Centennial Sports Club (to be used to support
local sports), the Elgin County Railway Museum, or the charity of one’s choice will
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

VIOLA BRYANT, as Personal Case No. 2:16cv14072
Representative of the Estate of
GREGORY VAUGHN HILL, JR.,

Plaintiff,
Vs.

SHERIFF KEN MASCARA in his official
Capacity as Sheriff of St. Lucie County,
and CHRISTOPHER NEWMAN,

an individual,

Defendants.
/

DEFENDANTS’ EXPERT DISCLOSURES

The Defendants, KEN MASCARA, in his official capacity as SHERIFF OF ST. LUCIE
COUNTY, and CHRISTOPHER NEWMAN, in his individual capacity, by and through their
undersigned counsel, in accordance with Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 26(a)(2) and pursuant to
the Court’s Second Amended Scheduling Order dated October 31, 2016 [DE 39] as extended by
agreement of the parties hereby files their Expert Disclosures as follows:

RETAINED EXPERTS

1. Christopher Lawrence
Elgin Security Consultant, Inc.
22033 Elmwood Square
St. Thomas, Ontario, NSR 6A1

In compliance with Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 26 attached hereto as Exhibit A
is the expert report of Chris Lawrence, his CV, recent deposition and trial testimony
list, and fee schedule for work as an expert witness. It is expected that he will testify
in this case and give opinions consistent with his report.
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NON-RETAINED EXPERTS

1, Dr. Linda O’Neil, ME
Office of the Medical Examiner, District 19

Dr. O’Neil will provide testimony regarding the autopsy of Gregory Hill and the
autopsy findings, cause of death, and manner of death of Gregory Hill. 1t is expected
that she will testify in the case and give opinions consistent with her reports.

Lo Susan Adams
Wouesthoff Reference Laboratory
6800 Spyglass Court
Melbourne, Florida 32940

Ms. Adams is expected to testify regarding the tests conducted on the specimens
submitted to the Wuesthoff Reference Laboratory in this case, the results of same as
well as the chain of custody of that evidence.

3. Sgt. Kyle King
c/o Indian River County Sheriff's Office
4055 41st Avenue
Vero Beach, FL 32960

Sgt. King is expected to testify regarding his knowledge re garding reconsfruction of
the subject incident.

4, Daniel C. Nippes
Laboratory Director
Indian River Crime Laboratory at Indian River State College
4602 Kirby Loop Road
Ft. Pierce, FL 34981

M. Nippes is expected to testify regarding the Indian River Crime Laboratory Report
dated May 20, 2014 for the forensic biology examination of Mr. Hill's DNA and the
DNA swabs of the Kel-Tec pistol.

5. Analyst who reviewed and analyzed the evidence submitted in the Indian River
Crime Laboratory Report dated May 20, 2014 for the forensic biology examination
of Mr. Hil’s DNA and the DN A swabs of the Kel-Tec pistol.

Indian River Crime Laboratory at Indian River State College
4602 Kirby Loop Road
Ft. Pierce, FL 34981
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This individual is expected to testify regarding his review of the evidence as
referenced in the Indian River Crime Laboratory Report dated May 20, 2014 for the
forensic biology examination of Mr. Hill’s DNA and the DNA swabs of the Kel-Tec

pistol.

6. Robert Parsons, Jr.
Blood Alcohol Analyst
Indian River Crime Laboratory at Indian River State College
4602 Kirby Loop Road
Ft. Pierce, FL 34981

Mr. Parsons is expected to testify regarding his review of the evidence as referenced
in the Indian River Crime Laboratory Report dated May 20, 2014 for the forensic
biology examination of Mr. Hil’'s DNA and the DNA swabs of the Kel-Tec pistol
as well as chain of custody of this evidence.

RESERVATION OF RIGHTS

The Defendants reserve the right to call additional witnesses to rebut or respond to any

testimony presented by the Plaintiff's witnesses or experts.

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I furnished a copy via email a copy to: John M. Phillips,
Esquire, T.C. Roberts, Esquire, Brent Latour, Esquire, Law Office of John M. Phillips, LLC,
4230 Ortega Boulevard, Jacksonville, FL 32210; iphillips(@floridajustice.com,
dmalone@floridajustice.com, te@floridajustice.com, brent@@floridajustice.com this 27" day of
December, 2016.

PURDY, JOLLY, GIUFFREDA & BARRANCO, P.A.
Attorneys for Defendants
2455 Fast Sunrise Boulevard, Suite 1216
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33304
Telephone (954) 462-3200
Telecopier (954) 462-3861
Email: summer@purdylaw.com
melissa@purdylaw.com

BY s/ Summer M, Barranco
SUMMER M. BARRANCO
Fla, Bar No. 984663
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
FORT PIERCE DIVISION

CASE NO. 16-CV-14072-ROSENBERG
VIOLA BRYANT, as Personal

Representative of the Estate.
of Gregory V. Hill, Jr.,

Plaintiff,

vs.
SHERIFF KEN MASCARA, . Fort Pierce, FL
in his official capacity, . May 17, 2018

as Sheriff of St. Lucie
County, and
CHRISTOPHER NEWMAN

as an individual,
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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JUROR NAMES HAVE BEEN REDACTED PURSUANT TO A DIRECTIVE
FROM JUDGE ROBIN L. ROSENBERG. JUROR NAMES MAY BE REQUESTED

VIA A MOTION TO THE COURT.

THE COURT: Good morning, everyone, please be seated.

All right. Good morning, everyone. We are here in
the matter of Viola Bryant as personal representative of the
Estate of Gregory Vaughn Hill, Jr., versus Sheriff Ken Mascara
and Christopher Newman as the Defendants. It is case number
16-Cv-14072.

So, let's begin by having all counsel state their
appearance for the record and anyone who is at counsel's table
as well. Let's begin with the Plaintiff.

MR. PHILLIPS: Good morning, John Phillips on behalf
of the Plaintiff.

THE COURT: Good morning.

THE PLAINTIFF: Good morning, my name is Viola Bryant.

THE COURT: That is Ms.?

THE PLAINTIFF: Yes.

MS. HINES: Natasha Hines for the Plaintiff, Viola
Bryant.

THE COURT: Good morning.

MR. JOHNSON: Kirby Johnson on behalf of the
Plaintiff, Viola Bryant.

THE COURT: Okay, good morning. And we have for the

Pauline A. Stipes, Official Federal Reporter




Case 2:16-cv-14072-RLR Document 238 Entered on FLSD Docket 06/28/2018 Page 5 of 346 5
Case: 18-13902 Date Fl#8:0d3/769)019 Page: 113 of 243

1 Defendants.

2 MS. BARRANCO: Good morning, Summer Barranco on behalf
3 of both of the Defendants, Sheriff of St. Lucie County and

4 Chris Newman, who is here, and I have general counsel for

5 Sheriff Mascara, Mr. Jolly, for the Defendants.

6 MR. BRUCE JOLLY: I am Bruce Jolly.
7 THE COURT: Are you related to Greg Jolly?
8 MR. JOLLY: He doesn't want to admit it, but his
9 mother does.
10 THE COURT: The jurors are assembling and filling out
11 the questionnaire. The questionnaire is the one I showed you
12 by way of one of my orders. I added a few questions, as you
13 saw, that are particularized in part to this case and you will
14 each have 15 minutes of your own voir dire, and if you find

15 that is not adequate after all of the questions I asked, and I
16 let you know your 15 minutes is up, you can let me know what

17 additional time, if any, that you need.

18 So, when our jury has completed filling out the

19 questionnaires, we will make copies for you so the Plaintiff

20 will have one set and the Defendant another set and I will, and
21 we will bring our jury in, and I will go through some

22 preliminary remarks.

23 Let me tell you what I do. I tell them what the case
24 name is, I turn to each side and have you introduce yourself,
25 simply introduce yourself, and since some of you are attorneys

Pauline A. Stipes, Official Federal Reporter
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1 and some are not, without any lengthy description, let the jury
2 know who you are, in what capacity you are here.
3 I then explain the voir dire process to them with the

4 purpose. I then let them know an estimate of the length of the
5 case, and I'm going to let them know that it can be between

6 five and seven days. I will let them know they should be

7 available through the 25th of May, and I will keep them

8 apprised as we go along, but that is what they should count on,
9 although I always tell them we stay with the case until it

10 ends, and they are expected to do that.

11 I tell them about mid-morning and mid-afternoon

12 breaks, lunch break. I then read the case description that you
13 all have provided to me, so I am going to read exactly what you
14 have submitted as your joint statement of the case at Docket

15 Entry 176, and that would then allow me to ask them whether

16 they know anything about the case, and I ask them whether they
17 know anybody at counsel table.

18 I do then go through a list of the witnesses. I am a

19 little concerned about that. I want to know if they know any

20 of the witnesses. Your witness list is incredibly lengthy.

21 I mean, I know that not all of the witnesses are being
22 called, because I know that from your trial plan.

23 Should I rely upon the trial plan as far as the names
24 of the potential witnesses to see whether the jurors know any

25 of them, as opposed to what is at Docket Entry 177-1, which is

Pauline A. Stipes, Official Federal Reporter
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1 your exhibit and witness list? Would that be a more effective

2 and practical way to go about it?

3 MR. PHILLIPS: That is for the Plaintiff. That is a

4 more narrowed down list than the original witness list.

5 MS. BARRANCO: Your Honor, that should work.

6 THE COURT: It is definitely more narrowed down, I

7 will go with that. It is not as lengthy as what you have on

8 your 177-1 witness list.

9 And I read them the preliminary instruction about jury
10 conduct, not to talk about the case, do any research about the
11 case.

12 I then go over the questionnaire, each and every

13 question, and have them put their answers on the record as a
14 result of followup answers to their questions and I turn that
15 over to you.

16 I want to do that before the lunch hour, I don't want
17 anyone to be caught off guard. And then we have to have our
18 conference, you select your jurors, do your cause challenges,
19 and we will do the peremptories.

20 Out of curiosity, did anybody see anything in the

21 media today, yesterday, today, in the recent period?

22 I have been in West Palm dealing with other cases that
23 have been in the media, so I am not aware of what happened

24 here.

25 MR. PHILLIPS: We are both out-of-towners, I haven't

Pauline A. Stipes, Official Federal Reporter
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1 had any phone calls.

2 MS. BARRANCO: I have, I saw an article, I think on
3 tcpalm.com, and it did include background facts involving the
4 case, although interestingly omitted from the presentation in

5 the newspaper article is the fact that Mr. Hill had a gun in

6 his hand when he raised the garage door. That was not
7 mentioned at all, even as a theory.
8 THE COURT: Okay. I do ask a general question about

9 whether anybody knows anything about the case, and then I, of
10 course, give my instructions about not discussing it, not

11 viewing any media, but I think we will get a little bit of an
12 indication when I ask whether anybody knows anything about the
13 case. That is one of the early questions I ask. We'll play it
14 by ear. If it hasn't gotten a lot of publicity, that is great,

15 nobody has to deal with it on the front end.

16 And I am persistent in reminding the jurors in any
17 case, even if it is a media grabber of attention or not, and
18 tell them they cannot view any media and explain what that

19 means and how they do that.

20 So, let me go over a couple of preliminary matters

21 while we are waiting for the jury.

22 Number one, on the jury instructions, I did not see a
23 jury instruction from either side on Count 4, the battery. Are

24 you proceeding with that?

25 MR. PHILLIPS: We withdraw that.

Pauline A. Stipes, Official Federal Reporter
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1 THE COURT: Okay. And that is on record somewhere,

2 that is a Docket Entry?

3 MR. PHILLIPS: We will get you a Docket Entry, we told
4 Defendants, I don't think we communicated it with the Court. I
5 apologize for that. It may be in the stipulation.

6 MS. BARRANCO: I do recall Mr. Phillips emailing me a

7 couple of weeks ago that he was dropping the battery count.

8 THE COURT: No opposition?

9 MS. BARRANCO: No opposition, your Honor.

10 THE COURT: Looking for common ground as we start the
11 day. Do we agree a stipulation of dismissal would be the most
12 appropriate thing to do procedurally or not? Because we are

13 beyond the summary judgment.

14 MR. PHILLIPS: 1If we have a stipulation that the

15 parties are to bear their own fees and costs to that count and
16 that count alone.

17 THE COURT: All right. If you get that filed by the

18 end of the day, let's get that filed and it is done.

19 MR. PHILLIPS: Definitely filed by midnight.

20 THE COURT: You are pursuing your negligence count?

21 MR. PHILLIPS: Yes.

22 THE COURT: I want to use our time —-- when the jury is
23 here, we spend our time with the jury, we spend time off hours

24 not taking up the jury's time. I will go through some

25 objections to certain evidence, whether it is in the way of an

Pauline A. Stipes, Official Federal Reporter
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1 exhibit or whatnot, and I will take it in turn as I have

2 considered them.

3 So, on the issue of intoxication, I know Plaintiff

4 filed their objection to Defendant's introduction of evidence
5 of Mr. Hill's intoxication at the time of the subject incident

6 at Docket Entry 185. In it Plaintiff argues Mr. Hill's

7 intoxication should be excluded because it is not relevant to
8 whether or not Defendant Newman acted objectively or reasonably
9 under the facts and circumstances confronting him at the time

10 of the incident.

11 The Defendant responded that it is relevant to explain
12 Mr. Hill's unusual behavior and to support the officers'

13 version of events, Docket Entry 195, pages three to four.

14 Defendants also note that Plaintiff brings a claim for

15 negligence arising out of the subject incident and thus Mr.

16 Hill's intoxication is relevant to the defense of comparative
17 negligence and Florida's statutory "alcohol or drug defense"

18 found at Florida Statute 768.36.

19 That Statute states that "in any civil action, a

20 Plaintiff may not recover any damages for loss or injury to his
21 or her person or property if the trier of fact finds that at

22 the time the Plaintiff was injured: The Plaintiff was under

23 the influence of any alcoholic beverage or drug to the extent
24 that the Plaintiff's normal faculties were impaired or the

25 Plaintiff had a blood or breath alcohol level of .08 percent or

Pauline A. Stipes, Official Federal Reporter
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1 higher; and as a result of the influence of such alcoholic

2 beverage or drug the Plaintiff was more than 50 percent at

3 fault for his or her own harm."

4 As the Plaintiff has brought a claim for negligence

5 against Sheriff Mascara, how is it that Plaintiff's

6 intoxication is not relevant to the Defendant Sheriff's defense
7 given that statute?

8 MR. PHILLIPS: Your Honor, it is going to be our case
9 in chief that Mr. Hill did not raise a gun, Deputy Newman did
10 not respond to any issues regarding drunk and disorderly or

11 anything.

12 THE COURT: Negligence, you have a negligence claim,
13 there is a statutory defense based on alcohol or drug defense.
14 MR. PHILLIPS: Negligence arises out of 1983, core

15 actions against Deputy Newman. We —-

16 THE COURT: But it is its own count, negligence.

17 MR. PHILLIPS: Yes.

18 THE COURT: I don't see in a negligence count and

19 statutory defense, separate and apart from all the other

20 arguments made, but honing in on that, how that can't be

21 brought up.

22 MR. PHILLIPS: We would generally agree, your Honor.
23 The issue then becomes how far is that door opened, because he
24 was .35, .33, and then it becomes more prejudicial than

25 probative, if we stipulate he was legally intoxicated at the

Pauline A. Stipes, Official Federal Reporter
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1 time.
2 THE COURT: That is a proposal, that you would

3 stipulate he was legally intoxicated at the time?

4 MR. PHILLIPS: Yes.

5 MR. BRUCE JOLLY: Your Honor, separate from the

6 negligence claim, it is relevant to Mr. Hill's perception of

7 the incident. Our deputies are going to testify they are

8 giving commands to Mr. Hill and the defense theory is, because
9 of the level of intoxication, he may not have perceived what
10 they were saying and explains some of his other actions.
11 THE COURT: I understand, and no one is saying you
12 can't make arguments out of it. Why is it not sufficient to

13 reach a stipulation that he was illegally intoxicated at the

14 time and then make argument? I suppose you can make argument,
15 if you have testimony that he was acting in certain ways, and
16 you can make a connection between, well, he was legally

17 intoxicated and this is what the officer observed. That would
18 be for argument.

19 Why is the stipulation not sufficient? What more

20 would you need than the stipulation?

21 MR. BRUCE JOLLY: I would suggest it goes to

22 impeachment to some of his witnesses. Mr. Brown, who spent the
23 morning with Mr. Hill and who suggested Mr. Hill only had one
24 beer, I think it could be go to credibility for impeachment of

25 that.

Pauline A. Stipes, Official Federal Reporter



Case 2:16-cv-14072-RLR Document 238 Entered on FLSD Docket 06/28/2018 Page 13 of 3483
Case: 18-13902 Date Fl2#:0d3/168019 Page: 121 of 243

1 THE COURT: 1Is the stipulation that he was legally

2 intoxicated sufficient for you to do anything you need to do,

3 impeach, talking about officers' perceptions and making

4 argument?

5 MR. BRUCE JOLLY: The Defendants believe, because he

6 was so much above the level of intoxication, it is critical for

7 the jury to hear that.

8 THE COURT: So, what about a stipulation that he was

9 above the level of legal intoxication?

10 MR. BRUCE JOLLY: 1If it was accurate to that level. I
11 am not sure what they are willing to stipulate to so long as it
12 reflects how intoxicated he was.

13 THE COURT: Are you going to have a toxicologist

14 person coming in talking about what it means to be a .37

15 MR. BRUCE JOLLY: Yes.

16 THE COURT: Okay. Any response?

17 MR. PHILLIPS: No, your Honor.

18 THE COURT: So, what I hear is a proposal from the

19 Plaintiff being a stipulation that he was —-- are you amenable

20 to a stipulation that he was above the legal level of

21 intoxication?

22 MR. PHILLIPS: Yes, your Honor.

23 THE COURT: Are you objecting to the actual number?

24 MR. PHILLIPS: Yes, your Honor, it is .3. It depends
25 on what —- .32 to .38, and we think that is highly prejudicial.

Pauline A. Stipes, Official Federal Reporter
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1 THE COURT: Defense apparently has a witness coming in

2 and talking about what it means to be at that level. Is that

3 part of your objection, objecting to that witness? Have you

4 issued an objection to that witness?

5 MR. PHILLIPS: We have as to that part of the

6 testimony, and we have Dr. Anderson who is coming, so it can be

7 fleshed out.

8 THE COURT: Who is Dr. Anderson?

9 MR. PHILLIPS: A forensic pathologist.

10 THE COURT: What is he going to talk about?

11 MR. PHILLIPS: The nature of the brain injury and if
12 there was motor movement possible after he was shot. He also
13 has testimony about intoxication.

14 THE COURT: 1If you have experts on intoxication, is it
15 undisputed what his level was?

16 MR. PHILLIPS: It was not. We have a lay witness who
17 was with him and he said he had one tall beer.

18 We don't know how he got intoxicated under --

19 THE COURT: But he -- a test was taken to show the .3.
20 MR. PHILLIPS: We have the questions about the

21 methodology of that test.

22 THE COURT: 1Isn't that for cross-examination?

23 MR. PHILLIPS: That would be.

24 THE COURT: I am going to consider the ruling, but
25 what I am hearing, there is no objection to there being some

Pauline A. Stipes, Official Federal Reporter
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1 sort of stipulation, which I think that means Plaintiff

2 acknowledges that intoxication is an issue, if for no other
3 reason, although there may be other reasons, there is a
4 negligence count, whether this is statutorily, and there is a

5 stipulation that it is higher than the legal intoxication

6 level. You both have experts who are going to talk about the

7 intoxication and its effects.

8 Defense wants the actual level, and the Plaintiff is

9 thinking that is more prejudicial than not.

10 Do I have expert reports from the experts to see what
11 they say? Have you submitted those to the Court in a certain

12 Docket Entry? If not, do you have copies of them?

13 MR. PHILLIPS: We can get you copies, your Honor.

14 MR. BRUCE JOLLY: The reason I am here is to deal with
15 the experts, I will respond to that question. The ME, Dr.

16 O'Neil, issued a report not as an expert, or retained expert,
17 but instead she did the report. If you do not have that, we
18 will get that to you.

19 THE COURT: Why don't we assume for these purposes I
20 may or may not. Why don't we get the Court right away both
21 reports.

22 Now, the question is, when you get into opening, I
23 generally don't like things mentioned until I flush out the
24 ruling.

25 Was 1t pertinent in either opening that it must be

Pauline A. Stipes, Official Federal Reporter
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stated to the jury that Mr. Hill was intoxicated or can the
openings be done —— I don't necessarily have the support
reports and the issues were only flushed out at the last minute
and, quite frankly, at the Court's proactive inquiry regarding
objections. Is it acceptable not to mention intoxication in
the opening? But that is in no way prejudicial or implying
that you can't then flush it out with your testimony.

It appears it is going to come in. I want to make
sure my ruling is sensitized to the proper way in which it
comes in. I know you want proper rulings so this case does not
have to come back on improper rulings.

MS. BARRANCO: If I may be heard on behalf of the
Defendants. I was in the opening statement stage setting the
tone to the jurors to hear what is expected.

If the Plaintiff is not objecting to the fact and
willing to stipulate that Mr. Hill was legally intoxicated at
the time of the incident, at a minimum, the parties should be
able to say that much.

THE COURT: Okay, I agree, that is fair. Does
Plaintiff agree?

MR. PHILLIPS: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay, the ruling is, you may say he was
legally intoxicated at the time, and I will look into the
nuanced differences you have as to what extent you can go into

it, and getting your expert reports will be helpful.

Pauline A. Stipes, Official Federal Reporter
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1 I think Melanie is still working on the

2 questionnaires. I will still go through this until she comes
3 up with the questionnaires.

4 There is the issue of the probationary status,

5 Plaintiff filed an objection to the introduction of Mr. Hill's

6 probationary status. Plaintiff argues that evidence of Mr.

7 Hill's probationary status is not relevant as to whether Mr.

8 Newman acted reasonably and is overly prejudicial.

9 Defendant responded that "Mr. Hill's probation status
10 is probative of his motive to quickly hide his gun in his back
11 pocket and forcefully slam his garage door after being
12 confronted by two law enforcement officers while in violation
13 of at least two conditions of his probation."™ That is Docket

14 Entry 195, at 6.

15 How would the Defendants plan on introducing Mr.

16 Hill's probationary status, how would that get introduced?

17 MR. GREGG JOLLY: We have Niles Graben, he worked for
18 the Florida Department of Corrections, and it is the

19 Defendants' understanding that Mr. Graben will testify that Mr.

20 Hill was on a drug offender probation, felony probation, I am
21 not sure of the exact terminology, at the time of the incident.
22 It would come in through Niles Graben, a Probation

23 Officer.
24 THE COURT: And he has been listed on your witness

25 list?
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MR. GREGG JOLLY: Yes.

THE COURT: Has he been deposed?

MR. GREGG JOLLY: No, your Honor.

THE COURT: What is the Plaintiff's view?

MR. JOHNSON: Well, your Honor, our view is relatively
simple on this matter.

Mr. Hill, in his 30 years, has never been convicted of
a felony. 1If Defense is able to stand up here and argue that
he was on probation, that gives the connotation that he was a
convicted criminal, which he was not, certainly not convicted
of a felony. A review of the Court records we found shows he
was on probation for a misdemeanor, and it will, if anything,
confuse the issues for the jury and put the Plaintiffs in a
position of having to explain adjudication of withholds, and it
may be easiest to go to the probation route. Adjudication for

any felony charges are withheld and he has never been

convicted.

THE COURT: Do we know whether he was convicted or
not?

MR. GREGG JOLLY: I think it was a felony, I could be
wrong. It was a possession charge, he pled no contest and

adjudication was withheld, contingent on him completing the
drug offender probation. I think as a consequence of this
incident, you know, and I think Mr. Graben is going to testify

to the fact that he was facing —-- he would have been
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1 adjudicated guilty for the underlying charge and he would have

2 been facing more serious consequences for the fact that he was
3 in possession of a firearm.

4 And that is why the Defendants feel it is relevant to
5 explain his actions.

6 THE COURT: So, what I am hearing from the Plaintiff
7 is you are not necessarily saying it is not relevant, but you
8 are saying it is prejudicial and confusing.

9 Could we agree anything that would have a bearing on

10 how Mr. Hill acted that day is arguably relevant because it may
11 have influenced how he acted which would have influenced,

12 arguably, possibly, it is up to the jury how you present it and

13 argue it to the jury, how Mr. Newman perceived the situation?
14 Is that a fair statement?

15 MR. JOHNSON: That would be a fair statement, your
16 Honor. I would add at the time Officer Newman was at the

17 property, or Deputy Newman, he was unaware of Mr. Hill's

18 probation —-
19 THE COURT: I understand he was not aware. I am
20 viewing it through the lens of anything that might have had a

21 bearing on how Mr. Hill was acting that day.

22 MR. JOHNSON: If I may, your Honor, I believe, you
23 know, Defense argues two things; number one, Mr. Hill was
24 hiding a gun, and number two, he was slamming the door. The

25 case they cite in support of that is the Boyd case out of
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1 California, and those facts are vastly different from this

2 case.

3 The Court said they allowed the evidence of probation
4 in that case to show the evidence of Stephens' erratic

5 behavior. It is our position by closing the garage door Mr.

6 Hill was not acting -- engaging in erratic behavior.

7 THE COURT: Here is what I would like you to do. That
8 may be something the Court concludes is for cross—examination
9 and argument. What I would like you to work on in the interim
10 is the following. I am not sure —-- at this point, I am not
11 going to allow this to be mentioned until I make my ruling.
12 Unlike the intoxication, it will not be prejudicial to either
13 side until I get a ruling before hand, so I may very well have

14 the ruling.

15 Nothing discussed here —-- that the Court discussed

16 here is mentioned in voir dire or opening until the Court

17 rules.

18 What I would like the parties to do is work on a

19 limiting instruction. Assuming the Court allows it, I believe
20 that it may be most appropriate to have a limiting instruction,
21 because it obviously is not —-- it wouldn't be admitted for

22 anything to do with character or, you know, what he was doing

23 at that time. I think it is the Defendant's position that it
24 may have some bearing on, you know, how he may have been acting

25 at the time when he was confronted with a Sheriff's officer.
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1 It is not being offered for certain things, it is

2 being offered for other things.

3 I personally don't believe that it is necessary to get
4 into —— when I say personally, I mean as a matter of law under
5 the rules of evidence and case law if it were to come in.

6 Again, I am reserving, but I would want to see what a limiting
7 instruction looks like and for what reason. Whether it was

8 guns, drugs, anything else, that is not the point.

9 The point the Defendant is making is that he was in a
10 status where he was under the watch and supervision —-- in a

11 probationary status of law enforcement, and law enforcement

12 coming to the house, it may give reason to act in a certain way
13 and it goes back to Mr. Hill's actions are relevant because it
14 bears on how Deputy Sheriff Newman perceived him, but it is a
15 matter of to what extent, how much comes in relating to his

16 actions.

17 I want to see what a limiting instruction looks like.

18 I think that would be the appropriate way to allow it to come

19 in, if it comes in, and I will give it further thought. That

20 is where I am thinking, but I haven't arrived at a final

21 decision on that.

22 MR. GREGG JOLLY: Your Honor, to that point, I have
23 additional authority. I gave it to opposing counsel.

24 THE COURT: Yes, if you have given it to opposing

25 counsel, give us the authority, that would be fine. Any time
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1 you have authority, I am happy to take it, I will review it.

2 And I know you have multiple counsel working on either
3 side. I would ask if certain counsel are working on jury
4 instructions, we can take a brief break and you decide who

5 would like to take the lead on writing that limiting

6 instruction and show it to the other side and agree upon the

7 language. I will make a final ruling on that.

8 I would rather do it before opening. If I decide you
9 can use it, you will have the benefit of using it. That is how
10 we will leave probationary status.
11 I understand Plaintiff filed an objection to

12 Defendant's Exhibits 168, 169, 170, photographs of plastic

13 bags, Docket Entry 181. Defendant agrees not to introduce this
14 evidence unless Plaintiff opens the door. That is Docket Entry
15 195, at 2.

16 The Court considers this moot.

17 If Defense believes before it gets into its case that
18 the Plaintiff opened the door, you must approach the Court

19 about those exhibits first outside the jury's hearing so you

20 can tell me how and why the Plaintiff opened the door.

21 Exhibits 228 to 230, and 361 to 368, Plaintiff filed
22 an objection to 228 to 230, 361 to 368, photographs of Mr.

23 Hill's cell phone. Defendants respond that Mr. Hill's cell

24 phone and its contents have relevance to the events prior to

25 the shooting.
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1 I found the explanation and arguments to be too wvague,
2 I don't know what the issue is, what the disagreement is.

3 MR. GREGG JOLLY: Pictures of the cell phone itself,

4 it is probably not relevant. We listed the cell phone if there
5 is a chain of custody issue. If there is not a chain of

6 custody issue, we do not seek to introduce those pictures.

7 THE COURT: Any chain of custody issue?

8 MR. JOHNSON: No.

9 THE COURT: I consider that moot.
10 Same thing, if you find that changes your view, you
11 need to let the Court know outside the jury's hearing.
12 Exhibit 27, Plaintiff filed an objection to
13 Plaintiff's 27 which consists of text messages between Mr.

14 Hill and his fiancee', Monique Davis, hours before Mr. Hill

15 died. Plaintiff argues that these text messages are irrelevant
16 because they do not weigh on the reasonableness of Deputy

17 Newman's actions. Plaintiff also argues that the text messages
18 constitute inadmissible hearsay.

19 Defendants respond that the text messages are relevant
20 to "show Mr. Hill's motive for acting as he did during his
21 encounter with the deputies to refute testimony that is
22 expected from Plaintiff's friends and family members that this
23 was an uneventful normal day for Mr. Hill (prior to his contact
24 with law enforcement) as well as to Plaintiff's loss of
25 parental support claim." Docket Entry 195 at pages 2 to 3.
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1 Is this something you do not wish to introduce unless
2 this is done in Plaintiff's case?

3 MR. GREGG JOLLY: We believe this is relevant to more
4 of the substantive claims. Obviously, we can't get inside Mr.
5 Hill's head, but the text messages we believe provide insight

6 into his mindset that day.

7 THE COURT: Have you provided the text messages?

8 MR. GREGG JOLLY: I have seen your clerk shake her

9 head. I think we have, the text messages are from that morning

10 up to the incident.

11 THE COURT: From whom to whom?

12 MR. GREGG JOLLY: From Mr. Hill's fiancee' to Mr.

13 Hill.

14 THE COURT: Give me the substance.

15 MR. GREGG JOLLY: You are not being a good father, you
16 only care about drinking, you only care about gambling. And we
17 believe the evidence shows those texts were consistent with Mr.
18 Hill's actions that morning.

19 THE COURT: What, he was not a good father and —-

20 MR. GREGG JOLLY: It would go to loss of parental

21 support, damages.

22 And Mr. Brown is going to testify that this was kind
23 of a normal day.

24 Those texts kind of call that into question. This was

25 not a normal day, at least it appears this was a pretty
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1 eventful day for Mr. Hill, and some things were going pretty

2 wrong for him that day, and we believe it kind of paints the

3 picture for why he was acting the way he was acting.

4 THE COURT: Who would testify what was on the phone?
5 MR. GREGG JOLLY: I believe Ms. Davis would.

6 THE COURT: That is what she wrote to him, the

7 fiancee'?

8 MR. GREGG JOLLY: Yes, your Honor. Also, we believe
9 the evidence would show the text messages would suggest Ms.

10 Davis said to Mr. Hill she was going to call off the wedding
11 that day.

12 We think this evidence is kind of critical for the

13 jury to see, to explain why he was acting the way he was

14 acting.

15 THE COURT: What is the response?

16 MR. JOHNSON: The response is, for every reason the
17 Defendants just gave they would have to offer the truth of the
18 matter asserted in the text messages to make that point. They
19 would have to prove what is stated in the text messages, I am
20 calling off the wedding, actually —-

21 THE COURT: What if they are not offering it for the
22 truth of the matter, they are saying it would be for the effect
23 on Mr. Hill, to the listener.

24 MR. JOHNSON: The text message was sent hours before

25 the incident happened, it was a pre-wedding squabble between
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two fiancees.

THE COURT: 1Is there any objection —-- hypothetically,
if Ms. Davis comes in and testifies I was in touch with him
that day and at such and such an hour I was sending him text
messages, and this is what I was telling him, would that be
objectionable?

It sets the stage for what was going on that day, it
is part of the narrative, part of the overall picture.

You have the questionnaires? Perfect. We'll
disseminate a copy for us and copies for counsel. We will
finish the last argument and move into the jury.

MS. BARRANCO: Your Honor, I notice there are a lot of
people in the gallery seated behind Plaintiff's counsel. I am
wondering if any of those people are intending to testify
during this case.

THE COURT: Do we have any witnesses in the courtroom?

MR. PHILLIPS: No, your Honor.

THE COURT: Are the parties invoking the Rule, either
party invoking the Rule?

MS. BARRANCO: Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT: The Rule will be invoked, and that means
every attorney needs to be cognizant of who comes in and out of
the courtroom. It is your position to let the witnesses know
they are not to discuss his or her testimony with anyone who

will be testifying, or anyone else who will then be able to
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1 communicate that to any witness who will be testifying.
2 MR. PHILLIPS: We would ask for a partial exclusion
3 for Ms. Davis while her children are testifying, the minor

4 children.

5 THE COURT: Ms. Davis will be a witness as well?

6 MR. PHILLIPS: Yes.

7 THE COURT: How many minor children are testifying?

8 MR. PHILLIPS: Three.

9 THE COURT: Any objection that she is going to remain
10 in?

11 MR. BRUCE JOLLY: Who is testifying first? If she

12 testifies first, Defense wouldn't have a problem.

13 THE COURT: Okay. Did you say Ms. Davis?

14 MR. PHILLIPS: That was fairly equivocal.

15 MR. BRUCE JOLLY: That is a given.

16 MS. BARRANCO: Hold on a second, if I could. 1It's my

17 understanding the eldest daughter, 12 or 13 now, 1s supposed to

18 be testifying first.

19 MR. PHILLIPS: She is not first.

20 MS. BARRANCO: She is not first?

21 MR. PHILLIPS: No.

22 MS. BARRANCO: I am relying on what it is —-—

23 THE COURT: You should -- both of you should keep each

24 other apprised.

25 MR. PHILLIPS: When your Honor moved us back a day, we
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1 may have resubmitted a new list, and it moved witnesses that

2 must testify today.

3 THE COURT: You think you submitted a new trial plan?
4 MR. PHILLIPS: We did not. The only thing we have

5 done is move Destiny down with the other kids.

6 THE COURT: Before we get off track, the issue with

7 Ms. Davis staying in with the three children, and we will talk

8 about the order, what is Defense's position on that?

9 MS. BARRANCO: To be frank, I wasn't yet prepared for
10 Ms. Davis' testimony.

11 MR. PHILLIPS: She won't be in until Monday. We

12 didn't move anybody up, we moved people down.

13 MS. BARRANCO: That was the first concern I had.

14 THE COURT: Okay.

15 MS. BARRANCO: In my opinion, Ms. Bryant is these

16 children's grandmother, so if there is any concern about a

17 family member being with the children, that could be alleviated

18 by Ms. Bryant being here.

19 THE COURT: Why can't Ms. Davis be here while the

20 children are testifying? You are saying you prefer for her to
21 testify first, so it doesn't influence her testimony.

22 MR. BRUCE JOLLY: I misspoke, it is her case, it is

23 going to go the way she wants.
24 THE COURT: Who is "she"?

25 MR. BRUCE JOLLY: Ms. Barranco.
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1 MS. BARRANCO: Depending where Ms. Davis is, 1f she is

2 in the back of the courtroom, I don't have a problem with that.

3 I do have a problem with the children being right with the mom.
4 THE COURT: No, the mother is not going to be by the

5 witness stand. She will be in the back where other people sit
6 and she will be physically present in the courtroom while three

7 young children testify.

8 MS. BARRANCO: I am sensitive to the fact that the

9 they are three young children. I want to make sure Ms. Davis
10 understands she is not to be in any way —-

11 THE COURT: Coaching or anything of that nature.

12 MS. BARRANCO: Yes. That is my concern.

13 THE COURT: So, Plaintiff's counsel is to talk about
14 her role, not to coach, send facial messages or expressions,

15 anything of that nature. She is to sit in the back of the

16 courtroom, her children can know she is sitting in the

17 courtroom, but when they are witnesses they are on their own in
18 the witness stand.

19 MR. PHILLIPS: Absolutely.

20 THE COURT: 1Is there an issue with the witnesses?

21 MS. BARRANCO: No, your Honor. We want to know about

22 the order.

23 THE COURT: Yes. Ms. Davis will be in the room when
24 the children are testifying. Who is number one today?
25 MR. PHILLIPS: Juanita wright has to testify today.
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1 She will be one of the first.

2 THE COURT: Juanita Wright. Who is number two?

3 MR. PHILLIPS: Donna Hellums. Number one, Stephanie
4 Mills has to go first thing tomorrow.

5 THE COURT: We will talk about tomorrow, tomorrow.

6 Who is third today?

7 MR. PHILLIPS: We'll read the deposition of Lizabeth
8 Enriquez-Ruiz.

9 THE COURT: Has everything been ruled on? Do we have
10 outstanding issues in that deposition?
11 MR. PHILLIPS: None that I am aware of. One issue we

12 stipulated to.

13 THE COURT: Okay, that is number three. Give me a
14 fourth just in case.

15 MR. PHILLIPS: Lisa McGuire and -- no, Lisa has

16 surgery today. Probably David Morales.

17 THE COURT: Okay, Lizabeth is number three, David is
18 number four.

19 What I ask is that you maybe work on —-- because that
20 probably impacts everything else, work on a fourth amended

21 trial plan that you can get to the Court so I have a good

22 understanding of the order, but in any event, whether you have
23 gotten a plan to me or not, at all times counsel should be

24 communicating with one another if any change of witness list
25 occurs because, obviously, everyone deserves to be fully
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1 prepared for the witnesses each day.

2 MS. BARRANCO: Your Honor, if I may ask one question.
3 Since Destiny Hill was listed as the first witness as far as I
4 had known coming into court this morning, can Plaintiff's

5 counsel advise when Destiny Hill will be called?

6 MR. PHILLIPS: Depends on how fast we go, but it would

7 either be Friday or Monday, more than likely Monday, and I

8 would call Monique Davis and the three children in

9 chronological order, the younger to the oldest.

10 MS. BARRANCO: On Monday?

11 MR. PHILLIPS: On Monday.

12 THE COURT: When today concludes, we will go over all

13 of this again.

14 Let me say today could be a long day with jury

15 selection and opening. I like to get to our witnesses. I will
16 let the jury know that today we will go longer than a typical
17 trial day, than five o'clock, because I want everything set and

18 get in motion, and get into the trial ideally with the

19 presentation of evidence so we know where we can settle in.
20 At this point, we will pick up on the other

21 objections, at least we got through a few, and we will

22 distribute now our questionnaires.

23 Three peremptories for each side and one for the two

24 alternates that everybody agreed to.

25 Does anyone need to use the restroom before we bring
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1 the jury in?

2 MR. PHILLIPS: No, your Honor. But should we move

3 these people on this side?

4 THE COURT: Yes, that is right. That is how we have

5 done it in the past.

6 Let me remind counsel, if one attorney is handling an
7 issue, that attorney must speak. If you need to confer with

8 counsel, that is fine. Let's have one attorney designated per
9 witness, per issue.

10 Okay, I will step off for literally two minutes. If
11 you want to use the restroom, you can do that. You can move
12 your chairs how you need to.

13 (Thereupon, a short recess was taken.)

14 THE COURT: All right. You may be seated.

15 Although our jury is out there, so you may remain

16 standing.

17 Bring the jury venire in now.
18 (Thereupon, the jury venire entered the courtroom.)
19 THE COURT: All right. Thank you. We all may be

20 seated.

21 Good morning, everyone, and welcome to the Ft. Pierce
22 Federal Courthouse. It is a pleasure to have you. My name is
23 Judge Rosenberg, and I am presiding over the trial you have

24 been called in today to potentially serve on as a juror. Not
25 all of you will end up serving, but some of you will.
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1 I hope everyone is excited to be here. Jury service
2 is very important and we are happy you are fulfilling your

3 civic duty.

4 The case is Viola Bryant, as Personal representative

5 of the Estate of Gregory Vaughn Hill, Jr. versus Sheriff Ken
6 Mascara, in his official capacity as Sheriff of St. Lucie

7 County, and Christopher Newman, case number 16-CV-14072.

8 The first thing I would like to do is acclimate you to
9 the courtroom and everyone in the courtroom.

10 The persons at this table are associated with or

11 representing the Plaintiff in this case. This is a civil case.
12 So, let me ask that each and every one at the

13 Plaintiff's table stand up and introduce yourself.
14 MR. PHILLIPS: Good morning, John Phillips, attorney

15 for Ms. Bryant and the Estate of Gregory Hill.

16 THE PLAINTIFF: Good morning, Viola Bryant, the
17 representative for Gregory Vaughn Hill, his mother.
18 MS. HINES: Good morning, Natasha Hines for the

19 Plaintiff.

20 MR. JOHNSON: Gregory Johnson for the Plaintiff.
21 THE COURT: Now, can you hear, can you all hear?
22 THE JUROR: I could barely hear anybody. I could not

23 hear the Plaintiff at all, just the Plaintiff herself.
24 THE COURT: 1If you could state your name again.

25 THE PLAINTIFF: Viola Bryant, I the am representative
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1 for Gregory Vaughn Hill, Jr.'s estate.

2 THE COURT: 1If you can't hear, please let me know and
3 we will have it repeated.

4 My question first, does anybody in the courtroom know
5 anyone at the Plaintiff's table? If so, raise your hand.

6 Seeing no hands.

7 I am pointing over to the right now, this is where the
8 representatives and those associated with the Defendants are

9 seated.

10 So, 1f I could have everybody at that table introduce
11 yourselves and speak into the microphone when you introduce

12 yourself.

13 MS. BARRANCO: Good morning, my name is Summer

14 Barranco, I am one of the attorneys for the Sheriff of St.

15 Lucie County and Deputy Newman.

16 THE DEFENDANT: Good morning, Deputy Christopher
17 Newman.
18 MR. GREGG JOLLY: Good morning, my name is Greg Jolly

19 on behalf of the Defendants.

20 MR. BRUCE JOLLY: Good morning, I am Bruce Jolly, and
21 with the other two attorneys, I am also representing the

22 Defendants.

23 MR. FEDERMAN: Good morning, I am Mr. Federman,

24 in-house attorney for the St. Lucie Sheriff's Office.

25 THE COURT: Does anyone know anyone at Defense table?
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1 Seeing no hands.
2 Other important people are our court security officer,

3 Larry Branford, who will be here throughout the trial. At

4 times he will leave, but he assures that everything is safe and
5 secure and it is a comfortable environment for everybody.

6 We have our courtroom deputy, Ms. Richardson, she will
7 take care of you. When she is in the courtroom she will swear
8 witnesses in, and escort you in and out of the courtroom. And
9 we have down below where I am pointing, Ms. Pauline Stipes, who
10 is taking down every single word that is said in the courtroom
11 which is why you need to speak up, so she can make a record of
12 this proceeding, this trial, and that is very, very important
13 for everybody involved.
14 And what that means for all of us is that we need to

15 talk clearly, loud enough that everyone can be heard and that

16 we don't shake our head, nodding up and down or side-by-side,
17 when we answer questions because that doesn't translate well
18 onto a record, or say uh-huh or ah-ah as in our normal lives
19 because that also does not translate well.

20 If you don't answer in a way —-- and people will

21 forget, I will point it out. I am not going to be rude, I want
22 it to be a perfect record that Mrs. Stipes wants for every

23 trial that she is a part of.

24 In a jury trial, the first part is voir dire

25 examination. At this time I will ask Ms. Williams —-
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1 Ms. Richardson to please administer the oath.

2 (Thereupon, the jury venire was duly sworn.)

3 THE COURT: Okay, you may be seated.

4 The purpose of the voir dire examination is to attempt
5 to determine if your verdict in this case would in any way be

6 influenced by any experiences you may have had, any opinions

7 you currently hold, or any special training or knowledge that

8 you may possess.

9 Please understand that the questions that will be

10 asked of you and those asked of you on the questionnaire —-- and
11 I thank you for filling that out -- are not intended, whether
12 there are questions by the Court or the attorneys, are not

13 intended to pry into your personal affairs or embarrass you in
14 any way. I hope you understand it is important we understand a
15 little bit about your background so the lawyers can make an

16 intelligent decision whether or not this would be an

17 appropriate case for you to serve.

18 The trial is estimated to last five to seven days. It
19 is not always easy to predict precisely how long a trial will
20 last, and I will do my best to keep you up to date as we go
21 along. What I mean by five to seven days, it will go today and
22 tomorrow, that is two days, it will go next Monday, Tuesday,
23 Wednesday, three more days, and could be over by then, but if
24 it is not over, it can go into the next day, the 24th of May,
25 or possibly the 25th of May. We will do our best keeping
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1 everything moving along and keep things on track, but at this

2 point, that is the best estimate the attorneys have given the

3 Court.

4 We don't end trials just because day five comes and it
5 is not over. If the trial is not over, the service continues

6 until the trial is over.

7 I want you to know you are expected to stay from

8 beginning to end regarding when the trial ends if you are

9 selected. I will keep you informed so you can make plans
10 accordingly and there is minimal disruption as a result of your
11 jury service.
12 During the day we start at 9:00 and end —-- it depends.
13 I will say right now, this is the first day of trial, it is
14 always the longest, I am not going to give an estimate. I want

15 to get the jury selected and opening statements and start the
16 witnesses. I want to try to see if we can get the trial done
17 within that time frame. If I see we are running tight on time
18 we may need to go later, but I will say I will keep you posted
19 each evening when we will conclude our day.

20 An estimate may be a 5:30 time frame, but today it

21 most likely would be later than that. I try not to keep it too

22 long because I know these are long days, and we want you to be
23 comfortable and attentive.

24 We take mid-morning breaks, mid-afternoon breaks for
25 15 minutes so you can take a rest and stretch, things of that
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1 nature. If you feel you need a break, raise your hand and we

2 will accommodate you.

3 I hope you recognize jury service is an important part
4 of citizenship, it is a right for you to be participating and

5 it is a high calling. I hope that all of you would want to

6 serve. If you do serve, you will find this to be a rewarding
7 experience. I know your time is valuable and I and the

8 attorneys will do everything we can to ensure that your time is
9 not wasted.
10 Now, let me give you a little overview of what this
11 case entails, and what I am going to read to you is not
12 evidence. You should not consider it as such, but we need to
13 tell you something about this case so we can find out whether
14 or not this is an appropriate case for you to serve, and
15 whether you know anything about the case.
16 So, let me read this to you. Again, it is not
17 evidence, it is a description of the case.
18 This lawsuit involves an incident which occurred at

19 approximately 3:30 p.m. on January 14, 2014, between St. Lucie
20 County Sheriff's Deputies Christopher Newman and Edward Lopez
21 and the decedent, Gregory Vaughn Hill, Jr., at Mr. Hill's Ft.
22 Pierce residence which resulted in the Defendant Gregory Newman
23 fatally shooting Mr. Hill.

24 This case, which arises out of Mr. Hill's death, was

25 brought by Mr. Hill's estate through the Plaintiff, Viola
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1 Bryant. Ms. Bryant brings a claim pursuant to 42 U.S.C.
2 Section 1983, alleging that her son, Gregory Vaughn Hill, Jr.,
3 was subjected to the use of excessive force when he was shot by
4 Deputy Newman in violation of the Fourth Amendment. Plaintiff
5 Viola Bryant also brings a state law wrongful death claim
6 against the Defendant Sheriff Ken Mascara, in his official
7 capacity as Sheriff of St. Lucie County.
8 The Defendants deny the Plaintiff's allegations and
9 affirmatively assert that only a reasonable and necessary
10 amount of force was used.
11 Is there anyone here to who knows anything about this
12 case? If so, raise your hand. Seeing no hands —-- seeing one
13 hand.
14 Don't say anything yet, just let me figure out —-- are
15 you?
16 THE JUROR: Juror 21.
17 THE COURT:
18 THE JUROR: Yes.
19 THE COURT: I don't want to know anything in
20 particular. Are you raising your hand because you know
21 something about this case?
22 THE JUROR: Yes.
23 THE COURT: I will talk to you later about that, I
24 don't want anything to be said in the courtroom. I will make a
25 note of that. Thank you for raising your hand and I will come
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1 back to you later on that. Thank you.

2 As I said, this is an overview of the case, this is

3 not evidence. The evidence will come from essentially four

4 sources.

5 The most common source of evidence is witnesses who

6 will come into the courtroom, who will take an oath to tell the
7 truth and provide testimony from the witness stand which is

8 right there.

9 The second most common source of evidence is tangible
10 evidence, documents, things you can see and touch that you take
11 back with you when you go into the jury room to deliberate.

12 The third source of evidence are matters that the
13 parties agree to. The parties are not required to agree to

14 anything, but should they agree to anything, that is a source

15 of evidence that you should consider as you would any evidence.
16 The fourth source of evidence is judicial notice.

17 That could be laws or court records of this jurisdiction and
18 matters of common knowledge.

19 Those are the four most common sources of evidence.

20 I told you what this lawsuit is seeking. The burden
21 of proof is on the party who asserts the claim. In this case

22 the Plaintiff, Viola Bryant, as representative of the Estate of
23 Gregory Vaughn, Jr., has filed a claim against the Defendants,
24 Sheriff Mascara and Christopher Newman, so the Plaintiff has

25 the burden of proof.
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1 In order for the Plaintiff to prevail, the Plaintiff

2 must provide you with enough evidence to persuade you that the

3 Plaintiff's claim is more likely true than not true, in

4 legalese, this is a preponderance of the evidence. The burden

5 is to prove by a preponderance of the evidence her claim, that

6 is, to persuade you that her claim is more likely true than not

7 true. In other words, tip the scales in the Plaintiff's favor

8 in order for the Plaintiff to prevail.

9 Now, there are certain affirmative defenses alleged by
10 the Defendants. And with respect to affirmative defenses, it
11 is the Defendants, since they assert an affirmative defense,

12 they would have the burden of proving these affirmative

13 defenses by the evidence. If you decide the Plaintiff does not

14 meet her burden, the case goes no further.

15 I use the word evidence. The Plaintiff has to produce
16 enough evidence to persuade you the claim is more likely true
17 than not true. The evidence comes from witnesses, exhibits,

18 stipulations and matters the Court may take as judicial notice.
19 Your function is to decide what evidence is reliable
20 and you, as jurors, have the right to believe or disbelieve all
21 or any part of the testimony of any witness in the case.

22 You and exclusively you, the jury, will determine what
23 the facts of the case are, and it is the Court's responsibility
24 to determine all issues relating to the law.

25 The Court does that in essentially two ways; the Court
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1 will rule on objections that are made by the lawyers, and to

2 instruct you at the end of the case on all the law that you

3 will need to know in order to decide the case.

4 When lawyers make objections, they relate solely to
5 matters of law totally within the Court's province, so you

6 should not pay any attention to objections. Lawyers have a

7 duty to make objections that they deem appropriate. You should

8 not speculate on why they made an objection. If the Court

9 sustains an objection, the and witness is not permitted to

10 answer the question, you should not speculate on what the

11 witness might have said had he or she been permitted to answer.
12 That is a matter of law not within your province.

13 As I said, at the end of the case it is the Court's

14 job to instruct you on the law that pertains to this case, and

15 not only will I read the law to you, but each juror will be

16 entitled to your own set of instructions so you take it back to
17 you in the jury room when you deliberate your verdict.
18 The reason we have you take an oath is to follow the

19 law whether you agree with the law or not. When you take that

20 oath, you follow the law. The verdict is your ultimate

21 decision of whether or not the Plaintiff met her burden of

22 proof.

23 With respect to the verdict, the verdict must be based
24 on two things, the evidence presented in the courtroom in your
25 presence, and the law that the Court gives you.
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1 Is there anyone here who could not or would not base
2 his or her verdict solely upon the evidence and the law? If

3 you are not able to do that, please raise your hand.

4 We have one hand -- we have two hands.

5 87

6 THE JUROR: Yes.

7 THE COURT: Why did you raise your hand?

8 THE JUROR: I would like to feel that I can, but I am
9 close friends with Sheriff Mascara --
10 THE COURT: So, when I asked whether anybody knew
11 anyone, that would have been the time to raise your hand, that
12 you know someone. I don't want you to go further. I know he
13 is not sitting there, but I mentioned that is one of the

14 Defendants.
15 THE JUROR: I didn't realize that. I didn't know any

16 of those people. Sheriff Mascara I do know.

17 THE COURT: It is your position you don't believe you
18 can listen to the evidence and base your decision on the

19 evidence and the law because you have too close a relationship
20 to one of the Defendants in this case, is that what you are

21 saying?

22 THE JUROR: Yes.

23 THE COURT: Okay. We have which juror number?
24 THE JUROR: 22.

25 THE COURT: Juror 22, and that is?
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1 THE JUROR: Yes.

2 THE COURT: Why did you raise your hand?

3 THE JUROR: Because I don't totally trust the police

4 department from different issues that I have had encountered in
5 the past. I don't have total trust.

6 THE COURT: Okay, we are going to get into questions.
7 One of the questions on the questionnaire had to do with law

8 enforcement, but are you telling me just based on having heard
9 no evidence at all —-

10 THE JUROR: I —--

11 THE COURT: Just a moment. Are you telling me, based
12 on no evidence that you heard so far, you come to court with

13 such strong personal views and opinions that you would be

14 unable to put those personal opinions aside, to put those aside
15 and base it on the evidence and the law?

16 THE JUROR: Yes, I will.

17 THE COURT: Let me ask, because the issue of Sheriff
18 Mascara came up, although he is not sitting in the courtroom,
19 is there anyone else here who knows Sheriff Mascara? Seeing no
20 hands.
21 Followup question, other than what jurors number 8 and
22 number 22 have told me, is there anyone here who could not
23 fairly and impartially evaluate the evidence in this case?
24 Please raise your hand if you are not able to fairly and
25 impartially evaluate the evidence in this case of which you
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1 heard no evidence so far? Seeing no hands.
2 All right. ©Now I am going to read the names of some
3 of the individuals who may come up during trial. This does not

4 mean all of these people will testify, but I do want to go over

5 the names because these names may come up during the trial.

6 Raise your hand if you hear a name that you think you
7 know one of these people. And if I can ask Officer Branford to
8 stop me if you see a hand that is raised, because my head is

9 going to be down looking at the names, stop me at any time when
10 you see a hand that is raised.
11 Destiny Hill, Donna Hellums, Juanita Wright, Stefanie
12 Mills, Lisa McGuire, David Morales, Lisabeth Enriquez-Ruiz, Roy
13 Bedard, Christopher Newman, Edward Lopez, William Anderson,
14 FEarl Ritzline, Mark Chapman, Susan Adams, Joseph Hall, Terrica

15 or Monique Davis, Aryanna Hill, Gregory Hill, III, Viola

16 Bryant, Kanesha White, Andrew Brown, Deputy Thomas Johnson,
17 Detective Wade Courtemanche, Michael Gawjewski, Lieutenant
18 Brian Hester, Shirley Fowler, Sandra Park Picano, Theresse
19 Gaines, Arnold Gaines, Tony Stevens, Jeremiah Hill, Captain
20 Chris Cicio, Christopher Lawrence, Niles Graben, Dr. Linda

21 O'Neil, Sergeant Kyle King, Deputy Karen Stephens, Sergeant

22 Wade Courtemanche, Deputy Johnson, Captain Hester, Lieutenant
23 Larry Hostetler, Sergeant Lebeau, Kevin Pfeiffer, Richard
24 Young, Donna Carmichael, Robert Parsons, Jr., Dawn Radke,

25 Deputy Ed Lopez, Deputy Christopher Newman.
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1 There were no hands as to any of the witnesses?

2 Three.

3 Juror number 8, who did you know?

4 THE JUROR: I remember the name Hester and a captain
5 earlier in the thing, I don't remember. Two of the names in
6 there.

7 THE COURT: Okay. So you knew two names, Hester and
8 somebody else?

9 THE JUROR: I think you may have said Hester twice, I
10 am not sure.

11 THE COURT: I did repeat some of the names twice.

12 THE JUROR: Maybe that is what it was, I heard the
13 same name twice.

14 THE COURT: Okay. And who else did we have? Juror

15 number 22.

16 THE JUROR: Yes, Shirley Fowler, she is a friend of
17 mine.

18 THE COURT: Shirley Fowler?

19 THE JUROR: Yes.

20 THE COURT: Thanks.

21 THE JUROR: 27.

22 THE COURT: 2

23 THE JUROR: Yes.

24 THE COURT: Who do you know?

25 THE JUROR: Sandra Park Picano.
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1 THE COURT: Sandra Picano?
2 THE JUROR: Yes.
3 THE COURT: What is the level of relationship with
4 Ms. Picano?
5 THE JUROR: We are friends and I work with her every
6 day.
7 THE COURT: All right. Thank you. All right.
8 So, let me read an important instruction to you that
9 you must be guided by in every stage throughout this case.
10 We know, again, the jurors haven't been selected yet,

11 but this applies to all of you until you have been selected and

12 will continue to apply to those of you who are selected to be
13 jurors in this case.
14 While serving on the jury you must not talk to anyone

15 about anything related to the case. You may tell them you are

16 a juror and give them information when you must be in court,

17 but you must not discuss anything about the case itself with

18 anyone. You shouldn't even talk about the case with each other
19 until you begin your deliberations. You want to make sure you
20 hear everything, all the evidence, the lawyers' closing

21 arguments and my instructions on the law before you begin

22 deliberating.

23 You should keep an open mind until the end of the
24 trial because premature discussions may lead to a premature
25 decision.
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1 In the age of technology, I want to emphasize in

2 addition to not talking to anybody face-to-face about the case,

3 you must not communicate anything about the case by any other

4 means, this includes the internet, social networking, Facebook,
5 My Space, and Twitter. You shouldn't Google online or off line
6 about any information about the case, the parties, or the law.
7 Don't read or listen to the news about this case,

8 don't visit any places related to the case or research any

9 issue or place of the case. The law forbids any of the jurors

10 to talk to anyone about it. It is important you understand why

11 these rules exist and are so important. You must base your

12 decision only on the testimony and other evidence presented in
13 the courtroom. It is not fair to the parties if you base your
14 decision on information that you acquire outside of the

15 courtroom.

16 For example, the law often uses words and phrases in
17 special ways, so it is important that any definitions you hear
18 come from me and not from any other source.

19 Only you, as jurors, can decide the verdict in this

20 case. The law sees only you as fair and only you have promised
21 to be fair. No one else is so qualified.

22 So, 1f I can simplify it, this is what it means.

23 When you go in and out of the courtroom on breaks you
24 can't talk to anyone about what went on in the courtroom. You
25 can talk to each other, what were you doing this weekend, where
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1 do you work, nothing about what is going on in the courtroom,
2 even if it is mundane like it is cold, or you don't like the
3 way somebody is sitting, or you like somebody's suit, nothing,

4 nothing are you to talk about with each other or with anybody

5 else, by phone, in person, or any type of social media.

6 You are not to do any research. If I say something or
7 somebody says something and it peeks your interest and you

8 think you are being diligent to look for further information

9 about it, that is not permitted at all. The only thing you

10 need to know is going to be here in the courtroom.

11 If you start doing your own research, I don't know
12 what you are looking at, the parties can't be looking at it,
13 and don't know how we can address it. It is not permitted.
14 There may or may not be media coverage of this case.
15 You are not to listen or review any media coverage of this

16 case. Hypothetically, if you hear something that sounds

17 familiar about this case, turn it off.

18 If you go home and there is a newspaper or news flash,
19 and somebody in your family is watching the news and something
20 comes up that seems remotely related to this case walk out of

21 the room or ask that the TV been turned off.

22 I want to know if there is any exposure to any media
23 the next day. If you come in the next day and you saw

24 something, or you didn't see it, but it was in the newspaper
25 and you turned your eyes away, I want you to let me know.
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1 Raise your hand and tell me what happened, but in no instance
2 should you be getting any information from any other source,
3 friend, family member, colleague, radio show, news report, TV,

4 paper, period.

5 Very important, the internet as well.

6 You are insulated for purposes of this trial.

7 Anything you need to know and should know and have to know is
8 in the courtroom only, not a public rendition, not a friend's
9 view, not what Google tells you, it is what is presented

10 through the evidence. 1It's very important.

11 If T find in that you have not followed these

12 instructions, I will leave it at this, there are consequences
13 to that because we invest a lot of time and money in assembling
14 and fair and impartial jury and we do not want this fair and
15 impartial jury to be tainted by outside influences.
16 Does anyone have a problem with what I just said?
17 Anyone here who cannot follow the rules I just set forth? If
18 so, raise your hand. Seeing no hands.
19 Again, I want to thank you for filling out the

20 questionnaire. I am going to go through that with you right
21 now.

22 BY THE COURT:

23 Q. And we are going to begin with juror number 1.

24 A. Yes.

25 Q. Okay, let's go through everything.

Pauline A. Stipes, Official Federal Reporter



Case 2:16-cv-14072-RLR Document 238 Entered on FLSD Docket 06/28/2018 Page 51 of 3461
Case: 18-13902 Date Fl89:0d3/76W019 Page: 159 of 243

1 So, you were a factory worker at Harley-Davidson, but you
2 are now retired?

3 A. Yes.

4 Q. You have some college background?

5 A. Yes.

6 Q. Your partner has a GED and is currently retired?

7 A. Yes.

8 Q. Children graduated from high school?

9 A. Yes.
10 Q. No service in the military?
11 A. Stepchildren, my granddaughter is in the Army, the other
12 one is a Marine.
13 Q. You never served on a jury before?

14 A. No. I, did not.

15 Q. You like gardening?

16 A. That is where I spend my time.

17 Q. And you read and view Hometown News and Better Homes and

18 Gardens, and you like to watch Grit. Is that a TV show?

19 A. That is a magazine, farming, raising chickens and canning.
20 I was brought up in the country in Pennsylvania, Maryland, so
21 we Jjust always farmed and canned.

22 Q. Okay, terrific. You have a brother, possibly 40 years ago
23 who had interaction with law enforcement because of drugs?
24 A. Yes, he went to the penitentiary, but I didn't know what

25 year, but it was approximately 40 years ago, and he only served

Pauline A. Stipes, Official Federal Reporter



Case 2:16-cv-14072-RLR Document 238 Entered on FLSD Docket 06/28/2018 Page 52 of 3462
Case: 18-13902 Date Fle0:dd3/769019 Page: 160 of 243

1 a couple of years in the penitentiary in Maryland.

2 Q. And is there anything about that experience that would

3 affect in any way your ability to be fair and impartial as a
4 juror in this case?

5 A. I don't think anything. I am open minded, that is all T
6 can say.

7 Q. So you can be fair and impartial?

8 A. I feel as though I can.

9 Q. And you also indicate that your home was broken into about
10 37 years ago in Maryland?

11 A. Right. The neighbor children broke into it when we were
12 ready to move to a farm area, and came in a window and

13 burglarized the house.

14 Q. Anything about that experience that would prevent you from

15 being fair and impartial in this case?
16 A. I wouldn't want my home to be broken into, but there are
17 reasons for everything.

18 Q. So, in light of that having happened to you, could you be
19 fair and impartial in this case?

20 A. I feel as though I could.

21 Q. Neither you nor close family member or friend ever worked
22 for a law enforcement agency?

23 A. No.

24 Q. You don't participate in organizations or groups?

25 A. I think there I messed up.
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1 I am a member of the Legion here in Ft. Pierce and VEW up
2 in Maryland.

3 Q. Okay. And there is nothing in your background or personal
4 feelings which might affect your ability to be fair and

5 impartial for both sides?

6 A. I don't think I could be any more open minded than I am.

7 Q. And fair and impartial?

8 A. Right.

9 Q. Juror number 27

10 A Good morning.

11 Q. You are an aircraft mechanic?

12 A. I work at Flight Safety International in Vero Beach.

13 Q. And you have four years of college?

14 A. Yes, two different times, I went two years for automotive
15 technician, and two more years for automatic mechanic.

16 Q. Your spouse or partner is an RN, with two years of college.

17 A. Correct?

18 Q. No adult children.

19 A. No adult children. I claim my wife's daughter as my child,
20 but I do not legally have children.

21 Q. No service in the military?

22 A. No.

23 Q. Never served on a jury before?

24 A. No.

25 Q. You like cars, sports and shooting?
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1 A. That is correct.
2 Q. You read Hot Rod and you like history and science T.V.
3 shows?

4 A. Oh, yeah, love them.

5 Q. You -- so, were you —— 1in 1982, did you have an issue with
6 a misdemeanor?

7 A. That is correct. I slipped in a bar and broke a mirror.

8 The officer that was drunk and intoxicated arrested me, said I
9 did it on purpose and it turned into a big mess for me, still

10 follows me to this day.

11 Q. You were arrested and did you go to trial or what happened?
12 A. No. The actual officer that did arrest me, that was on

13 duty came in, did a quick investigation, and decided that I was
14 not a threat to society or did something evil and went to the
15 magistrate and informed them that I did not resist arrest, and
16 I did not assault the officer, and the magistrate decided to

17 fine me for the misdemeanor anyway of a broken mirror, and the
18 other two charges were dropped. I still have a record and

19 fingerprint card saying I committed a misdemeanor and forfeited
20 bail.

21 Q. 1Is there anything about that experience that would affect
22 your ability to be a fair and impartial juror in this case?
23 A. I really would hope not.

24 Q. Well, I need to know whether or not you believe so, based

25 on that experience and what you learned about the case, because
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1 once you are selected as a juror, we don't unselect you.

2 So, we owe it to the parties in this case to the best of

3 your ability to dig deep inside and ask yourself, can you put

4 aside any personal feelings or experiences or opinions you may
5 hold —— and we all come in with feelings, experiences, and

6 opinions, but the issue, really, is not having them, but will

7 they interfere with your ability to be fair and impartial to

8 both sides in this case. Can you do that?

9 A. If they bring the evidence forward, I can come to a
10 decision, yes.
11 Q. The jury's verdict is based on the evidence and the law, so
12 I give you the law, you must follow the law I give you, and you

13 apply the law to the facts and you come up with a verdict. Can
14 you do that?

15 A. I can do that.

16 Q. Fairly and impartially?

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. Okay. You also indicate that no one in your family,

19 including yourself, has been the victim of a crime?

20 A. Correct.

21 Q. Okay. And you have two friends who are police officers?
22 A. Well, let me correct that. Deputy Sheriff, Indian River,
23 and the other works on the island, Orchid Island —-- not Orchid
24 Island, right outside of Vero.

25 THE JUROR: Indian River Shores.
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1 THE JUROR: There you go.

2 BY THE COURT:

3 Q0. Anything about the fact that you are friendly with two law
4 enforcement officers that would affect your decision in this

5 case?

S A. No.

7 Q. You don't belong to any groups or organizations?
8 A. No longer, I used to belong to a motorcycle club.
9 Q. Okay. There is nothing in your background or permanent

10 feelings that would affect your ability to be fair and

11 impartial to both sides?

12 A. No.

13 Q. And you are able to serve during the days and times I
14 indicated?

15 A. Yes, as long —— I hope it doesn't go any longer than the
16 end of next week, I have a vacation planned to go see my
17 grandkids.

18 Q. Went does that happen-?

19 A. That starts Memorial Day week.

20 Q. Starting that weekend. Memorial Day is Monday?

21 A. That Monday.

22 Vacation beginning on 5/28, otherwise you are fine?

N0

23 Correct.
24 Q. What about Ms. Walbeck, are you able to serve the days and

25 hours I indicated?
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1 A. Yes.

2 Q. Thank you, perfect.

3 Juror number 3, you are a high school teacher?

4 A. Yes.

5 Q. You have a BA from college?

6 A. Correct.

7 Q. Your spouse or partner has a Master's Degree in library
8 information, and is a librarian?

9 A. Yes.
10 Q. You have an adult child who is an RN, a nurse in a
11 hospital?

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. No military service?

14 A. No.

15 Q. No service on a jury before?

16 A. No.

17 Q. You like sewing and cooking?

18 A. Yes.

19 Q. You watch NCIS and Chopped?

20 A. Yes.

21 Q. None of your family members or close friends or you have
22 been accused of a crime?

23 A. No.
24 Q. Neither you nor close family member have been the victim of

25 a crime?
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1 A. No.

2 Q. Or worked for a law enforcement agency?

3 A. No.

4 Q. You don't belong to any organizations or groups-?

5 A. Just my church.

6 Q. Nothing in your background that makes you feel you cannot

7 be fair to both sides?
8 A. No.
9 Q. You could serve the days I mentioned?

10

b,

I am supposed to be leaving to go out-of-town on the 25th.
11 Q. How flexible are you on that day?

12 A I could be flexible, but I am scheduled to leave that

13 morning if possible.

14 Q. On a flight?

15 A. No, driving.

16 Q. Let me ask you, if you were in trial, hypothetically, on

17 the 25th, that Friday, would that pose an insurmountable

18 problem for you not to be available to leave until after trial
19 is concluded that day? I am not suggesting we will or will not
20 be in trial.

21 A. Would it be finished on that day?

22 Q. That is the anticipated outer limit of the time frame.

23 A. That could be workable.

24 Q. Okay. Thank you.

25 Juror number 4.
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b,

N0 N0 >0 N0 N0 >0 N0 N0

N0

0.
accused or arrested

A.

Q.

Yes.

You are an engraver and a health care worker?

Yes.

Both?

Yes.

You have a college background, Master's Degree?

Yes, ma'am.

No spouse or partner?

Excuse me?

Do you have a spouse or partner?

No. Divorced.

You don't have any adult children?

No.

No service in the military?

No.

Never served on
No.

You like golf?

Yes.

a jury before?

You like reading trade magazines?

Yes.

Neither you nor

No.

Neither you nor

close family member or friend has been

or convicted of a crime?

close family member or friend have been the

Pauline A.
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1 victim of a crime?

2 A. No.

3 Q. Neither you or close family member or friend worked for a
4 law enforcement agency?

5 A. No.

6 Q. You don't participate in any organizations?

7 A. Not currently.

8 Q. When I asked if there is anything in your background which

9 might affect your ability to be fair and impartial, you

10 indicate you are a born again Christian and hold to Biblical
11 principles and values. What our American society considers
12 acceptable, if God does not consider it acceptable, I am with

13 God no matter what society may think.

14 So, I guess the question I have for you in light of what

15 you disclosed in answer to that question is the following. The
16 Court will give you the law in this case, it comes in the form
17 of what we call jury instructions, I read it to you, it is on
18 paper when you go back to deliberate, and you hear the evidence
19 in the courtroom from the testimony, witnesses, documents, all

20 the things I talked about.

21 Anything about your religious beliefs that would prevent
22 you from being a fair and impartial juror and applying the law
23 I give you to the evidence in the courtroom?

24 A. TI don't believe so.

25 Q. 1Is there any doubt at all in your mind?
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1 A. No, because our laws are based on Judeo-Christian

2 principles.

3 Q. And is there any scenario where you could imagine a law

4 that I would give you that is in our books and the state of law
5 within our judicial and legal system that would conflict with

6 your religious beliefs?

7 A. Well, I know if the law is relating in this case to

8 morality.

9 Q. There is not a law on morality, it is much more clear and
10 delineated. It describes what one side needs to prove to be

11 successful on a claim and what another side needs to prove to
12 be successful on an affirmative defense, and how you weigh the
13 evidence and how you determine credibility of witnesses and how
14 you determine damages, and things of that nature.

15 A. Then in that case, I would say no.
16 Q. You could be a fair and impartial juror?

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. You could serve during the days and hours I indicated?
19 A. Yes, ma'am.

20 Q. Okay. Juror number 57

21 A. Yes.

22 Q. Good morning.

23 A. Good morning.

24 Q. You are retired, but you were previously a?

25 A. Floor covering.
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h

N0 N0 N0 N0

>0

Q.
ones were in State Court?
A.
Q.
two verdicts.
A.
copped a plea.
Q.

A.

N0

Floor covering business?

Yes.

You have a college background?
Yes.

No spouse or partner?

No.

No adult children?

No.

No service in the military?
No.

You served as a juror seven times?
This is the seventh time.

First time in Federal Court because it looks like the other

State Court.

In those cases you reached two verdicts —-- I think it says

Two verdicts, but I went five days and the prosecution

Okay.

And once was a two day —-- three day trial. I was foreman.
In one of the six cases you have been the foreperson?

Yes.

Okay. And you like swimming?

Swimming.
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1 Q. And you like to follow the news and listen to Judge Judy?

2 A. Yes.
3 Q. Okay. And you have one DUI 25 years ago?
4 A. Yes.

5 Q. Anything about that experience that would interfere with
6 your ability to be fair and impartial in the case?

7 A. I was guilty.

8 Q. Okay. Anything about that that would interfere with your
9 ability to be fair and impartial?

10 A. No.

11 Q. Okay. As to whether you or a close family member or friend
12 has ever been the victim of a crime?
13 A. I was robbed about 20 years ago when I was traveling.

14 Q. Okay. Anything about that incident that would affect your
15 ability to be a fair and impartial juror?

16 A. No.

17 Q. Neither you nor close family member or friend worked for a
18 law enforcement agency?

19 A. No.

20 Q. You don't participate in organizations or groups?

21 A. No.

22 Q. There is nothing in your background that make you feel you
23 could not be fair and impartial to both sides?

24 A. No.

25 Q. Could you serve the days and hours I indicated?
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1 A. Yes.

2 Q. Six. You have a lot here.
3 Tell me about your current and past work experience.
4 A. I am a lawyer.

5 Q. Okay.

o
b

I work —— I am a sole practitioner, I work with my dad.

7 Q. What kind of law?
A

8 Estate planning, probation and guardianship. I work in

9 Inverness for Alfred Kaufman doing worker's comp and child

10 support enforcement work, and I also worked in college, in law
11 school as a work study student.

12 My husband is in the travel industry, he does corporate

13 travel and he also —-- he does not have a college degree, but he
14 has a degree in travel, and he worked for different airlines.
15 I do not have adult children.

16 Q. Let me ask you, anything about the fact that you are a

17 lawyer that you think would interfere with your ability to be a
18 fair and impartial juror in the case?

19 A. I am an officer, but I have never been called.

20 Q. Could you do it and be fair and impartial?

21 A. Yes.

22 Q. Okay. Your area of law is not the area of law that is
23 consistent with what is —-
24 A. No, but you mentioned —-- I do estate work, I do probate.

25 It is different.
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1 Q. Okay.
2 A. I have to file probates for people who have died, so I am

3 familiar with that aspect of it.

4 Q. Okay. And so, you like to exercise, travel, time with

5 family, friends and reading. You like Hawaii 5-0, Blue Bloods,
6 Designated Survivor, the Middle and Roseanne?

7 A. Yes, she came back.

8 Q. Okay. And you said your neighbor's son has been in jail

9 for drug charges?

10 A. I don't have all the details, they are good friends of
11 ours, right across the street from us in our neighborhood.
12 Q. 1Is there anything about that fact that would affect your
13 ability to be fair and impartial in this case?

14 A. No.

15 Q. You indicate your father's wallet has been stolen from his
16 car?

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. What else with respect to whether you, a close family

19 member or friend has been a victim of a crime?

20 A. That is all that I could recall.

21 Q. Okay. Is there anything about that incident that would
22 affect your ability to be fair and impartial?

23 A. No.

24 Q. You indicate that your daughter's close friend works for

25 the Vero Beach Police Department?
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1 A. Yes.

2 Q. And is there anything about that fact that would affect

3 your ability to be fair and impartial to both sides?

4 A. No. And I do have individuals I am friends with that work
5 for, I think Indian River Sheriff's Department as well. That
6 wouldn't affect my ability.

7 Q. Do you have an adult daughter?

8 A. No. She is nine years old, she will have a birthday over
9 the weekend. She will be ten.

10 Q. It is her friend?
11 A. Yes, she is a girl, and it is her father.
12 Q. The friend's father?
13 A. Yes.
14 Q. You are involved in Girl Scouts and you are coleader of
15 your daughter's group?
16 A. Retired from that.
17 Q. Okay. Anything about your background that makes you feel
18 you could not be fair and impartial to both sides?
19 A. No.

20 Q. Could you serve the days and hours I indicated?

21 A. Yes.

22 Q. Juror number 77

23 A. You actually said it correct.

24 Q. Good morning. You are a bartender at the Gafford and also
25 a counselor at Just Believe Recovery Center?
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1 A. Yes.

2 Q. You are working on your Master's at PBA?

3 A. Yes.

4 Q. Your spouse is currently unemployed, stays at home with
5 your son and worked as a bartender at the Pawnbroker Grill?
6 A. Correct.

7 Q. No service on a jury before?

8 A. No.

9 Q. You like going antigquing and shopping with your family?
10 A Yes.
11 Q. You like watching the Goldbergs, Family Guy and American
12 Dad?
13 A. Yes.
14 Q. Is it you who had a 2015 DUI manslaughter?
15 A. No, a friend.

16 Q. 1Is there anything about that incident that would affect

17 your ability to be fair and impartial to both sides in this

18 case?

19 A. No, ma'am.

20 Q. And the next question, if you or close family member or
21 friend ever was the victim of a crime, you said DUI, 20117

22 A. My uncle had a DUI in Oklahoma in 2011.
23 Q. That is your DUI?
24 A. No, my uncle.

25 Q. Uncle's DUI in Oklahoma. Anything about that fact that
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1 would affect your ability to be fair and impartial?
2 A. No.
3 Q. Any close family member or friend work for a law
4 enforcement agency?
5 A. No.
6 Q. You don't participate in organizations or groups?
7 A. No.
8 Q. You indicate whether there is anything in your background
9 that might affect your ability to be fair and impartial, you
10 struggle with the black and white thinking required of the
11 judicial process mostly due to your background in studying
12 mental health disorders?
13 A. Right.
14 Q. Let me ask you, can you be -- now that you know what the
15 case 1is about, can you be fair and impartial to both sides?
16 A. Yes, I believe so.
17 Q. Do you want to explain what that answer is?
18 A. I always think there are other factors involved, so it is
19 difficult for me to look at it plainly by law. Do I think I am
20 able to do that? Yes. I wasn't sure about the case we are
21 dealing with. I feel I could do it.
22 Q. Now that you know the case, you get the law from the Court
23 and you must follow the law and apply the law through the facts
24 and the evidence, can you render a fair and impartial verdict?

25 A. Yes.
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1 Q. Juror number 87

2 A. You didn't ask —— I am the sole bread winner for my home.

3 I work weekends, really, it should be okay. I do work starting
4 Friday, it is tough, in Martin County. That is my only issue.
5 Q. Let me ask you this: Can you manage it financially if you
6 are here during this trial?

7 A. Probably, but it would be very stressful.

8 Q. Would the stress be such that you would not be able to give
9 the parties your full attention if you were a ——

10 A. No.

11 Q. The stress would be enough to distract you?

12 A. No.

13 Q. You would give them your full attention?
14 A. Yes.

15 Q. Thank you.

16 Juror number 8, you are a part time-?

17 A. Part time at La Mesa RV.

18 Q. What is that, part-time driver?

19 A. Yes.

20 Q. Are you doing that now?

21 A. Yes.

22 Q. And your background is high school and some college?

23 A. Yes, ma'am.

24 Q. And your spouse or partner is an accountant with Fulmer

25 Logistics?
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A. Yes, your Honor.

0. You have six adult children?

b,

Yes, your Honor.

Q. What are they all doing, if you can keep track?

A Well, the oldest one is disabled. I have a son doing
landscaping, a daughter is a medical assistant, another
daughter works for St. Lucie County Tax Collector's Office,
another daughter is a dental technician, and a son is an
irrigation manager.

Q. Okay. You served in the U.S. Army for 22 years-?

A. Yes, your Honor.

Q. And you served on a jury before in County Court?

A. Yes, your Honor.

Q. And you were not the foreperson?

A. No, ma'am.

Q. And was it a civil or criminal case, if you remember?

A. It was a criminal case.

Q. Any personal hobbies or interests?

A. I have a variety of them, nothing major.

Q. Okay. Any particular newspapers, magazines or shows that

you like?

A. There is nothing that I am glued to that I got to be, you
know, can't miss it on Friday night, no.

Q. Okay. Neither you nor close family member or friend have

been accused or convicted of a crime?
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1 A. No, your Honor.

2 Q. With respect to whether you or close family member or

3 friend has been the victim of a crime, you indicate that in
4 1995, in Stafford, Virginia there was a rape involved?

5 A. Yes, my oldest daughter, she was sexually assaulted by her

6 friend's uncle.

7 Q0. I am very sorry to hear that.

8 Is there anything about that experience that would affect
9 your ability to be fair and impartial in this case?
10 A. No, ma'am.

11 Q. Okay. With respect to whether you or close family member
12 or friend has ever worked for a law enforcement agency, so you
13 are indicating your father retired as the Sheriff from Brevard

14 County?

15 A. He was a Major on the Brevard County Sheriff's Department.
16 Q. So, he is retired?

17 A. And deceased.

18 Q. You know numerous what?

19 A. United States Secret Service agents, my last assignment in

20 the military I worked closely with a lot of them.

21 Q. Anything about your relationship and father's relationship
22 with law enforcement that would affect your ability to be a

23 fair juror in this case?

24 A. I know Sheriff Mascara, and a lot of the deputies. I would

25 like to think I could, I don't want to push it and possibly be
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1 unfair.

2 Q. Is there a reasonable doubt in your mind in light of your
3 relationship with law enforcement officers, along with the

4 names you indicated, that you have a reasonable doubt whether
5 you could be fair and impartial to both sides?

6 A. I would say there is a doubt.

7 Q. Okay.

8 A. I like to think I could be fair, but I don't want to be
9 unfair to the Plaintiff.
10 Q. Okay. And you participate in American Legion and Boy
11 Scouts?
12 A. Yes, your Honor.
13 Q. And are you able to serve during the days and hours we
14 indicated?
15 A. Yes, your Honor.
16 Q. Okay, all right. All right. Thank you.
17 Juror number 97
18 A. Yes.

19 Q. Okay. And, let's see. Where do you work?

20 A. 1Indian River County, 25 years, heavy equipment operator.
21 Q. Okay. High school graduate?

22 A. Yes.

23 Q. And your spouse or partner works at Piper Aircraft?

24 A. Yes.

25 Q. Has a high school background?
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1 A. Yes.

2 0. No adult children?

3 A. No.

4 Q. You served in the Army?

5 A. Yes.

6 Q. Never served on a jury before?

7 A. No.

8 Q. You like sports?

9 A. Yes.
10 Q. You like —— let's see. What do you like reading and

11 watching?
12 A. USA newspaper, Sports Illustrated.

13 Q. Sports Illustrated. ©No favorite TV show?

14 A. No.

15 Q. Something about your brother and drugs in Wisconsin?
16 A. Yes, he got busted 15, 20 years ago.

17 Q. Okay. Did he serve any time?

18 A. Yes, he did.

19 Q. Okay.

20 A. I am not sure how many years.

21 Q. And anything about that experience that would affect your

22 ability to be fair and impartial?

23 A. No, ma'am.
24 Q. Okay. And neither you nor close family member or friend
25 has ever been the victim of a crime?
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1 A. No.
2 Q. Neither you nor close family member or friend worked for a
3 law enforcement agency?
4 A. No.
5 Q. You don't participate in organizations or groups?
6 A. No.
7 Q. Anything about your background or feelings that make you
8 feel you could not be a fair and impartial juror?
9 A. No.
10 Q. Could you serve the days and hours I indicated?
11 A. Yes.
12 Q. Thank you so much.
13 Juror number 107
14 A. Yes.
15 Q. You own a kitchen and bath design firm?
16 A. Correct.
17 Q. And prior to that, you worked for the firm and now you own
18 it?
19 A. Yes.
20 Q. Okay. And before you were in the citrus industry?
21 A. Correct.
22 Q. And you have four years of college, a degree in business
23 management and accounting, two year degree?
24 A. Yes.

25 Q. Okay. Your husband is retired due to health issues, but he
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1 was an ESE teacher for 15 years and advertising salesman?

2 A. Yes.

3 Q. You have a 19 year old currently in college, accounting
4 major. No military service?

5 A. No.

6 Q. No jury service before?

7 A. No.

8 Q. You like reading, music, crocheting and crafts?
9 A Yes.

10 Q. You read the daily local newspaper, Pintrist, and like
11 crime shows, CSI and Snapped?

12 A. Correct.

13 Q. Your husband did have a DUI in 2016/17?

14

hN

Yes.
15 Q. Was that a violation of probation?

16 A The DUI was in 16, and violation was in 17.

17 Q. Okay. Is there anything about that experience that would

18 prevent you from being a fair and impartial juror in this case?

19 A. No.

20 Q. And with respect to whether you or a close family member or
21 friend was a victim of a crime, your college roommate did
22 experience a date rape in 19877

23 A. Yes.
24 0. Your home was broken into and robbed in 20117

25 A. Yes.
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1 Q. Anything about those experiences that would influence you
2 from being fair and impartial to both sides?

3 A. No.

4 Q. You have a cousin that's a retired law enforcement officer
5 in Kansas and Orlando?

6 A. Yes.

7 Q. Anything about that relationship that your cousin has in

8 law enforcement, although retired, that would affect your

9 ability to be fair and impartial to both sides in this case?
10 A. No.

11 Q. You are a member of the First Church of God in Vero Beach,
12 but you don't hold a position?

13 A. Correct.

14 Q. 1Is there anything that might affect your ability to be fair
15 and impartial to both sides?

16 A. No.

17 Q. Can you serve during the days and hours I indicated?

18 A. Well, we have a small firm and our work is primarily in

19 condominiums and the -- I have about ten projects that started
20 on the 15th, so I have about 15 projects running, it is a

21 strain on the company for me to be out. There is my business
22 partner, myself, and our designer. It is a little bit

23 stressful for me to be out of the office for that long.
24 Q. Can I ask you the same question I asked Ms., is the level

25 of stress such that it would interfere with your ability, if
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1 you are selected, to give your full attention to the parties in
2 this case?
3 A. Yes, it would, honestly.

4 Q. Have you spoken with your partner about the ability of him

5 or her to shoulder the load if you are selected as a juror?

6 A. Yes, and she is more stressed out about it than I would be.
7 Q. I am not insensitive to that, believe me, but I know

8 everybody in the courtroom has something going on personally or
9 professionally. Some of us are called upon to serve in the
10 military, as we have two of our jurors, and others don't do

11 that, but they have a different kind of civic duty, and that is

12 to serve as jurors. So, it really is one of the most important
13 things you can do as a citizen of this country.
14 So, can you manage it?

15 A. If I have to, I can go into the office after I finish.
16 Q. You may not be selected. I need to know, if you are
17 selected, can you make it work?

18 A. Yes, I will make it work.

19 Q. Okay. Thank you so much.

20 Juror number 117

21 A. Yes.

22 Q. You do pool maintenance and pizza delivery?
23 A. I used to do pizza delivery, I do pool service for about 11
24 years now. I own my own business.

25 Q. You have a high school background?
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1 A. Yes.

2 Q. No spouse or partner?

3 A. No.

4 Q. No adult children?

5 A. No.

6 Q. Never served on a jury before?

7 A. No.

8 Q. You like disc golf, surfing and fishing?

9 A. Yes.
10 Q. Do you have any newspapers or magazines that you read

11 regularly?
12 A. No.
13 Q. Do you have any favorite T.V. shows?

14

hN

The Office.

15 Q. That is a good one. What else?
A

16 Blacklist.

17 Q. Okay. No family members or friends accused or arrested or
18 convicted of a crime?

19 A. My younger brother, he was charged with possession of

20 marijuana a few times and DUI.

21 Q. 1Is there anything about the experiences your brother had
22 with law enforcement that would affect your ability to be fair
23 and impartial in this case?

24 A. No.

25 Q. Have you or your close family member or friend worked for a
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1 law enforcement agency?

2 A. No.

3 Q. Or belong to any organization devoted to crime prevention?
4 A. No.

5 Q. Do you participate in organizations or groups?

6 A No.

7 Q. Anything that might affect your ability to be fair and
8 impartial to both sides?

9 A. No.
10 Q. Can you serve the days and hours I indicated?
11 A. Yes.
12 Q. Thank you.
13 Juror 12, you have been a fund raiser and director of
14 development and cashier, but you are now retired?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. You have a BA degree?

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. Your spouse or partner has two years of college.

19 A. Yes.

20 Q. He works for Lowes in mill work?

21 A. Yes.

22 Q. You have adult children. Let me know what they do.

23 A. The oldest one is an investment manager, Scott is a chef
24 and owns three restaurants, Curtis is an interventional

25 radiologist, he has his MD Ph.D., and my daughter does
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1 marketing for a hotel chain.

2 Q. No military service?

3 A. No.

4 Q. No service on a jury before?

5 A. No.

6 Q. You like paper and candle making, quilting and photography?
7 A. Yes, all kinds of crafts.
8 Q. You read the Treasure Coast newspaper, New York Times, and

9 watch Criminal Minds, Blacklist and Property Brothers?
10 A. Yes.
11 Q. Okay. You have —-- someone was convicted of —-

12

h

Oh, my brother.

13 0. Your brother. Tell me about that.
A

14 He was convicted many times for many different things,

15 drugs, drinking, assault.

16 I actually cut all relationships with my mother and brother
17 because of the trauma and chaos. There is probably more, but

18 they both passed away, so I don't know.

19 Q0. Anything about that experience that would get in the way of
20 you being a fair and impartial juror in this case?

21 A. I don't think so, although I am not really sure. I don't
22 guite understand what this case is. Yes, I think I would be

23 okay.

24 Q. Well, you haven't heard any evidence yet, so it is always a

25 tricky thing to project. That is why we give a summary of the
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1 case. I hopefully have given you enough to know, generally

2 speaking, who the -- what the case involves, it is a civil

3 case. Regardless of what kind of case it is, at the end of the
4 day every juror 1is charged with the same responsibility,

5 whether it is criminal or civil, any case, no matter what it

6 is.

7 The question for the juror is, can you follow the law and
8 apply the law to the evidence that you hear in court and learn
9 in court and be fair and impartial to both sides, keep an open
10 mind and when you go back and deliberate with your fellow
11 jurors you render a verdict that is fair and impartial-?

12 A. I can do that.

13 Q. Okay. You do indicate your mother was mugged in Miami, but
14 you don't know the year?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. Anything about that that would interfere with your ability
17 to be fair and impartial?

18 A. No.

19 Q. Neither you nor close family member or friend worked for a
20 law enforcement agency?

21 A. No.

22 Q. You don't belong to organizations or groups?

23 A. No.

24 Q. When I asked you -- you say you have no sympathy for

25 alcoholics and drug users. Anything about that statement that
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1 you want to elaborate on that would be suggestive of a
2 situation where you may not be able to be fair and impartial?
3 A. Its ——
4 Q. How does that come into play?
5 A. Because I had to deal with it so much personally I have the
6 attitude of get over it, go get it fixed, that is all.
7 Q. Okay. So, how might that come into play in terms of your
8 inability to be fair and impartial in a case?
9 A. I don't think it would come in.
10 Q. Can you serve during the days and hours that I have
11 indicated?
12 A. Yes, ma'am.
13 Q. Okay. All right. Thank you very much.
14 Juror 13, you are a service technician for Nestle
15 Professional Beverage?
16 A. Yes.
17 Q. You have a high school, trade school background?
18 A. Yes.
19 Q. Did you coordinate with juror 14 with the blue tops? They
20 are identical in color. Your spouse or partner has a high
21 school background and works in a doctor's office?
22 A. Yes.
23 Q. You have adult children, all of whom are in college?
24 A. Yes.

25 Q. Okay. No service in the military?
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1 A. No.

2 Q. No service on a jury?

3 A. No.

4 Q. You like biking and bowling-?

5 A. Yes.

6 Q. You don't read magazines, but you like Arrow and Blacklist

7 on TV?

8 A. Yes.

9 Q. You —-— let's see. In 2001, in West Palm Beach there was a
10 domestic battery charge. Is that something you were involved
11 with?

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. What happened there? Was there an arrest, and did it end
14 up going to trial-?

15 A. Yes, it did.

16 Q. Were you convicted?

17

h

Yes, and I filed an appeal and I won the appeal.

18 Q. You won the appeal?

19 A. Yes.

20 Q. And then also in 1997, were you involved in a DUI?

21 A. Yes.

22 Q0. And what was the disposition of that?

23 A. Back then it was nothing, I think it was throwed out.

24 Q. Okay. 1Is there anything about either one of those

25 experiences you had that you believe would interfere with your
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1 ability to be a fair and impartial juror in this case?

2 A. No.

3 Q. Okay. And you say in 1999, someone broke into your home?
4 A. Yes.

5 Q. Anything about that experience that would affect your

6 ability to be fair and impartial to both sides in this case?

7 A. No.

8 Q. Neither you nor close family member or friend ever worked
9 for a law enforcement agency or belonged to an organization

10 with law enforcement?

11 A. I have a friend in the Secret Service and a couple friends

12 with the West Palm Sheriff Department.

13 Q. Anything about those relationships that would affect your
14 ability to be fair and impartial to both sides?

15 A. No.

16 Q. You indicate you are a Jehovah Witness?

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. Okay. And is there anything in your personal background or
19 personal feelings that would affect your ability to be fair and
20 impartial to both sides?

21 A. No.

22 Q. The Jehovah Witness, anything about your beliefs that would
23 get in the way of your ability to do what you are required to
24 do, follow the law I will give you, something I will read to

25 you at the end of the case and give you, and apply the law to
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1 the evidence presented in the case?

2 A. I just started studying with them.

3 Q. What is that?

4 A. I just started studying with them, I don't know what their
5 laws are.

6 Q. Regardless of what their laws are, I don't know what degree
7 of studying you are going to be doing, you could follow the

8 laws I will give you?

9 A. Exactly.
10 Q. Can you do the days and hours I indicated?
11 A. Not really unless I have to. I cover West Palm to
12 Melbourne, and I am the only technician for the area.
13 Q. You work for a big company?
14 A. Yes.
15 Q. Do they know you are called up for jury duty?

16 A. Yes.

17 Q. Anybody giving you a hard time about that?

18 A. So far, not.

19 Q. All right. I know it's an inconvenience because you have
20 job responsibilities. Can you serve —-- but if you serve, will
21 you give your full and undivided attention to the parties in
22 this case?

23 A. Yes.
24 Q. Thank you.

25 Juror number 147?
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N0

Q.

Yes.

You are a service technician.

Correct.

With what company?

Cogin Acura.

Okay. And what did you do before?

I worked at DBD's as a busser, food service.
You have a high school background?

Correct.

No spouse or partner?

No.

No partner?

No.

No military service?

No.

You like working out and basketball?
Correct.

You don't have favorite magazines, T.V. shows or websites?
No.

Neither you nor family member or close friend has been

accused of a crime?

A.

Q.

No.

Neither you nor close family member or friend has been the

victim of a crime?

A.

No.
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1 Q. You know people on the St. Lucie County Sheriff's Office?

2 A. Yes.

3 Q. And how do you know them?

4 A. My brother and my stepbrother.
5 Q. Brother and stepbrother?

6 A. Brother.

7 Q. Your brother works for the St. Lucie County Sheriff's
8 Office?
9 A. Yes.

10 Q. What kind of work does he do?

11 A. He is a police officer.

12 Q. How long has he been a police officer?

13 A. Less than five months, six months.

14 Q. He just started?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. 1Is there anything about his working for the St. Lucie

17 Sheriff's Office that would affect your ability to be fair and
18 impartial in this case?
19 A. No, ma'am.

20 Q. And you didn't know any of the people that I listed off?

21 A. No, ma'am.
22 Q. And so, given that persons who are associated with the St.
23 Lucie County Sheriff's Office are parties in this case, that is

24 not going to put you in any kind of a difficult position to be

25 fair and impartial to both sides?
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1 A. No, ma'am.

2 Q. You don't feel you need to favor or not favor one side or

3 the other because of your brother working there?

4 A. No, ma'am.

5 Q. Okay. You don't participate in organizations or groups-?

6 A. No, ma'am.

7 Q. And you —-- 1is there anything in your background or personal

8 feelings which might affect your ability to be fair and
9 impartial to both sides?

10 A. No, ma'am.

11 Q. Can you serve during the days and hours I indicated?

12 A. Might be rough, I have a job interview and background test

13 and drug test coming up. I have no clue, don't know if the
14 position will still be open or not.
15 Q. When is your interview and background test and all of that?

16 A. The 21st.
17 Q. Okay. It is an interview for a job?
18 A. Yes.

19 And what job is that?

N0

20 Another technician job in West Palm Beach for BMW.

21 Q. Okay. And so, you are saying if you are not able to

22 attend, do you know whether they would be willing to reschedule
23 that if you ask them if you were called as a juror?

24 A. No clue.

25 Q. You don't know. Other than that interview, is there any
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1 other matter that would interfere with your ability to serve
2 during the days and hours?

3 A. No, ma'am.

4 Q. Okay. Okay. Thank you so much.

5 Juror number 157

6 A. Yes.

7 Q. You are retired, you were a practical nurse?

8 A. Correct.

9 Q. Your educational background is graduate of —-
10 A Technical.
11 Q. Technical school?
12 A. Yes.
13 Q. LPN?
14 A. Yes.
15 Q. Your spouse or partner is a retired surface coal miner?
16 A. Correct.
17 Q. You have a son who is an attorney with the U.S. Attorney's
18 Office in West Virginia?

19 A. Yes, he is the U.S. Attorney.
20 Q. He 1is?

21

h

Yes, of the Southern District of West Virginia.
22 Q. Got it, okay. Your daughter is a beautician?
23 A Correct.

24 Q. Anything about the fact that your son holds that position

25 that would interfere with your ability to be fair and impartial
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1 in this case?

2 A. No. It would make it even more.

3 Q. No service in the military?

4 A. No.

5 Q. No service on a jury before?

6 A. No.

7 Q. You like reading, the beach, movies, you like going on
8 Google, Facebook, reading Good Housekeeping and Southern

9 Living?

10 A. Uh-hum, and the Cooking Channel.

11 Q. The Cooking Channel. Your husband did have a DUI in West
12 Virginia in the 1990's?

13 A. Correct.

14 Q. Anything about that fact that would affect you being a fair
15 and impartial juror?

16 A. No. Glad they got him.

17 Q. And in the 1990's your son was beaten by a biker?

18 A. Prior to him being my son-in-law, the Pagan motorcycle

19 group, they decided they needed an initiation and my son-in-law
20 happened to be at the wrong place at the wrong time.

21 Q. Anything about that experience that would --

22 A. No.

23 Q. ——- interfere with your ability to be fair and impartial?

24 A. No.

25 Q. You don't participate in any groups or organizations?

Pauline A. Stipes, Official Federal Reporter



Case 2:16-cv-14072-RLR Document 238 Entered on FLSD Docket 06/28/2018 Page 91 of 3461
Case: 18-13902 Date Fle9:0d3/769019 Page: 199 of 243

1 A. No.

2 Q. And there is nothing in your background or personal
3 feelings which might affect your ability to be fair and
4 impartial to both sides?

5 A. I could be fair.

6 Q. And impartial?

7 A. Yes.

8 Q. Can you serve the days and hours I indicated?

9 A Yes.
10 Q. Okay.
11 A. There is one thing I never thought about saying, but my

12 brother-in-law, it has been 35 years, but he was a city police
13 officer up north.

14 Q. Retired for 30 years?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. He was a police officer up north?

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. Anything about that fact that would interfere with your
19 ability to be impartial to both sides?

20 A. No.

21 Q. Thank you.

22 Juror 16, you are a nanny?

23 A. Yes.

24 Q. You have a high school background?

25 A. Yes.

Pauline A. Stipes, Official Federal Reporter



Case 2:16-cv-14072-RLR Document 238 Entered on FLSD Docket 06/28/2018 Page 92 of 3462
Case: 18-13902 Date R2e0:0d3/769019 Page: 200 of 243

1 Q. Your son is a truck driver and -- no, you have a son in
2 college?

3 A. Yes.

4 Q. No jury service?

5 A. No.

6 Q. You like to learn music?
7 A I don't understand it.

8 Q. What do you like to do as your personal hobbies and
9 interests?
10 A. Music.

11 Q. You like music. What do you read, the Bible?

12 A. The Bible, I am a Christian person.

13 Q. And your daughter was arrested for DUI in 20157

14 A. Correct.

15 Q. And what happened, what was the final outcome of that?

16 A. She was in an accident first and then she violate —-- they
17 suspend the driver license, and she drive again, and she was
18 arrested, and she was in jail for two months, I think.

19 Q. Okay. Let me ask you, so, what is your first language,

20 Spanish?

21 A. Spanish. I make a note that I have a problem with

22 understand, writing and speak English. My language is Spanish.
23 Q. Okay. Have you had some trouble understanding everything?
24 A. Yes.

25 Q. Do you have some concerns about your ability to be able to
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1 understand what would happen in a trial, five to seven days,

2 are you concerned with that at all?

3 A. Yes, what happened if I don't understand.

4 Q. Right. And so far there have been some things you have not
5 been able to understand?

6 A. Can you say that again?

7 Q. Have I said some things today that you have not understood?
8 A. In the beginning, in the beginning, when we was here and

9 you explain the case, there was some things that really not
10 clear to me.

11 Q. Okay.
12 A. Yes.
13 Q. Okay. Okay. Okay, thank you very much.

14 A. Thank you.

15 Q. Juror number 1772
16 A. Yes.
17 Q. Okay, good morning. You are a bartender at the Olive

18 Garden?

19 A. Yes.

20 Q. You went up to college and finished your AS, and are
21 working toward nursing?

22 A. Yes.

23 Q. No spouse or partner?

24 A. No.

25 Q. No service in the military?
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1 A. No.

2 Q. You like reading, Netflix and swimming?

3 A. Yes.

4 Q. Your favorite shows are Grey's Anatomy and Dexter?
5 A. Yes.

6 Q. None of your family or friends have been accused or
7 arrested or convicted of a crime?

8 A. No.

9 Q. Neither you nor close family member or friend work for a
10 law enforcement agency or are a member of a law enforcement
11 organization?

12 A. No.

13 Q. You told me that your cousin works for the police

14 department in Ocala-?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. Anything about that that would prevent you from being fair
17 and impartial to both sides?

18 A. No.

19 Q. You don't participate in organizations or groups?

20 A. No.

21 Q. Nothing in your background would affect your ability to be
22 a fair and impartial juror?

23 A. No.

24 Q. You could serve the days and hours I indicated?

25 A. I have class on Mondays and we had days that would not go
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1 very well. I have tests on Monday and Wednesday of this week.
2 Q. You are in college now?

3 A. Yes.

4 Q. You are still in session?

5 A. Yes.

6 Q. So you are a student currently?

7 A. Yes.

8 Q. Next Monday and next Wednesday you are in class and you
9 have tests?

10 A. Yes.
11 Q. Okay. Has school ended or are you in summer?

12

h

We just started summer, IRCA.
13 Q. When do you go to school?

14 A Monday and Wednesday, I have an online class between 12:00
15 and IV, and on Wednesday I have a class at 5:30, it is in

16 school that day.

17 Q. That one test happens to be online?

18 A. That one test is the online class, but I do have to go to
19 the campus for the test.

20 Q. All right. Thank you.

21 Juror number 187

22 A. Yes.

23 Q. You work for FPL?

24 A. Yes.

25 Q. As a fleet chemistry specialist?
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1 A. Yes.

2 Q. You have a BS in nuclear engineering technology?

3 A. Yes.

4 Q. Your partner is a student?

5 A. Yes, she is going to school for welding.

6 Q. Okay. What did you say?

7 A. Welding.

8 Q. Welding, okay. No adult children?

9 A. No.
10 Q. You served in the U.S. Navy, honorable discharge as —--
11 A. I was an E-6.
12 Q. Okay. That was from 2003 to 20097
13 A. Correct.
14 Q. No service on a jury before?
15 A. No.
16 Q. You like books, movies, hiking, biking, home improvement
17 and music?

18 A. Yes.

19 Q. You don't particularly take to newspapers or magazines, you
20 get news from Fox and Drudge Report?

21 A. And local news.

22 Q. Local. Neither you nor family members have been arrested
23 or convicted of a crime?

24 A. No.

25 Q. Neither you or close family members or friends work for a
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1 law enforcement agency or are a member of an organization?

2 A. No.

3 Q. You don't participate in organizations or groups?

4 A. No.

5 Q. Nothing in your background that makes you feel you cannot
6 be fair and impartial?

7 A. No.

8 Q. You could serve the days and hours I indicated?

9 A. Yes.

10 Q. Okay, thank you.

11 Juror number 19. Let me get them back in order here.
12 A. Yes, ma'am.
13 Q. You are a lead insurance representative at Martin Health

14 System?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. You have an AA degree and high school diploma?
17 A. Yes.

18 Q. Your spouse 1is a property manager?

19 A. Yes.

20 Q. No adult children?

21 A. No.

22 Q. No service on a jury?

23 A. No.

24 Q. You like boating, fishing?

25 A. Yes.
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1 Q. You like to watch Discovery Channel?

2 A. Yes.

3 Q. Neither you nor family member or close friend has been

4 arrested or convicted of a crime?

5 A. No.

6 Q. Neither you or close family member or friend has been the

7 victim of a crime?

8 A. No.

9 Q. Neither you or family member or close friend have worked
10 for a law enforcement agency or belonged to any organization?
11 A. No.

12 Q. You are the president of the South Fork Basketball Booster
13 Club and secretary/treasurer of Coast Basketball.

14 A. Yes, I am a basketball mom.

15 Q. There's nothing in your background or personal feelings

16 that would affect your ability to be fair and impartial?

17 A. No.

18 Q. You would be able to work the days and hours I mentioned?
19 A. My kids would like me to be on the road at 2:00 p.m.

20 Friday, but no.

21 Q. You are not going?
22 A. We have two cars going.
23 Q. Juror number 20, you are a supervisor at Martin Health

24 System?

25 A. Yes.
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1 Q. Do you know each other?

2 A. No.

3 Q. You work at the same place, but you don't know each other?
4 A. No. It is a big organization.

5 Q. Let me ask that question. Does any juror know any juror

6 here? 1If so, raise your hand. No hands.

7 You have some college background, continuing education for

8 health care?

9 A. Yes.

10 Q. Your partner is a manager with Express Scripts and was a
11 manager of Planet Fitness?

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. You have children with a college background?

14 A. Yes.

15 Q. Working in music and for Symplex?

16 A. He inspects fire alarms.

17 Q. No military service?

18 A. No.

19 Q. You did have one trial, it was a State case, you served for
20 three days and then you were released?

21 A. Yes.

22 Q. Okay. You enjoy cycling-?

23 A. Up cycling.

24 Q. Up cycling. Used furniture-?
A

25 I refurbish furniture.
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1 Q. You are interested in designing and painting-?
2 A. Yes.

3 Q. You like Doctor 0Oz, newspapers on line, Pintrist and TED

5 A. Yes.
6 Q. Neither you nor a close relative or friend has been
7 arrested or convicted of a crime?

8 A. No.

9 Q. Neither you nor close family member or friend worked for a
10 law enforcement agency, or belong to an organization devoted to
11 law enforcement?

12 A. No.

13 Q. You don't participate in organizations or groups?

14 A. No.

15 Q. Nothing in your background that would affect your ability
16 to be fair and impartial to both sides?

17 A. No.

18 Q. And you could serve the days and hours I indicated?

19 A. Yes.

20 Q. Juror 21, I know you raised your hand earlier.
21 Why don't we hold off on you. I know you indicated you
22 knew something about the case before. I am going to put a tab

23 and we'll come back to you separately, if that is okay.
24 And similarly, juror 22, I will hold you off for a moment

25 because you had feelings you wanted to express.
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1 Juror number 237

2 A. Yes.

3 Q.

4 A. Yes.

5 Q. And you are a full-time occupational therapist working with
6 mentally, physically handicapped children?

7 A. Yes.

8 Q. College background, occupational therapy assistant?
9 A. Yes.

10 Q. Single?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. No children-?

13 A. No.

14 Q. No service in the military?

15 A. No.

16 Q. You are working on a new house?

17 A. Yes, I bought my new house back in March.

18 Q. Congratulations.

19 You like books, no cable. You do not like watching cable?

20 A. No.

21 Q. You like Netflix, websites, mainly for work purposes?
22 A. Right.

23 Q. Your brother, in 2000, was arrested for trespassing and
24 charged with possession of marijuana?

25 A. Yes.
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1 Q0. Anything about that that would affect you being a fair and
2 impartial juror-?

3 A. No.

4 Q. Okay. Neither you nor close family member or friend has

5 been the victim of a crime?

6 A. No.

7 Q. Neither you nor close family member work for law

8 enforcement or an organization devoted to law enforcement?

9 A. No.
10 Q. You are not involved in any organizations or groups?
11 A. No.
12 Q. When I asked if there is anything in your background or
13 personal feelings that might affect your ability to be fair and
14 impartial to both sides, you indicate, honestly, I don't think
15 I would be comfortable voting someone guilty if not guilty, or

16 actually were guilty to end up not guilty to be free to commit

17 another crime.
18 That seemed to be you were anticipating this would be a
19 criminal case?

20 A. Yes. I didn't know what the case would be. I didn't know

21 whether I would feel comfortable enough to say if the person is
22 guilty or not guilty, whatever, depending on what the case was.
23 Q. Now that you know it is a civil case and I have given you a
24 brief description, do you believe there is anything in your

25 background or feelings that make you feel you might not be fair
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1 and impartial to both sides?

2 A. No.

3 Q. Can you serve the days and hours I indicated?

4 A. I can. Again, like a couple of others, financially it

5 would be a burden for me, I am my only income, and I bought a
6 house, it would be a setback for me.

7 Q. Do you think you would be able to handle it if called upon
8 to fulfill your civic duty?

9 A. Yes.

10 Q. Would you be in a position to —-- would the burden not
11 interfere in any way with your ability to give your full and
12 undivided attention to the parties in this case?

13 A. It would, but it would be stressful.

14 Q. We do know, of course, nothing prohibits anyone from after
15 court each day to tend to whatever personal or professional

16 matters, there are no restrictions on what you do after you

17 leave here, other than you cannot talk about it or anything I
18 told you, obviously, during the hours that you are here you are

19 not do those things.
20 A. Those are the same hours I work.

21 Q. Thank you. Juror 247?

22 A. Yes.

23 Q. You work for Diversified Roofing Solutions as a roofer?

24 A. Yes.

25 Q. You went to Martin County High School and GED and a little
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1 trade school?

2 A. Yes.

3 Q. No spouse or partner?

4 A. No.

5 Q. No adult children?

6 A. No.

7 Q. No service in the military?

8 A. No.

9 Q. No service on a jury before?
10 A. No.
11 Q0. You like to run/jog and exercise?
12 A. Yes.
13 Q. You like the TV show -- is it called Two Broke Girls?
14 A. Yes.

15 Q. Okay. I wouldn't know the difference, you could tell me

16 that, and I'd believe it.

17 Your brother was accused of a crime, and your dad helped

18 release him by paying for his release?

19 A. Yes.

20 Q0. Anything about that experience that would affect your

21 ability to be fair and impartial in this case?

22 A. No.

23 Q. And neither you nor close family member or friend have been
24 the victim of a crime?

25 A. No.
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1 Q. Neither you nor close family member or friend ever worked
2 for a law enforcement agency or been involved with a law
3 enforcement organization?

4 A. No.

5 Q. You don't belong to any organizations or groups?

6 A. No.

7 Q. When I ask is there anything in your background or personal
8 feelings which might affect your ability to be fair and

9 impartial to both sides, you say "I don't feel comfortable

10 around people who seem to obviously be racist. I think that's
11 it."

12 Now that you know who you are with, your fellow potential
13 jurors, although nobody has been selected yet, you are possible
14 jurors, and you know about the case from the brief description
15 I have given you, anything in your background or personal

16 feelings which might affect your ability to be fair and
17 impartial to both sides?

18 A. No.

19 Q. Can you serve during the days and hours I indicated?
20 A. Yes. Yes, I can.

21 Q. Okay. All right. Thank you.

22 Juror 25, you work as a dishwasher, washing dishes, trash,
23 bathrooms, mostly washing dishes?

24 A. Yes. I have dish washing down here and in Massachusetts
25 also. This is kind of preventing me from -— I do have a job,
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and kind of preventing me from working, because I asked for
these two weeks off because of jury duty.

I can serve, it is not that I can't serve, but I would like
to be working.

Q. So, let me make sure I understand.

So, you asked for time off because you knew you had jury
duty, and you were given time off. I am assuming you are not
getting paid, or are you?

A. No, I am not getting paid right now, no. I have to let her
know after the two weeks are up when I can start because I was
going to start, you know, probably this coming week if
possible, but I knew I had jury duty, and I didn't know if T
was going to get the job or not.

I can still serve, but it's just putting a damper on my job
right now.

Q. Do you have the job or are you applying for the job?

A. No, I do have the job. I had to ask for the two weeks off,
I didn't know if I was going to get the job or not.

Q. Have they said it is okay to take the time off and they
will hold the job for you?

A. Yes, she told me to let her know when I can start working.
Q. Let's say you are not picked as a juror, could you say, I
am not a juror, and could you be back to work?

A. Yes.

Q. 1If you are not working, you still have your job, but not
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1 making money from your job?

2 A. Yes.

3 Q. Do you live alone?

4 A. No. I live with my aunt.

5 Q. You live with your aunt?

6 A Yes.

7 Q. Could you swing it financially if you don't have money
8 coming in from your job?

9 A. Yes, I can.

10 Q. You are okay with that?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. You have a high school background?

13 A. Yes, I do.

14 Q. Okay. You are not married?

15 A. No. Single.

16 Q. You don't have adult children?

17 A. No.

18 Q. You have never served in the military?

19 A. No.

20 Q. You served on a jury in Massachusetts?

21 A. Yes. I don't really —— I remember little bits and pieces
22 of the case, I don't remember if it was criminal or not

23 criminal. We did come with a verdict, but we didn't find out

24 the Sentencing or anything with that, so...

25 Q. All right. And you like movies?
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1 A. Yes, I do.

2 Q. Okay, you like to watch —-- is it called Golden Girls?

3 A. Yes.

4 Q. 1Is there another show called Mom or is that part of Golden
5 Girls-?

6 A. No, that is another show, after midnight.

7 Q. No wonder I don't know anything about it.

8 A. Sorry, I shouldn't have said that.

9 Q. That is okay. Neither you nor close family member or
10 friends have been arrested or convicted of a crime?
11 A. I should have put down my friend. I didn't want to put
12 down my friend because she may not want me to give the
13 information out.
14 Q. You don't have to tell me the name, just tell me what
15 happened.
16 A. Supposedly it was a drug thing and she supposedly is on

17 probation right now.

18 Q. Okay, you don't have to give me her name.

19 Anything about this experience that happened with your

20 friend that would prevent you from being a fair and impartial
21 juror in this case?

22 A. I don't think so, no.
23 Q. And you say neither you nor close family member or friend
24 have ever been the victim of a crime; is that correct?

25 A. Yes.
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1 Q. Neither you nor close family member or friend have ever
2 worked for law enforcement?

3 A. No.

4 Q. And you participate in the Treasure Coast Friend Group-?
5 A. Yes, I do.

6 Q. Other than what you described about your job, is there

7 anything in your background or personal feelings which might

8 affect your ability to be fair and impartial to both sides?

9 A. I do have a question. This is criminal, right?
10 Q. No, this is a civil case. Civil is not criminal, meaning
11 nobody is sentenced, no one is going to be sentenced, there is

12 nothing to do with jail or anything that people usually think

13 about in criminal cases.

14 So, it is a dispute between two parties, and they are going
15 to present the evidence and tell you their side of the story

16 and you are going to listen to the evidence, and I am going to

17 give you the law and I will explain it to you and you will
18 decide which side has proven their case.

19 A. Okay. Yes, I can do that.

20 Q. Do you feel comfortable doing that?

21

h

Yes.

22 Q. Okay, all right, thank you.
A

23 You are welcome.
24 Q. Juror 26. You are —- you work at Wal-Mart customer
25 service?
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1 A. Yes.

2 Q. You have a 12th grade background?

3 A. Yes.

4 Q. And your spouse or partner is the owner of a landscaping
5 company?

6 A. Yes.

7 Q. Okay. He is a college graduate?

oo}
hN]

Yes.

9 Q. No adult children?
A

10 No.

11 Q. No service in the military?

12 A. No.

13 Q. No service on a jury before?

14 A. No.

15 Q. You read urban books?

16 A. Yes.

17 Q. You like Criminal Minds and SVU Law and Order?

18 A. Yes.

19 Q. You had problems in 20087

20 A. Yes.

21 Q. What happened there?

22 A. I was intoxicated, basically.

23 Q. Okay. What was the final disposition, was there an arrest?
24 A. Yes, I was arrested and I was on six months probation.
25 Q. Okay. That was by St. Lucie County Sheriff's Office?
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1 A. Yes.

2 Q. Okay. And also were you involved with resisting arrest —-
3 A. Those two were together. They just went together.

4 Q. One says 2008 and one says 20067

5 A. I don't remember, it was between 2006 and 2008.

6 Q. The same incident?

7 A. Yes.

8 Q. Given you had this experience and you had this experience

9 with the St. Lucie County Sheriff's Office, which is one of the
10 parties here in this case, or involved in this case, 1is there
11 anything about this personal experience you had that would
12 affect your ability to be fair and impartial to both sides in
13 this case?

14 A. No.

15 Q. You believe you could be fair and impartial to both sides?
16 A. Yes.

17 Q. Okay. Neither you nor close family member or friend has
18 ever been the victim of a crime?

19 A. No.

20 Q. Neither you nor close family member or friend work for a

21 law enforcement agency or belong to any organization associated
22 with law enforcement?

23 A. I do. I have an uncle and his wife, but I haven't spoken
24 to him in like six years.

25 Q. They are in law enforcement?
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1 A. I have an uncle —- she works in St. Lucie County Jail and

2 my uncle is in Okeechobee Correctional, yes.

3 Q0. Anything about the fact that they have these jobs, I guess
4 particularly also your aunt being with St. Lucie County Jail,

5 anything about their work and affiliations with these employers
6 that would affect your ability to be fair and impartial in this
7 case?

8 A. I don't speak with them.

9 Q. The answer is no?

10 A. No.

11 Q. You don't participate in organizations or groups?

12 A. No.

13 Q. Is there anything that would affect your ability to be fair
14 and impartial?

15 A. No.
16 Q. Can you serve the days and hours indicated?

17

h

I can, but I don't want to.
18 Q. Why don't you want to?

19 A I don't want to be in the courthouse and sit and listen to
20 people talk all day.

21 Q. Are you capable?

22 A. I am capable.

23 Q. Capable of listening?

24 A. Yes.

25 Q. Being fair?
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1 A. Yes.

2 Q. Impartial-?

3 A. Yes.

4 Q. Capable of having an open mind after you've heard all of
5 the evidence?

6 A. Yes.

7 Q. Capable to reach a fair and just verdict?

8 A. Yes.

9 Q. You have a personal preference you'd rather be somewhere
10 else?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. This is a very important calling and privilege to be a
13 juror in the case.
14 A. Yes, I know.
15 Q. If you are here and chosen, you won't hold that against
16 anybody and you would be attentive throughout the entire trial?
17 A. Yes.
18 Q. All right. Thank you.
19 Juror 277
20 A. Yes.
21 Q. You spoke about someone you knew already?
22 A. Yes.
23 O. I will put a sticky on yours as well, and maybe we'll come
24 back to you.

25 A. Okay.
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1 Q. No, I guess I can go through --

2 A. Whatever you want, I am here.

3 Q. We won't get into who you know and how, that is what I want
4 to ask you separately.

5 You are a teacher?

6 A. Yes.

7 Q. Did you work for local news?

oo}
hN]

Yes, Time Warner.

9 Q. You have a college background?
A

10 Yes.

11 Q. Divorced?

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. Two children, they are not adults?

14 A. Right.

15 Q. They might be acting like they are?

16 A. They sure do.

17 Q. No service in the military?

18 A. No.

19 Q. No service on a jury?

20 A. No.

21 Q. You like football, baseball and following Trump?
22 A. Yes.

23 Q. You like Fox News?

24 A. Love Fox News.

25 Q. You don't have a close family member or friend who has been
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1 the victim of a crime?

2 A. No.

3 Q. You don't have a close family member or friend that works
4 for a law enforcement agency or association with law
5 enforcement?

6 A. My boyfriend's brother is a police officer.
7 Q. Where is that?
8 A. Miami.

9 Q. Anything about that that would affect your ability to be

10 fair and impartial to both sides?
11 A. No, not at all. Blue lives matters, actually everyone's
12 life matters, yes.

13 Q. Okay. And you are part of your church, which is Catholic?
14 A. Yes.
15 Q. You indicate -- when I say is there anything in your

16 background or personal feelings which might affect your ability

17 to be fair and impartial, you say "I feel most people are

18 guilty. Zero tolerance"?

19 A. They are guilty of something. I have zero tolerance.

20 Everyone needs to step up and do the right thing, we won't have

21 everything that is going on.

22 Q. You know this is a civil case and not a criminal case?
23 A. Absolutely.

24 Q. Sometimes we use the word guilty, sometimes people

25 associate that with a criminal case. Now that you heard about
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1 what the case is about, and know what your role is as a juror,
2 do you believe there is anything in your background or personal
3 feelings which might affect your ability to be far and

4 impartial to both sides?

5 A. No.

6 Q. Can you serve during the days and hours I indicated?

7 A. Yes, it will be stressful, but yes.

8 Q. And we'll revisit the issue of who you know separately.
9 A Sure.
10 Q. Thanks.
11 Juror number 287

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. You were branch manager at --

14 A. Oculina.

15 Q. Carolina-?

16 A. Oculina.

17 Q. I had it right the first time, Oculina Bank.

18 High school graduate, two years of college, AA degree?

19 A. Yes.

20 Q. Your partner is a high school graduate, college graduate,
21 territory sales manager in food service?

22 A. Yes.

23 Q. You have children who are employed in what fields?
24 A. She is in —- she is a computer programmer, and she does
25 software design, and she is a four-year graduate of college.
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1 Q. Okay. All right. No service in the military?

2 A. No.

3 Q. You have served as a juror before, two times in civil cases
4 in State Court, there was a verdict reached and you were not
5 the foreperson?

6 A. Correct.

7 Q. You like horseback riding?

8 A. Yes.

9 Q. Watch the news, no newspapers, magazines, and you have no
10 favorite websites?

11 A. Correct.

12 Q. Neither you nor family or friends have been arrested or
13 convicted of a crime?

14 A. Correct.

15 Q. Neither you nor close family member have been the victim of
16 a crime?

17 A. Correct.

18 Q. Neither you nor your —-- you are associated with the South
19 Beach Association, you are on the board of directors?

20 A. Yes.

21 Q. Nothing in your background that would affect your ability
22 to be fair and impartial to both sides?

23 A. No.

24 Q. You could serve during the days and hours I indicated?

25 A. Yes, I can.

Pauline A. Stipes, Official Federal Reporter



Case 2:16-cv-14072-RLR Document 238 Entered on FLSD Docket 06/28/2018 Page 118 ot 18
Case: 18-13902 Date (22688769019 Page: 226 of 243

1 Q. Thank you so much.

2 Juror 297?

3 A. Good morning.

4 Q. You are currently retired, but you do substitute teaching.
5 A. Yes.

6 Q. You have been a deputy clerk in criminal traffic?

7 A. Yes, that was like 30 years ago.

8 Q. Okay. You have an AA degree in elementary education?

9 A. Towards, yes.

10 Q. No spouse or partner?

11 A. No. Single.

12 Q. Four children and what type of work do they do?

13 A. My oldest son is in citrus, the citrus industry, he is

14 production manager for a corporation. The second son owns his
15 own business in Ocala, a feed store, and my third son works for
16 a local oil company. My daughter is a stay—-at—-home mom.

17 Q. Okay. No service in the military?

18 A. None.

19 Q. No service on a jury before?

20 A. Never.

21 Q. You like scrapbooking and playing with your grandchildren?
22 A. Yes.

23 Q. You don't read magazines, but you like Perry Mason and

24 Psych.

25 A. And Bull.
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1 Q. And Bull. Your daughter was arrested for domestic abuse of
2 an elder, but the charges were dropped, and you had a family

3 dispute in Highlands County?

4 A. Yes, it was a big mistake. She and her grandmother, my

5 mother, got into it one day, and the older brother, the brother
6 that is eight years her senior, thought he was doing the right
7 thing by calling 911 to settle it. Anyway, the charges were

8 dropped.

9 Q. Anything about that experience that would affect your
10 ability to be a fair and impartial juror to both sides?

11 A. No. Not at all.

12 Q. You indicate your mom was a victim -- the same issue?

13 A. Yes.

14 Q. That is how you answered the question regarding victim?

15 A Yes.

16 Q. Neither you nor close family friend worked in law

17 enforcement?

18 A. My oldest granddaughter is going to be married in November,
19 and her fiancee' is currently a deputy in Highlands County.

20 Q0. Anything about that relationship that would affect your
21 ability to be fair and impartial to both sides?

22 A. Absolutely not.

23 Q. And you belong to —-— you are a choir member at First

24 Baptist?

25 A. Avon Park.
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1 Q. And are you —-—

2 A. I teach third grade.

3 Q. There is nothing in your background or personal feelings
4 which might affect your ability to be fair and impartial to
5 both sides?

6 A. Nothing.

7 Q. You could serve the days and hours as indicated?

8 A. Yes, ma'am.

9 Q. Thank you.
10 Juror 307?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. You are retired and previously worked in?

13 A. Vocational rehabilitation.

14 Q. You have a BA educational background?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. Your partner is an RN with a BS background?

17 A. Correct.

18 Q. You have two sons, and what do they do?

19 A. One is a CFO in a hospital in Las Vegas, and the other
20 works in the aeronautics industry.

21 Q. You did serve in the military?

22 A. Yes.
23 Q. For two years?
24 A. Yes.

25 Q. You never served on a jury before?
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1 A. No, I haven't.

2 Q. You like golf?

3 A. It doesn't like me, but yes, I do.

4 Q. Do you like to read newspapers, magazines or have favorite
5 T.V. shows?

6 A. Mostly online I check out news and television, Bull and For
7 the People are my favorites now.

8 Q. That is two for Bull.

9 A. Yes, it is good.

10 Q. You had a son who was involved in a sexual assault?

11 A. Correct.

12 Q. In 2007 in Wisconsin?

13 A. Yes.

14 Q. What was the disposition there?
15 A. We won it.

16 Q. Was there a trial?

17 A. Yes, there was a conviction.

18 Q. And what was 1it, was there a penalty involved? Did he
19 serve any time?

20 A. Yes.

21 Q. He served time. Is there anything about that experience

22 that would affect your ability to be fair and impartial to both

23 sides in this case?
24 A. Not in this case, I don't believe so.
25 Q. And that was in Wisconsin; is that correct?
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1 A. Correct.

2 Q. Neither you nor close family member or friend have been the
3 victim of a crime?

4 A. Not to my knowledge.

5 Q. And you have worked -- is it a CID in the Navy —--

6 A. No, Army CID, criminal intelligence there.

7 Q0. Anything about that prior work experience that would affect
8 your ability to be fair and impartial to both sides?

9 A. I don't believe so.
10 Q. You are not involved in any organizations at this time?
11 A. Not since I retired.
12 Q. Anything in your background that would interfere with you
13 being fair and impartial?

14 A. No.

15 Q. Can you serve the days and hours I indicated?

16 A. Yes.

17 Q. 31. You are in auto sales and trucking?

18 A Yes, auto sales for eight years, I was in trucking for 14

19 years, over the road and locally.
20 Q. You are a high school graduate?

21 A. Yes.

22 Q. Your spouse or partner works in retail sales?

23 A. Yes, she's been at Target for 17 years now.

24 Q. You have two children, one in the medical field and one a
25 food server?
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1 A. Yes, my younger works at Mulligans.

2 Q. No military service before?

3 A. Yes.

4 Q. You like cars and guns?

5 A. Yes.

6 Q. You like auto programs?

7 A. Auto programs, I have gone on line, I am in the auto

8 industry, I do a lot of looking on line for that as well.

9 Q. Neither you nor close family member or friend have been
10 arrested or convicted of a crime?
11 A. Not to my knowledge.
12 Q. Neither been a victim of a crime?

13 A. No.

14 Q. You had multiple relatives who were former NYPD, relatives
15 serving in New York City court system?

16 A. Two retired cousins with NYPD, two former NYPD, and two

17 cousins in the New York court systems as bailiffs.

18 Q. Would any of that -- the fact that you have the

19 relationships with these individuals in law enforcement, would

20 that affect your ability to be fair and impartial to both sides

21 in this case?

22 A. I would say not, ma'am, I would say not.

23 My cousins have been in law enforcement over 30 years, I
24 think I can come to a fair judgment here.

25 Q. You don't belong to any organizations or groups-?
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1 A. No. Just every other Sunday a bunch of us go shooting, we
2 are members of the gun club.
3 Q. When I ask if there is anything in your background which

4 might affect your ability to be fair and impartial, you

5 indicate you are partial to law enforcement?

6 A. I did write that. If push comes to shove, I could make an
7 impartial decision.

8 Q. It's not a matter of push comes to shove, this involves law
9 enforcement.

10 A. I didn't know that before we did the -—-

11 Q. It is perfectly fine to have partial views, there is

12 nothing about this process that would suggest that people

13 shouldn't. All that matters is that you make it known to the
14 Court so that the parties can make a decision ultimately

15 whether you would be an appropriate juror for this case.

16 A. I understand.

17 Q. So, I guess, 1s that accurate, that you are partial to law
18 enforcement?

19 A. I guess you could say I am.

20 Q. In a case where one side involves law enforcement, is it
21 possible that you would be starting off favoring them or more
22 inclined?

23 A. No, not necessarily, ma'am.

24 Q. So, what does it mean to be partial for law enforcement?
25 A. Because of my strong ties —-- 30 years total just being
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1 around police officers, I understand what things they're around

2 and risks they take, and all of that.

3 Q. Would you give law enforcement officers who testify greater
4 weight to their testimony than maybe somebody who is not law

5 enforcement?

6 A. I feel I can be impartial in this case if you need me.

7 Q. If a law enforcement officer is testifying on the stand,

8 would you be giving any greater weight to that person than

9 someone who is not law enforcement just because that person is
10 law enforcement?

11 A. Right, I know what you are telling me. Like I said, I have
12 a strong law enforcement background with relationships, yes, I
13 would say that I probably couldn't.

14 Q. Could not what?

15 A. Be impartial.

16 Q. You probably could not be law enforcement -- you probably
17 could not be impartial because of your strong ties to law

18 enforcement?

19 A. Correct. Correct.

20 Q. Okay. Okay, thank you so much.

21 And can you serve during the days and hours I indicated?
22 A. Yes, ma'am.

23 Q. Okay. All right. I know everyone is getting restless, we
24 have four more to go through. We will finish up with the last

25 row and we'll break.
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1 2
2 A. Yes.
3 Q. You are a mechanic in the duct cleaning business?
4 A. Yes.
5 Q. High school background?
6 A. Yes.
7 Q. Partner or spouse is a Publix manager?
8 A. Yes.
9 Q. No adult children?
10 A. No.
11 Q. No service in the military?
12 A. No.
13 Q. No service on a jury before?
14 A. No.
15 Q. You enjoy sports, going to the beach and TV.
16 A. Yes
17 Q. You don't read any newspapers, but you do watch TV news?
18 A. Yes.
19 Q. Neither you nor close family member or friend have been
20 accused or arrested or convicted of a crime?
21 A. No.
22 Q. Neither you nor close family member or friend has been the
23 victim of a crime?
24 A. No.
25 Q. You don't participate in organizations or groups?
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1 A. No.

2 Q. There is nothing in your background or personal feelings
3 which might affect your ability to be fair and impartial to
4 both sides?

5 A. No.

6 Q. You could serve the days and hours I indicated?

-
b

Yes.

8 Q. All right. Juror 337
A

9 Yes.
10 Q. And you are a service worker in water and sewer?
11 A. I am retired.
12 Q. Retired?
13 A. Yes.
14 Q. That is what you used to do?
15 A. Yes, ma'am.
16 Q. High school background?
17 A. Graduated 12th grade.
18 Q. No spouse or partner?
19 A. No.
20 Q. No adult children?
21 A. No.
22 Q. No service in the military?
23 A. No.
24 Q. You served on a jury two times before?
25 A. Yes.
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1 Q. Were you the foreperson?
2 A. I was a juror, I —— a couple of those broke in houses.
3 Q. Do you remember if you were the foreperson on the jury?
4 A. No.

5 Q. Do you have any hobbies or interests?
6 A. No. No yet.

7 Q. You like watching NFL.
8 A. Yes.

9 Q. Do you have any close family member or friend that's been
10 accused, arrested or convicted of a crime?

11 A. Nope.

12 Q. Did you have a DUI in 19877

13 A. Yep.

14 Q. 1Is there anything about that experience that would affect

15 your ability to be fair and impartial to both sides?

16 A. No, ma'am.
17 Q. Have either you or a close family member or friend ever
18 worked for a law enforcement agency?

19 A. Nope.
20 0. You are a member of Teamsters?

21

h

Retired.
22 0. Retired?
23 A Yes.

24 Q. Anything in your background or personal feelings that might

25 affect your ability to be fair and impartial to both sides?
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1 A. No.

2 Q. Can you serve during the days and hours I indicated?
3 A. Yes.

4 Q. Thank you. ?

5 A. Yes.

6 Q. You work in a nursing home?

7 A. Yes, ma'am.

8 Q. You have an AA in organizational management?

9 A. Yes.

10 Q. No spouse or partner?

11 A. No.

12 Q. No adult children?

13 A. No.

14 Q. No service in the military?

15 A. No.

16 Q. No service on a jury before?

17 A. No.

18 Q. You like fishing and -- what is the other thing you like,
19 personal hobbies or interests?
20 A. Fishing, books.
21 Q. Okay.
22 A. I don't remember exactly what I put.
23 Q. Okay. And you like the Sunday paper and is it Atlanta, is
24 that a show?
25 A. Yes.
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1 Q. You like that. Neither you nor a close family member or
2 friend have been accused, arrested or convicted of a crime?

3 A. Yes.

4 Q. Is that correct?

5 A. Yes.

6 Q. Neither you nor close family member or friend have been the
7 victim of a crime?

8 A. Correct.

9 Q. Neither you or close family member or friend have worked
10 for law enforcement?

11 A. Correct.

12 Q. You don't participate in organizations or groups?

13 A. Not at this moment.

14 Q. Nothing in your background that would affect your ability

15 to be fair and impartial to both sides?

16 A. No, ma'am.

17 Q. You could serve the times and hours I indicated?
18 A. Yes.

19 Q. 2

20 A. Yes.

21 Q. You work for Express Scripts?

22 A. Yes.

23 Q. You have high school, some college?

24 A. Yes.

25 Q. No spouse or partner?
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1 A. No.

2 0. No children?

3 A. No.

4 Q. No service in the military?

5 A. No.

6 Q. No service on a jury?

7 A. No.

8 Q. You like reading?

9 A. Yes.
10 Q. Essence and People magazines?
11 A. Yes.
12 Q. You don't have a close family member or friend that has
13 been accused, arrested or convicted of a crime?

14 A. No.

15 Q. You had a car broken into at your home?

16 A. Yes.

17 Q. Anything about that experience that would affect your
18 ability to be fair and impartial to both sides?

19 A. No.

20 Q. You don't have —-- either you or a close family member or
21 friend that has worked for a law enforcement agency or
22 affiliated with a law enforcement organization?

23 A. No.
24 Q. Do you participate in any organizations or groups?

25 A. No.
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1 Q. 1Is there anything in your background or personal feelings
2 which might affect your ability to be fair and impartial to

3 both sides?

4 A. No.

5 Q. Can you serve during the days and hours I indicated?

6 A. Yes.

7 THE COURT: All right. Thank you, everyone, for your
8 patience. Here is what we are going to do now. I am going to
9 give you your lunch break. I want to be clear about a few

10 things.

11 There are a few people I will ask to remain behind for
12 followup questions. I will ask you to leave the courtroom.

13 You can use the restroom and come back out and wait outside the
14 courtroom. If T don't call your name and number, that means

15 you are released to go back to lunch.

16 We will have everyone back at 1:30. Remember, this is
17 your first break since you came in. You can leave together,

18 you can talk together, you can walk together, you can go to

19 lunch together, you can drive and go somewhere else, you can

20 talk on the phone, you are allowed to use your electronic

21 equipment, but you are not allowed to talk to each other about

22 the case, anything, even like the cup sitting on the desk,

23 nothing going on in the courtroom. You are not allowed to talk
24 to anyone else about what is going on in the courtroom. You
25 are not allowed to research about what is going on in the
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1 courtroom.
2 You are not allowed to do any —-- you can certainly
3 communicate with friends, family members or colleagues, and it

4 is perfectly okay to let them know you have been called up for

5 jury service, you are not sure you have been selected. That is
6 true, you haven't been selected yet. You can update them

7 later, maybe family members or friends. You are not to discuss
8 the name of the case, what it is about, civil, criminal. They
9 might be curious, and all you have to say is the judge says I

10 can't talk about it.

11 You can tell them after. If you are not a juror you
12 can go back to your lives this afternoon. If you are a juror,
13 you will be here for five to seven days, you don't know that

14 yet.

15 Any questions about those rules or requirements?

16 It's very important. If anybody violates those, there
17 are consequences. You can see how time consuming and how much
18 effort is involved in going through the process of finding a

19 fair and impartial jury for the parties.

20 Juror number 10.

21 THE JUROR: 1If we are dismissed from today.

22 THE COURT: 1If you are dismissed from this case?

23 THE JUROR: Do we need to continue to call through the
24 week?

25 THE COURT: Yes.
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1 THE JUROR: Thank you.
2 THE COURT: Let me have the following jurors —-
3 THE JUROR: 1If we are dismissed during the case, are

4 we allowed to talk about that?

5 THE COURT: I will go over the rules for the people

6 who are dismissed. That is a fair question. Nobody is

7 dismissed now to be clear.

8 So, let me first say there are a couple of people

9 offhand that I want to have remain behind. Juror number —-- you
10 can use the restroom and come back and line up so we can bring
11 you in one at a time.

12 Juror 21, Ms. Burns, you remain behind, don't go to

13 lunch right away. Juror number 8, juror number 22, juror

14 number 27, Jjuror number 7, juror number 10, juror number 12,

15 juror number 14, juror number 16, juror number 17, juror number
16 23, juror number 31, juror number 26.

17 So, the ones I called out, take a quick break, line up
18 outside the courtroom and we will bring you in quickly and get
19 you out so you can have your lunch. And the same rules apply
20 to you when you do go to lunch about not researching and

21 talking about the case.

22 If I did not call your name or Jjuror number you are
23 released now with the rules and instructions I have given you
24 and we will see everybody back at 1:30.

25 (Thereupon, the jury venire left the courtroom.)
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1 THE COURT: We will be in recess —-- let's take a five
2 minute break.
3 (Thereupon, a short recess was taken.)
4 THE COURT: All right. We have everybody here.
5 So, let's go through the list. I wanted to bring
6 juror number 21 in because she says that she knows something
7 about the case.
8 What I am going to do is find out what she knows about
9 the case, and then turn it over to both sides, if you have any
10 followup questions about that, and then, if, for example, she
11 knows so much it doesn't appear either side wants her to remain

12 on the jury, I don't know that I have to go through the

13 questionnaire, but if she doesn't know enough that it is

14 problematic, I will go through the questionnaire with her.
15 Before she is excused if any of the things she says
16 suggests that she shouldn't be on the jury, I need to get a

17 signal from both sides, you need to nod or hold up a sticky,
18 counsel, so I can see if you believe the person should be

19 excused. Okay.

20 So, juror 21 is coming in because she said she knew
21 something about the case.

22 We will start with juror number 21. It is, I think.
23 (Thereupon, the prospective juror entered the

24 courtroom.)

25 THE COURT: Okay, you may come up to the podium.
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1 Thank vyou.

2 BY THE COURT:

3 Q. You indicated you knew something about the case. Can you
4 let me know how you know about the case?

5 A. I know about the case over there by my grandson's school,
6 the house that is over there, my cousin stays next door to the
7 house.

8 Q. Okay. So, did you know about what happened at the time

9 that it happened?

10 A. No, later on, hearing it through other friends, like my

11 kids and cousin, and other people talking about the case, that
12 is how I know about it.

13 Q. What do you know about the case?

14 A. There was music playing during that day, he was playing

15 music, and officers came up there and shot through the doorway
16 of the garage. Yes, I know about the incident, you know how
17 you hear things about it, that is what happens. That is how I
18 know about it, from there.

19 Like I say, my grandson, he goes to that school and we had

20 to pick him up.

21 THE COURT: Okay, it doesn't appear counsel have any
22 questions for you.

23 MR. PHILLIPS: No, we are 1in agreement on this one.

24 THE COURT: 1In light of the fact you do know something
25 about the case before the case begins, we are not going to have
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1 you serve as a juror on this case.
2 THE JUROR: Okay.
3 THE COURT: I want to thank you for your service, and

4 thank you for letting us know that. You didn't do anything

5 wrong, but you know what I told everybody, you can't hear about
6 the case outside, only what is in the courtroom.

7 I don't want you to let anybody else know you have

8 been excused, you can leave the courthouse, and any other

9 jurors, you are not to tell them you have been excused. And
10 once you leave, call in each day for your service for the rest
11 of your term.
12 And I don't want you communicating with any of the
13 jurors who are still here, even during the next week or two
14 when they are here, because I don't want them to know anything

15 you might know about the case.
16 THE JUROR: Okay.
17 THE COURT: The next person is juror number 8, because

18 he knows the Sheriff very well.

19 (Thereupon, the prospective juror entered the
20 courtroom.)
21 THE COURT: You can come up to the podium.

22 BY THE COURT:
23 Q. You had indicated that you know Sheriff Mascara very well?
24 A. Yes, ma'am.

25 Q. Can you tell us a little more? I didn't want you to say it
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1 in front of everybody else. What is your relationship?

2 A. I am involved with the Boy Scouts and Sheriff Mascara has
3 been deeply involved in it and I know quite a few of the other
4 officers from my involvement with Ft. Pierce Little League, a

5 lot of their children play on the Little League.

6 Q. With the kind of relationship you have with the sheriff and

7 some of the others involved, do you believe that you can be

8 fair and impartial and not give any leg up or advantage to the
9 Sheriff and the Defendant in this case and —-- you know there
10 will be a number of witnesses who come in and testify from the
11 Defendant, law enforcement related, and we need to know how you

12 stand with that.

13 A. I would like to think I could be fair and impartial, but I

14 don't want to put myself in a position to where I wouldn't be.
15 THE COURT: Okay. Agreement? Okay.

16 So, in light of that -- we appreciate you bringing it
17 to our attention, that is what you are supposed to do.

18 I will excuse you from this case, you will not serve
19 as a juror on this case. You are permitted to leave. I would
20 ask you not tell the other jurors you are excused. Once you
21 leave, you can talk to anyone about your experience, although
22 do not talk to anyone who remains on the jury because they are
23 still potential jurors on this case. You should continue to
24 call in for your service.

25 Call in juror 22, she says she doesn't trust police.
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1 Now, you should feel free if you need to ask

2 questions. Let me know if you are in agreement based on what I
3 do. I need to see your stickies, and I know we'll end the

4 conversation there.

5 (Thereupon, the prospective juror entered the

6 courtroom.)

7 THE COURT: You can come up to the podium, speak into
8 the microphone.

9 BY THE COURT:

10 Q. So, you were letting the Court know you can't trust the

11 police department, you can't be fair and impartial?
12 A. Correct. Well, it was awhile back, once I encountered an
13 officer —— I was coming home from work with my grandson in the

14 car with me, I am sitting at the stop sign and I look to my

15 right at someone working on the house. I pulled around and I
16 get all the way to, if you are familiar with Ft. Pierce, Avenue
17 Q, Westward High School. The police gets behind me and flashes
18 her light and pulls me off to the side. She said I ran a stop
19 sign. Well, I am just going to give you a warning. I said to
20 my daughter, she works for Ron Rode (phon), what if I refused
21 it, because she was kind of like huf-huf when she approached me

22 about it.

23 I said how could I have when I am sitting in my car looking
24 at someone working on their roof. She said I will give you a
25 warning, whatever. And recently my grandson got into trouble,
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1 he had dreads, so it seems like that one bit of trouble and all
2 of a sudden police officers stop him, and once he cut his

3 dreads off he doesn't get stopped any more.

4 I know not all police officers are on the force to protect
5 and serve. I don't always look at them, because they have a

6 uniform on, that they are going to stand before me and tell the
7 truth. I have an issue with that.

8 Q. You know the Defendants in this case are law enforcement?

9 A. Yes.

10 Q. The Sheriff and Deputy Newman, and a lot of witnesses who

11 will be testifying are from law enforcement. Do you believe

12 you can be a fair and impartial juror?

13 A. My question would be, is it all law enforcement that is

14 basically testifying for the law enforcement, or people in the
15 community that will testify for law enforcement as to what they
16 see? That is where I stand when it comes down to things like
17 that.

18 If all I have are a bunch of police officers telling me how
19 much of a service they have done, they are human, and they are
20 capable of making mistakes, but how you handle those mistakes,

21 I have an issue with that. If you can't step up to the plate
22 and say I made a mistake and I am willing to accept the

23 consequences, don't cover it up because they are police

24 officers. All lives, although you say blue lives, all lives

25 matter. What has been happening in the community is against
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1 African-Americans. If that is all I am going to hear from,

2 then I have an issue with that.

3 THE COURT: You did exactly what you are supposed to

4 do, which is let the Court know your personal views and let the
5 Court know so a determination can be made to decide whether

6 this is an appropriate case for you.

7 I will excuse you from this case, you do not need to

8 serve as a juror on this case. I ask you to call in as your

9 summons requires you to do for the rest of your jury service.
10 I ask when you leave, do not tell anyone else you have been

11 excused, do not talk to them about being excused. Once you

12 leave, you are free to tell anyone else or you can choose not
13 to talk to them. What I will say 1s you are not to communicate
14 with anyone who are remaining behind as possible jurors in this
15 case.

16 THE JUROR: Thank you.

17 THE COURT: Have a nice day.

18 Next I will call in number 27, because she knows —-—

19 she works and is friends with Sandra Picano. Is that a
20 definite witness in this case?
21 MR. PHILLIPS: Yes, she saw the incident, Ms. Picano
22 did.
23 THE COURT: We need to flush that out.
24 Number 27.
25 MR. PHILLIPS: Your Honor, we may have a stipulation
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1 regarding her?

2 MS. BARRANCO: Both sides agree that she can be
3 stricken for cause.

4 THE COURT: Okay.

5 (Thereupon, the prospective juror entered the

6 courtroom.)

7 BY THE COURT:

8 Q. 2

9 A. Yes.
10 Q. You know Ms. Picano?
11 A. Yes.

12 Q. Let me know about that.
13 A

I work with her every day, she is a friend of mine, I have

14 known her for probably about 35 years.

15 THE COURT: Okay. All right. 1In light of that fact,
16 and in light of the fact she is a potential witness in this

17 case, we are going to excuse you as a juror in this case. We
18 want to thank you for your service. You need to continue to
19 call in consistent with what your juror summons indicates, and
20 I ask when you leave, you don't need to come back, but that you
21 not communicate with any of the other jurors. Do not let them
22 know you are excused. You are free to talk about any

23 experience you had or free not to talk to them. In any event,
24 do not talk to anyone remaining because we are going through
25 the selection process.
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1 THE JUROR: Thank you very much. I appreciate what

2 you guys do.

3 THE COURT: Have a great day.

4 Jumping out of order, juror 16, because of the

5 language, is there an agreement on 167

6 MS. BARRANCO: Yes.

7 THE COURT: Okay, let me bring her in to let her know.
8 (Thereupon, the prospective juror entered the

9 courtroom.)
10 THE COURT: 1If you could come forward. We want to
11 thank you for your service. You can come to the podium.
12 Because of the difficulty you said in understanding
13 some of the things I said so far, I am going to excuse you as a
14 juror, so you don't need to continue serving because it will
15 only get more complicated. If language is a problem, we don't

16 want you to feel disadvantaged and not having the benefit of
17 hearing all of the evidence. That wouldn't be fair to the

18 parties.

19 You are excused. Continue to call in like your juror
20 summons tells you. Don't tell anybody else, just leave. You
21 are free to talk to other people outside the courthouse about
22 your experience if you want to, or you can choose not to talk
23 to them, but you are not allowed to talk to anyone else who is
24 still being considered as a juror in this case.

25 Does that make sense?

Pauline A. Stipes, Official Federal Reporter



Case 2:16-cv-14072-RLR Document 238 Entered on FLSD Docket 06/28/2018 Page 144 ot 44
Case: 18-13902  Date (2BEd868700p019  Page: 12 of 250

1 THE JUROR: Yes.

2 THE COURT: Have a nice day. Thank you for your

3 service.

4 THE JUROR: Thank you.

5 THE COURT: The next one I had left to come in was 31
6 because of the partiality to law enforcement. He kind of went

7 back and forth, but at the end he indicated that he couldn't be
8 impartial.
9 You both agree on that? We will bring him in to let

10 him know that.

11 (Thereupon, the prospective juror entered the

12 courtroom.)

13 THE COURT: You can come forward, thank you.

14 I did want to thank you very much for your service

15 thus far and your candor, but in light of your affiliation with
16 law enforcement persons and the nature of this case, I don't

17 think that it is a good match for you to be a juror on this

18 particular case, and that often happens, you can be a good

19 juror, but not necessarily on a certain case. I appreciate you
20 being candid with the Court about that. We need to know these
21 things. Given your background and relationships, I don't think
22 this is the right case for you.

23 You will be excused and continue to call in. When you
24 leave, please don't tell anybody you have been excused, just

25 quietly leave. You can talk to other people about your
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1 experience or you can choose not to talk about it. In any

2 event, don't talk to anybody who has been with you and will

3 come to be potential jurors and ultimately some will be jurors
4 in this case, stay away from them. If you want to communicate
5 with others about your half a day experience here, feel free to

6 do that.

7 THE JUROR: Yes, ma'am.

8 THE COURT: You are excused.

9 THE JUROR: Have a good day.
10 THE COURT: You, too.
11 The next one, I was concerned about 17 who is a

12 student, tests, and things like that, next Monday, Wednesday.

13 Do you both agree number 17 without further inquiry should be

14 excused?

15 Okay, if you'd bring in number 17.

16 (Thereupon, the prospective juror entered the

17 courtroom.)

18 THE COURT: You may come forward. We want to thank
19 you for your service coming here today. We are in agreement
20 your studies are important and you should be paying attention
21 to school and your tests, so we will excuse you.

22 When you leave, that means your jury service for this
23 case 1s over. You do need to continue to call in like your
24 jury summons requires to you do if there is another case. I

25 think that is unlikely. Once you leave you are free to talk
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about your experience or you can choose to keep it private and
not talk to anybody. If you chose to talk about it, you are
not going to talk with anybody who is around and potential
jurors in this case.

THE JUROR: I don't have to come back after lunch?

THE COURT: You do not. Now you can go home and
study.

THE JUROR: I was hoping for that.

THE COURT: So, this is kind of a different scenario,
juror number 12 talked about the intolerance for alcohol, and I
didn't know how that struck anybody. I didn't want to get into
a big to-do of jury questioning about alcoholism and make it a
bigger issue than it may or may not be.

I already reached a tentative ruling it will come in.
There is a stipulation to that, just a matter of how it comes
in.

That juror number 12 in the last question, 14, says
she has no sympathy for alcoholics and/or drug users.

Plaintiff's counsel is holding a tab up saying you
would want her stricken. Does Defense want any inquiry of her?

MS. BARRANCO: Yes, your Honor, we do.

THE COURT: What I will do is bring her in and I am
going to —-

MR. PHILLIPS: When your Honor is asking questions,

she was one of the ones who said she had trouble hearing.
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1 THE COURT: She couldn't hear Ms. Bryant. I didn't

2 discern an issue.

3 I will ask a question or two, and if there is followup
4 you need to ask. After the followup, if you agree —- one

5 agrees and the other doesn't, I will keep her in. I don't want
6 questioning about alcoholism in front of the jury. You don't

7 need to ask anything else on that topic, this is your time to

8 do it.

9 (Thereupon, the prospective juror entered the
10 courtroom.)

11 BY THE COURT:

12 Q. After we had everybody speak up, have you been able to hear
13 everything okay?

14 A. No.

15 Q. You haven't heard everything?

16 A. Could I hear some, but some sounds like mumbling in the

17 back. Back over here, I had a hard time.

18 Q. Okay. Remember, I told you to raise your hand so I could
19 have people speak up.

20 May I ask whether you have any hearing difficulties?

21 A. A little bit in the left ear.

22 THE COURT: We do have equipment that we could make
23 available to persons to aid hearing things, don't we, Melanie?
24 THE COURTROOM DEPUTY: The interpreter equipment on a
25 certain channel can amplify.
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1 BY THE COURT:

2 Q. Now, when we start the trial, if you are selected, all the
3 jurors will sit there, and the witness will be here, everybody
4 will be speaking into a microphone, and the attorneys will be
5 where you are. Do you think, based on your experience with

6 your hearing, you may still have trouble hearing?

7 A. No. I think I will be fine, just when it is way back in

8 the corners there.

9 Q. Will you make a promise that if you didn't hear anything
10 you will raise your hand?
11 A. Yes.
12 Q. And if you needed equipment that might help, you would let
13 us know that?
14 A. Yes.
15 Q. Okay. Secondly, you indicate you have no sympathy for
16 alcoholics and/or drug users?

17 A. That is true.

18 Q. We don't have a case about alcoholics or drug users,
19 however, there may be some evidence that the person who is
20 deceased, the person who was shot, had some alcohol in him at

21 the time he was shot.

22 It is not a case about somebody being an alcoholic or drug
23 user or anything else of that nature.

24 But I want to make sure and I want to know, I want a

25 truthful answer, no right or wrong answer, just a truthful
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1 answer, 1if you were to hear evidence —- if you were to hear
2 evidence that the person who was shot who had alcohol in him at

3 a level higher than sort of legally intoxicated, higher than

4 the legal intoxication level, do your views about no sympathy
5 for alcoholics and drug users automatically make you not able
6 to be fair and impartial and open minded and follow all of my
7 rules as relates to that person?

8 A. No. No.

9 0. No what?

10 A. I had too many people, experiences with people drinking and
11 drugs and no, there is no sympathy whatsoever, none.

12 THE COURT: Okay. Were there any followup questions
13 that Defense counsel has?

14 MS. BARRANCO: I do have a question.

15 THE COURT: Okay, I will let Ms. Barranco ask a

16 question.

17 BY MS. BARRANCO:

18 Q. I want to ask a question concerning your last answer. Do
19 you believe you could listen to the evidence and be fair and

20 impartial in regard to what you believe the evidence showed

21 regardless of whether or not —-- your feelings about what you

22 told us, this zero tolerance, regardless of that, do you

23 believe you could listen to the evidence and be fair and

24 impartial, or the fact that you have zero tolerance, that would
25 make it hard for you to be impartial and —-
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1 A. That is difficult to answer, I don't know what it would be.
2 Q. The judge said a moment ago it may be the person that was

3 shot. 1If the evidence shows you that he at the time of the

4 incident was over the legal level of intoxication, whether or
5 not that would automatically in your mind —-- you would lean in
6 favor of the Defendants or away from the Plaintiff because of
7 that information?

8 A. Away from the Plaintiff.

9 Q. So, you do not believe you could be fair and impartial?
10 A. No. I don't mean to seem angry.
11 MS. BARRANCO: We are trying to get to the bottom of

12 this. Thank you for your honesty.

13 THE COURT: The important thing is for you to do what
14 you did, be candid and honest, so the lawyers can advise their
15 clients accordingly.

16 With that, I thank you, we are going to excuse you

17 from this case. I don't think this would be the appropriate

18 case for you to serve on. Sometimes there is not always a

19 match between a juror and a particular case. I will excuse you
20 and I will ask you to continue to call in, and I will ask you
21 not to talk to anybody when you leave. You may choose to speak
22 to people out in the public about your experience here today,
23 and that is fine, or you can choose not to speak with them,

24 that is your personal preference. 1In any event, you are not to
25 have any contact with anyone who remains on the case.
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1 THE JUROR: Thank you.
2 THE COURT: I had juror number 14 stay behind. His

3 brother worked with the St. Lucie Sheriff's Office. He was

4 unequivocal that it wouldn't impact him at all. I wanted to

5 see if anybody wanted to ask questions about that, or whether
6 you are comfortable keeping him on for now. It doesn't mean

7 you will keep him on forever, but I wanted to see if there are
8 any questions about that after hearing —-

9 MR. PHILLIPS: If your Honor is giving me 20 seconds
10 to ask a question, I will do so. We don't see any bias as of

11 right now.

12 THE COURT: Okay, then what you can do is let —-

13 Larry, let number 14 know he can go to lunch and come back.

14 Also, what about number 267? I thought she answered
15 all of my questions properly about —-- she was honest, she said
16 she didn't want to be here, but she committed to all the right
17 answers, and in an abundance of caution, I kept her here. Does
18 anyone want to ask her more about that issue?

19 MS. BARRANCO: I had a feeling in terms of her

20 mentioning disorderly intoxication and the resisting without
21 violence, and it is involving the St. Lucie County Sheriff's
22 Office, and she is telling us she doesn't want to be here.

23 Looking at the body language she has, it appears to me this
24 wouldn't be a good case for her. I don't think she could be

25 fair and impartial given who the Defendants are in this case
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1 and given what the allegations are.
2 THE COURT: Plaintiff.
3 MR. PHILLIPS: As your Honor pointed out, she

4 rehabilitated herself for that. That is something we could

5 address.

6 THE COURT: Let number 14 know he can go, and if we

7 could bring in number 26. I would like to clear out a couple

8 of those questions outside the jury's hearing so there is not a

9 potential tainting of the jury.

10 I will give you enough time for lunch.

11 MS. BARRANCO: We are going to go out, we don't have
12 food waiting for us in the rooms.

13 THE COURT: All right.

14 If you could come forward. So, I want —— I will let

15 the attorneys ask questions if they want of you as well right
16 now.

17 BY THE COURT:

18 Q. I was kind of concerned about you saying you didn't want to
19 be here, and I am concerned that might effect your, I guess,

20 commitment to the process. Should I be concerned about that?
21 A. No, I just didn't want to -- I would rather be somewhere

22 else. If I had to say, no, it wouldn't. Would I prefer to be

23 somewhere else? Yes, I would.
24 Q. When you are here how importantly are you going to treat
25 the case?
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1 A. It is going to have to be very important.

2 Q. You would be able to listen to the evidence and not be

3 thinking about something else, maybe through next Friday, all
4 day, every day?

5 A. Yes. When you asked the question would I rather be

6 somewhere else, yes, I would.
7 Q. You are being honest with that, but you are saying you
8 could be fair and impartial about the case?

9 A. Yes.

10 THE COURT: Does Defense have any questions?
11 MS. BARRANCO: On a related area, I wanted to follow
12 up on something said earlier.

13 BY MS. BARRANCO:

14 Q. You said something about your aunt at the jail or with the
15 jail?

16 A. She is married to my uncle, and she works at Rock Road.

17 Q. What does she do there, do you know?

18 A. I don't know, we are not close. I haven't spoke with him
19 in years. When they were talking and, okay, I have an uncle
20 and auntie there.

21 Q. My other question is, the fact that your aunt who is

22 married to your uncle works at the jail, is that the reason why
23 you haven't talked to her in six years?

24 A. No. No. We had a family situation at home.

25 Q. Okay.
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1 A. It had nothing to do with her job or where she works, it

2 was a private family issue.

3 MS. BARRANCO: Okay. Thank you, your Honor.

4 THE COURT: Did you want to talk about with respect to
5 how she answered her question number ten regarding her prior

6 experiences with law enforcement?

7 MS. BARRANCO: Sure, your Honor. I thought we were

8 going to be talking more with her later.
9 THE COURT: Well, you are, as long as you are here.

10 BY MS. BARRANCO:

11 Q. If I understood what you told us earlier, did you have one

12 arrest or two different arrests?

13 A. It was —-— I don't have other arrests. I never had to go to
14 court, they were dropped. I know I had assault -- not assault,
15 resisting arrest and disorderly conduct, but I think they were

16 both together or separate, that is why I gave you the time

17 frame. Once you looked on there you would be able to see that,
18 but the charges were dropped, never went to court, so I didn't
19 think that was an issue. I never had to go to court from

20 those.

21 Q. I am sure you heard from the judge both of the Defendants
22 in this case are with the St. Lucie Sheriff's Office, the

23 Sheriff, as the Sheriff, is being sued as well as Deputy

24 Newman.

25 I know you told us earlier one of the arrests was by the
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1 St. Lucie Sheriff's Office. Can you tell us the other one,
2 which agencies were involved?
3 A. Disorderly and resisting, of course it was St. Lucie

4 County, that was 2006 or 2008, and my other ones I didn't have

5 to go to court for, that was in Indian River County.
6 Q. And you mentioned the other ones, is that one incident or
7 was there more than one time?

8 A. I have a battery, charges got dropped.
9 Q. One arrest in Indian River County by the Sheriff of Indian
10 River County?

11 A. It was three.

12 Q. Three different arrests?

13 A. Yes.

14 Q. And one time by St. Lucie Sheriff's Office?

15 A. One or two.

16 Q. Are the two times listed on your questionnaire here?

17 A. Yes, yes.

18 Q. Let me ask you this: The fact you have been arrested and
19 sometimes the charges have been dropped, have all of the times

20 the charges been dropped?

21 A. Not with the resisting arrest and disorderly conduct. I
22 was on probation, I was intoxicated. You are intoxicated, you
23 are acting out, of course, they are going to arrest you.

24 Q. That happened about ten years ago?

25 A. Yes, that is why I could barely remember. I knew you would
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look on and verify it.

have happened.

I gave you around the time it would

Q. And give us a time period when the three different arrests

were you mentioned.

A. 2010, 2011, during that time.
Q. Three different times?
A. Yes, those charges were —— I didn't have to go to court for

none of those.

Q. And for any of those arrests by any of those different

officers,
A. I —

Q. Hold on.

did you look back now on those incidents and —-

Did you look back on the incidents and believe

the officers did what they needed to do because you were

breaking the law;

A. They weren't there,

weren't up there during the incident.

job,

i1l willw

I have no 111 will at them.

is that your position?

I shouldn't be upset with them, they
They came to do their

Is that what you are asking,

Q. Your feelings about law enforcement officers.

A. I have no hate toward law enforcement,

MS. BARRANCO:

THE COURT:

Plaintiff?

MR. PHILLIPS:

THE COURT:

none of that.

Thank you.

Any questions on that issue from

No.

Thank you so much.
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1 I know I put a tight lunch squeeze on everyone, 1:30.
2 The truth of the matter is, if you need more time, say quarter

3 of 2:00, that gives you enough time to get lunch?

4 THE JUROR: I am not going to get lunch.

5 THE COURT: Same instructions, don't say anything to

6 anyone, we will see you back. Thank you.

7 Really, the other three, jurors 7, 10, and 23, all

8 fell under the same category, sole breadwinner, stress relating

9 to jobs, although each of them ultimately said that the stress

10 or burden of not working would not get in the way of their

11 being able to listen and give full attention to the case.

12 So, I could forego that and have you ask any questions
13 you may want to during your own voir dire. 7, 10, and 23,

14 anything about any one of them that jumped out that you felt we

15 should bring that person in to let them know?

16 7 is the bartender, 10, she is in a small firm, works
17 with condos, she has ten projects starting on 5/15, and 23 is
18 the full-time occupational therapist and she is single, no

19 children, no adult children at least. But she said she could

20 be fair and impartial.

21 They just sort of talked about stress and work.

22 MR. PHILLIPS: Out of that triad, number 10 was the
23 only one where she said work would interfere with

24 deliberations. Once she rings the bell —-

25 THE COURT: She ultimately said she could make it
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1 work.

2 Did you want me to bring in number 10? Do we agree I
3 let 7 and 23 go to lunch and just bring in number 107

4 MS. BARRANCO: That is fine.

5 THE COURT: We can let 7 and 23 go to lunch. If they
6 need to get back late in light of the hour, quite honestly,

7 quarter to 2:00 would be fine.

8 Bring in number 10.

9 (Thereupon, the prospective juror entered the

10 courtroom.)

11 If we could have you come forward to the microphone at

12 the podium.

13 BY THE COURT:

14 Q. So, I want to make sure I understand.

15 I think you sat through -- you have sat through everything,
16 and you see some people have concerns about their jobs and some
17 don't, but they have other concerns.

18 At the end of the day, I need to make sure we select jurors
19 who can give a hundred percent of their time and attention.

20 Sure, they could have other things on their mind in their lives
21 outside the courtroom, but not something to interfere with

22 their ability to be here in a trial.

23 You talked about the projects starting May 15th, it is a
24 strain on the company. You have a business partner, but she
25 was feeling stress as well.
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1 If you had to sum it up and tell me the honest assessment

2 of your ability to serve as a juror, it is never ideal, it is

3 never perfect, but went you weigh what you have going on with

4 the responsibilities of fulfilling your civic duty, tell me how
5 it comes out for you.

6 A. If it boils down to it, I can go into the office after I am
7 finished here. The thing is, this time of year my partner and
8 the designer are primarily out in the field, so there is not

9 anyone in the office handling day-to-day phone calls,

10 communication with clients, those types of things.
11 Like I said, if it boils down to it, I can go in on
12 weekends and evenings and take care of what needs to be done.

13 Q. Will you feel resentful, jittery, angry? This is the only

14 day the parties have in court, this is it. They need to know,
15 and I, as the protector of the system, need to know that we

16 know we have you when you are here unburdened by life things.
17 A. Yes, I can do what needs to be done here and what needs to

18 be done there if I have to.

19 Q. Thank you so much.

20 We are going to excuse you to go to lunch, and come back a
21 little late. 1If you got here by quarter of 2:00 that would be
22 fine. Thank you.

23 A. Thank you.

24 THE COURT: All right. Just to review so everybody is

25 on the same page who has been excused for cause, juror numbers
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1 8, 12, 1le, 17, 21, 22, 26, 27, and 31.

2 Does that match everybody?

3 THE COURTROOM DEPUTY: We did not excuse 26, we told
4 her to come back.

5 THE COURT: Right. Why did I do that? We did.

6 Is that the only mistake I did?

7 THE COURTROOM DEPUTY: Yes.

8 THE COURT: 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8.

9 So we have lost eight jurors, we are down to 27 jurors
10 left, and we ultimately need —- we are fine, we ultimately

11 need -- we could have up to 19 excusals and seat six plus two
12 with everyone getting their peremptories. But I would not let
13 them release the jurors.

14 Let's take a lunch break. Can we come back by 2:00,
15 unless it is quarter of 2:007?

16 I don't know what is involved —-- what your needs are.

17 I could live with quarter of 2:00 or 2:00. What is most

18 comfortable for everybody?

19 MS. BARRANCO: We'll say 2:00, and we will be back

20 sooner 1f we can.

21 THE COURT: Yes, we'll say 2:00. If you come back

22 earlier, we'll open the courtroom at quarter of 2:00 so we know
23 you are here.

24 I think my questioning was fairly thorough, that isn't

25 bragging, it was thorough, and with all of the followup, I will
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1 make every effort to live within the 15 minutes you are

2 allotted. That is generally how I operate. If you need more

3 time it would be de minimus, it would seem to me. If you need
4 more time, let me know.
5 Use the time over the lunch hour to look through all
6 of your notes and see what really is remaining to be asked, and
7 we will proceed accordingly. Okay?
8 MS. BARRANCO: Thank you, your Honor.
9 THE COURT: The courtroom will be locked, take what
10 you need, otherwise it will be protected here and we'll open it

11 at quarter of.

12 Anything else?

13 MS. BARRANCO: No.

14 THE COURT: Okay, we will see everybody back then.
15 (Thereupon, a short recess was taken.)

16 (Thereupon, trial reconvened after recess.)

17 THE COURT: Okay, we were about to bring our jurors
18 in. Is there a matter?

19 MR. BRUCE JOLLY: Your Honor, none of us asked you to
20 advise the jurors —-- advise the jurors that we'll avoid them.
21 THE COURT: Yes, I forgot to do that. Yes, okay.

22 So let's bring our jurors in.

23 (Thereupon, the jury venire returns to the courtroom.)

24 THE COURT: All right. Everybody may be seated.

25 I want to thank everyone for patiently answering all
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1 of my questions, and now I am going to turn it over to the

2 attorneys so they have an opportunity to ask any questions that
3 they may have, so we will begin with the Plaintiff's counsel.

4 Do you have any questions?

5 MR. PHILLIPS: Yes, your Honor.

6 THE COURT: You may take the podium. Everyone listen
7 carefully and give the same attention you did to me, answer the

8 questions honestly, truthfully and completely.

9 MR. PHILLIPS: Good afternoon.

10 BY MR. PHILLIPS:

11 Q. So, voir dire is what we have been doing this morning, and

12 it means to speak the truth.

13 This jury system started in about the 12th century, and we
14 evolved to the point you kind of learn how it goes. It is an
15 interview for a very important constitutionally protected job.
16 It is —— for those that talked about Bull, and watch Bull,
17 it is not like that, as you will see.

18 We are a little different, not Law and Order, it's not

19 going to be somebody coming flying in the courtroom with

20 special evidence. We worked very hard for many years with

21 great defense lawyers who we respect, we hope they have the

22 same respect for us, to get prepared for this week.

23 And I am from the south, I know you all —-- most of you all
24 are from the south. I heard a couple of exceptions as we

25 talked. And we talk about jury selection sometimes like a
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1 barbecue competition.
2 It may be a vegetarian, vegan, maybe they are not right for

3 the barbecue. Maybe the people who like boar may not like the

4 barbecue chicken. Please don't be offended if we ask questions
5 that disqualifies you. It means you are jurors better suited

6 for another case.

7 There are no right or wrong answers, and while we are

8 talking about being offended, you will see the attorneys coming
9 and going back and forth, and we are going to try to yes,
10 ma'am, and yes, sir, the judge and smile, but we can't
11 communicate with the jury.
12 We may even kind of run away when we see you. Again, that
13 is not anything personal against you, it is that we want this

14 to happen full and fair.
15 THE COURT: Yes, let me interrupt you. I will stop

16 your time to say that I should have said that earlier.

17 The attorneys are not to have any contact with the
18 jurors outside the courtroom at all. They are not supposed to
19 say hi, smile, be in the elevator with you, in the restroom.
20 If they find themselves in that position, they may turn the
21 other way. It might come off as being rude and disrespectful,

22 it is not that at all. They are not to have any contact with
23 the jurors outside the courtroom.
24 If that happened, I want you to understand the context

25 of why they have not said hello or smiled and that would be the
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1 case throughout the entire trial.

2 BY MR. PHILLIPS:

3 Q. This is my first show of hands question.

4 We talked about adult children. Who here has small

5 children, still school age?

6 Okay. Okay. Who here is a single -- by show of hands, who
7 here is a single parent? Who here is a single parent because

8 you lost the father or mother?

9 Okay. A bunch of questions were asked, and I have a few
10 follow—-ups that I want to go through. We are going to start
11 with you.
12 I notice you are a hobby shooter. What kind of guns do you

13 shoot with?

14 A. Long rifles, shotguns, handguns. I shot antique firearms,
15 black powder. There is almost no kind of firearm I haven't

16 shot, I even shot Florida lofus (phon).

17 Q. Have you ever been paid related to —-- like a vocation to
18 render opinions on firearms?

19 A. Never, no.

20 Q. What kind of handguns do you currently own?

21 A. I have four of them currently, right now, a Glock, Kel-Tec

22 9-millimeter, a .38 revolver, and what is that last one? I
23 can't remember what the last one is right now.
24 There are three of them right there.

25 Q. Thank you, sir.
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1 A fellow lawyer?

2 A. Yes.

3 Q. Did you say something about worker's comp, that you worked
4 in worker's comp briefly?

5 A. Briefly, vyes.

6 Q. What side, Plaintiffs or Defendants?

7 A. It would have been —- we represented the clients seeking to
8 obtain benefits. It was very briefly, I did mostly child

9 support enforcement work in the office.

10 Q. Now, mom always said never ask somebody their age, I am

11 not. When did you finish law school?

12 A. 1999.

13 Q. Okay. Since 1999, have you had any further CLE work or

14 course work in constitutional law, civil rights law, any of

15 those fields?

16 A. No.

17 Q. Have you pursued any personal injury course work

18 whatsoever?

19 A. No.

20 Q. On your form —- bear with me.

21 A. I would like to modify that question —-- that answer,

22 rather. When I had to do my general course requirements to
23 become a lawyer, I may have had to sit for CLE and there may
24 have been different things covered generally, that is when I
25 first became a lawyer.
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Q. Right.
A. So I don't want to —- since then it has always been
probate, guardianship course work.

Q. We all that are practicing in the profession know the

course work we had to do. They forced a lot of knowledge on
us.
A. Yes.

Q. In your questionnaire response, you put something for
number 14 which is -- the question is, is there anything in
your background or personal feelings which might affect your
ability to be fair to both sides, and you scratched something
out. Do you recall that?

A. Just that I am a lawyer, that is all, I didn't know if that
was relevant.

Q. Thank you so much.

A. You are welcome.

Q. Tell me about the ten projects briefly. I don't want to
the know about your business, just the ten projects you
acquired.

A. We oversee and supervise renovation projects.

Q. And what is your role with that?

A. I am primarily the person that runs the office, keeps
everything organized, pays everything, pays subcontractors,
does the billing. I run the office, my partner is more in the

field.
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1 Q. Now, we are on kind of radio silence in the courtroom, no

2 phones, no internet. It is going to be kind of nice sometimes.
3 A. That is sort of what I am thinking.

4 Q. At the same time, we might get that pitter-patter, missing
5 out. Kids call it phone no. Is there going to be a business

6 when you leave. You can check your phones in the car.

7 A. Exactly.

8 Q. Going on to the questions we asked earlier, is there any
9 concern you feel you will be so distracted by what messages you
10 are missing you won't be able to be fair and impartial?

11 A. No, sir.

12 Q. Thank you so much.

13 You covered up the blue so you didn't match quite as well.
14 How long has your brother been with the St. Lucie Sheriff's
15 Office?

16 A. For about four months now.

17 Q. What did he have to do to get that job? He had to go

18 through training, Police Academy?

19 A. Yes, he went to the academy in Palm Beach, and transferred
20 into St. Lucie